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PROPOSED 
Minutes of a Regular Meeting 

Pittsfield Charter Township Board of Trustees, June 9, 2021 
E.A. Jackson Morris Hall, The Robert A. Lillie Service Center 

6201 W. Michigan Avenue, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48108 
 
Members Present: Anzaldi, Scribner, Jaffer, Krone, Urda-Thompson 
Members Absent: Grewal, Edwards-Brown 
Others Present: Deputy Clerk Lyn Sebestyen, Director Matt Harshberger, 

Assessor Barb McDermott, Park Commission Chair Theresa 
Tupacz, Director Tracy Watkins, Director Jessica West, Engineer 
Mark Pascoe, Nathan Baldermann, Christina Lirones, Chris 
Stearns, Mike Klein, Markus Mobius, Drew Saunders, Matthew 
Best, Rebecca Schwartz-Bishir, Dave Przygoda, Gaz Ismail 

__________________________________________________________________ 

1. Call Meeting to Order 
 Clerk Anzaldi called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. A quorum was present. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
Led by Clerk Anzaldi. 

3. Roll Call 
Members Present: Anzaldi (meeting remotely at Pittsfield Township) 
   Scribner (meeting remotely at Pittsfield Township)    

  Jaffer (meeting remotely at Pittsfield  Township) 
   Krone (meeting remotely at Pittsfield Township) 
   Urda-Thompson (meeting remotely at Pittsfield Township) 
Members Absent: Grewal, Edwards-Brown 

 

3.1 Approval of the Agenda 
Moved by Trustee Krone, supported by Trustee Urda-Thompson, to elect Clerk Anzaldi 
as Chair Pro Tem for the June 9, 2021 meeting. 
MOTION CARRIED 

 Moved by Trustee Jaffer, supported by Trustee Urda-Thompson, to approve the agenda 
as submitted. 

 Trustee Krone requested to add an item to Consider Park Commission Resolution #21-02 
and take other action as necessary. Clerk Anzaldi added the item to 13.1. 

 Treasurer Scribner requested to remove item 8.3. Clerk Anzaldi moved item 8.3 to 13.2. 
 Moved by Trustee Jaffer, supported by Trustee Urda-Thompson to approve the agenda as 

amended. 



PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP 2 
Board of Trustees  
Minutes for a Regular Meeting  
Held June 9, 2021 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
4. Public Comment I 

 Park Commission Chair Theresa Tupacz thanked the Board for adding item 13.1 to the 
agenda. She provided the Board the Park Commission Recommendation on Waters/Oak 
Valley Park Site, which will be attached to Park Commission minutes. 

 Christina Lirones, 151 E. Textile, thanked Trustee Urda-Thompson for visiting the 
Pittsfield Preserve to review requested No Thru Truck sign locations on Campbell, 
Payeur, Morgan, and Stone School Roads. She emphasized that the ordinance cannot be 
enforced without those signs. She is grateful that her request is moving forward, and is 
astonished that her request took so long for the Board to act on. 

 Mike Klein, 2321 Windmill Way, expressed concern about the Public Safety Millage 
Renewal. He believes many residents were shocked by the millage increase amount. He 
asked how the portion of the General Fund currently being used for Public Safety 
expenses would be re-allocated with an increased and renewed Public Safety Millage. He 
advocated for having the millage renewal question placed on a General Election ballot 
and separating the millage renewal question from a millage increase question. 

 Chris Stearns requested the Board postpone funding Lillie Park and Montibeller Park 
improvements. He asked the Board to focus on securing a park for the northwest corridor 
of the Township. He expressed support for a new park on Waters/Oak Valley. 

 Markus Mobius expressed disappointment at the Township’s handling of development 
decisions for a park at Waters/Oak Valley. He criticized the decision to rezone the 
Waters/Oak Valley section of the Township through the most recent Master Plan 
amendments as well as the Township paying $1,000,000 for the Waters/Oak Valley 
parcel. He is wary of upcoming Master Plan amendments and felt the public was not 
adequately informed about the exact changes being proposed, resulting in lack of public 
feedback. He expressed concern that these upcoming amendments will pass without 
residents’ knowledge and approval, and will impact them negatively. 

4.1  Board Response to Public Comment I 
 Clerk Anzaldi understood the frustration expressed regarding Waters/Oak Valley. She 

takes the Park Commission recommendations regarding Waters/Oak Valley very 
seriously, and her belief is that recommendations from the Park Commission, as the 
elected body charged with overseeing Township Parks, should take priority. 

 5. Approval of Minutes 

5.1 Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting held on May 26, 2021 
 Moved by Trustee Krone, supported by Trustee Jaffer, to approve the minutes of the 

regular meeting held on May 26, 2021. 
 MOTION CARRIED 

6. Public Hearings/Presentations/Proclamations  
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6.1 Proclamation Declaring June as Pride Month in Pittsfield Charter Township 
 Clerk Anzaldi presented the Proclamation Declaring June as Pride Month in Pittsfield 

Charter Township. 
6.2  Presentation of the 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Nathan 

Baldermann 
 Nathan Baldermann presented to the Board the 2020 CAFR (see Attachment 1). 
 Clerk Anzaldi asked if a single audit is only required when the Township receives federal 

funding, which Nathan Baldermann confirmed. 

7. Communications 
7.1  Communications 

Moved by Trustee Krone, supported by Treasurer Scribner, to receive and file 
communications. 

MOTION CARRIED 
8. Consent Agenda 

8.1 Approve payment of Accounts Payable checks #38653 through #38752 in the 
amount of $1,096,769.32 

8.2 Approve payment of Payroll Payables checks #1379 through #1384 in the amount of 
$4,112.36 

8.3 Item moved to 13.2 
8.4 Approve payment to Consultants for Community Development General Services & 

Dues in the amount of $13,231.83 
8.5 Approve payment to Consultants for UMS General Services in the amount of 

$18,924.95 
8.6 Approve the application for additional credited service through the Municipal 

Employees Retirement System (MERS) for Barbara McDermott, with the entire 
cost of the purchase of time to be funded by Ms. McDermott 

8.7 Receive the May 2021 Republic Services Rubbish Collection Report 

8.8 Receive the June 9, 2021 Personnel Report 
 Moved by Trustee Jaffer, supported by Treasurer Scribner, to approve consent agenda 

items 8.1 through 8.8 except 8.3. 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
9. Items from the Treasurer 

None 



PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP 4 
Board of Trustees  
Minutes for a Regular Meeting  
Held June 9, 2021 
 

10. Items from the Clerk 
10.1 Adopt a Resolution to Recommend Approval of Liquor License Application for 

Zone Entertainment, Resolution #21-28 
 Moved by Treasurer Scribner, supported by Trustee Jaffer, to adopt a Resolution to 

Recommend Approval of Liquor License Application for Zone Entertainment, Resolution 
#21-28. 

 Clerk Anzaldi noted that this is the last quota liquor license for the Township. Additional 
liquor licenses are awarded when the Liquor Control Commission reviews the 2020 
Decennial US Census survey results. 

 Trustee Krone asked for background on Zone Entertainment. 
 Gaz Ismail of Zone Entertainment specified that the business will offer food, arcade 

games, indoor go-karts, bumper cars, and laser tag for all ages. 

 Treasurer Scribner asked about serving alcohol in the presence of minors. 
 Mr. Ismail said alcohol would be served in a comparable manner to an Applebee’s, and 

would be segregated from the bumper cars, go-karts, and arcade. 

 Treasurer Scribner asked if Zone Entertainment is a chain franchise. 
 Mr. Ismail clarified that Zone Entertainment is his original business idea. 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES:  Anzaldi, Scribner, Jaffer, Krone, Urda- Thompson 
NAYS:  None 
ABSENT: Grewal, Edwards-Brown 
ABSTAIN: None 
MOTION CARRIED 

Mr. Ismail thanked the Board for their support. 
11. Items from the Supervisor 

11.1 Authorize the Supervisor and Clerk to enter into a Permitted Facilities Agreement 
with BP River Rouge Pipeline Company LLC (BP) for the construction of a non-
motorized path through BP's property, subject to Township Attorney approval 

 Moved by Treasurer Scribner, supported by Trustee Krone, to authorize the Supervisor 
and Clerk to enter into a Permitted Facilities Agreement with BP River Rouge Pipeline 
Company LLC (BP) for the construction of a non-motorized path through BP's property, 
subject to Township Attorney approval. 

 Treasurer Scribner asked for location clarification. 
 Engineer Mark Pascoe clarified that item 11.1 is tied to the Platt Road Greenway Phase II 

(PRGPII) project, south of Michigan Avenue on the west-side of the road, approximately 
at the Warner Creek area. He stated that the agreement is to allow construction of PRGPII 
across an existing pipeline. 
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 MOTION CARRIED 
11.2 Authorize the Supervisor and Clerk to enter into an Agreement with A. R. Brouwer 

LLC (Brouwer) of Dexter, Michigan, low bidder, for Montibeller Park Phase I 
Improvements for a cost not to exceed $1,454,500 including contingency, subject to 
Township Attorney approval 

 Moved by Treasurer Scribner, supported by Trustee Krone, to authorize the Supervisor 
and Clerk to enter into an Agreement with A. R. Brouwer LLC (Brouwer) of Dexter, 
Michigan, low bidder, for Montibeller Park Phase I Improvements for a cost not to 
exceed $1,454,500 including contingency, subject to Township Attorney approval. 

 Park Commission Chair Tupacz stated that item 11.3 is to replace the full parking lot. 
Item 11.2 is split into two phases to incorporate grant monies awarded by the Department 
of Natural Resources, and the main cost factor is the Pavilion. 

 MOTION CARRIED 
11.3 Authorize the Supervisor and Clerk to enter into an Agreement with Nagle Paving 

Company (Nagle) of Novi, Michigan, low bidder, for Lillie Park Parking Lot 
Rehabilitation for a cost not to exceed $382,407.50 including contingency, subject to 
Township Attorney approval 

 Moved by Treasurer Scribner, supported by Trustee Jaffer, to authorize the Supervisor 
and Clerk to enter into an Agreement with Nagle Paving Company (Nagle) of Novi, 
Michigan, low bidder, for Lillie Park Parking Lot Rehabilitation for a cost not to exceed 
$382,407.50 including contingency, subject to Township Attorney approval. 

 MOTION CARRIED 
12. Unfinished Business 

None 
13. New Business 

13.1 Consider Park Commission Resolution #21-02 and take other action as necessary 
 Moved by Trustee Krone, supported by Trustee Jaffer, to consider the received Park 

Commission Resolution #21-02 Requesting the Park Director Vacant Position be Filled 
Expeditiously. 

 Trustee Krone recognized in the resolution that the position has been vacant for six 
months, and also acknowledged the financial burden of not having a Park Director. 

 Trustee Urda-Thompson supported Park Commission Resolution #21-02. She advocated 
for implementation of the requests in the resolution. 

 Trustee Jaffer expressed his support for Park Commission Resolution #21-02. 
 Treasurer Scribner believes having a Park Director is very important financially, which is 

her reasoning for moving item 8.3 to allow Board discussion. Without a Director, the 
Park Commission’s budget is being heavily drained despite how frugal they are while 
trying to improve Township Parks for the community. 
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 Clerk Anzaldi acknowledged that the Park Commission is working very hard and is 
suffering by not having a Park Director. She reviewed the five requests outlined in the 
resolution. 

 Trustee Krone and Treasurer Scribner asked if passing the motion as-is would implement 
the requests in the resolution. 

 Clerk Anzaldi suggested a friendly amendment to the motion. 
 Moved by Trustee Krone, supported by Trustee Jaffer, to support and implement the 

recommendations stated in Park Commission Resolution #21-02, including hiring the 
Park Director, updating the job description, having the Park Commission involved in the 
hiring process, granting the Park Commission the ability to assist with performance 
reviews, and adding the Park Commission to the Township Organizational Chart. 

 MOTION CARRIED 
13.2 Approve payment to Consultants for Parks and Recreation General Services in the 

amount of $8,679.96 
 Moved by Treasurer Scribner, supported by Trustee Urda-Thompson, to approve 

payment to Consultants for Parks and Recreation General Services in the amount of 
$8,679.96. 

 Treasurer Scribner asked how $8,679.96 is being spent. She was alarmed by the cost of 
13.2 as well as the cost of a similar item that passed in March 2021. She asked if the cost 
is tied to the absence of a Park Director. 

 Clerk Anzaldi noted that while having a Park Director is very important, hiring a new 
Park Director does not necessarily alleviate these high expenditures. 

 Engineer Pascoe stated the breakdown of expenditures for the $8,679.96 can be found in 
the Board packet under Consent Agenda. $398 is to compensate Engineer Pascoe for his 
time assuming responsibilities normally handled by a Park Director. The remaining 
amount is tied to items 11.2 and 11.3. He expressed concern over the absence of a Park 
Director and how that has impacted Township Park projects. 

 MOTION CARRIED 
14. Liaison Reports 

None 
15. Public Comment II 

 Park Commission Chair Tupacz thanked the Board for their support and action to help 
implement Park Commission Resolution #21-02. 

15.1  Board Response to Public Comment II 
None 

16. Adjournment 
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 Moved by Trustee Krone, supported by Trustee Urda-Thompson, to adjourn the meeting 
at 8:11 p.m. 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Rita K. Lee, Recording Clerk  
Pittsfield Charter Township  
 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Michelle L. Anzaldi, Clerk  
Pittsfield Charter Township  
 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Mandy Grewal, Supervisor 
Pittsfield Charter Township 
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Prepared by: Finance Department 
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Month// , ZOZl 

To the Honorable Board of Trustees of P!ttsfleld Charter Township: 

State law requires Lhat all local governments, subject to certain sl2e criteria, publish Within si)( months or Lhe 

~lose of eacll fisca l year a complete et of financia l state,ments- presenLed in conformance Wilh generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in conformi ty with auditing standards generallv accepted 

,n Lhe Un ited SLa\es of America by a firm of licensed cerLified public accountan'ls, Pursuant lo those 

requirements, we hereby issue the comprehensive annu,il f·inancia l report for Pittsfield Charter Township fo r 
Lhe fisca l year ende,d O,;,cember 31, 2020, 

Management assumes full responsibilily for lhe complet,;,ness ar'ld reliabifily or lhe information conta ined bi 
this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal contro l that it has established for this 

purpose. Because the cost of internal controls shoL1ld not exceed t he anticipated benefits, the objective is to 
provide reasonable, rather thc1n absolute, assurance l hat t~e financial statements ME free of any material 

rn isslalemenls. 

Rehmann Robson, Certified Public Accountants, has issued an Linmo_ll ified ("clean") opinion on the 
Township's financia l staternents fat the year ended Decernb1H31, 2020. The independent auditors' report is 
located at the front of the financial section or this report. 

Managemen t's discussion and analysfs (MD&A) imrr:iedrately ro llows the independen t .iudilors' report and 

providss -a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis o/ the basic financial statements. The MD&A 
complements this letter of LransmiLLal and i tshould be read in conjunct,on wilh il. 

Profile of the Government 

Organized in 18:34 and cha~Le~ed in 1972, Pittsfield Charter Township, which is appro~itrrnLely 28 squa~e 

miles with a population of 40,360, Mdges Lhe territory between the Ci Ly of Ann Arbor and Ll1e Cily or Salirie. 
Pitlsfield Charter Township has Lile second largest tax base in Washtenaw County, second onlv Lo Lile City of 

Ann Arbor. Pittsfield has an outstanding DepanmenL of Public sarew which extends fire and police 
protection to all township residents with ,i response rate of 5 minutes or less. Plttsfleld also provides 
rubbish col lecllon and recyding, publk waler and sanitary sewer services. Wilh abou l 1,200 acres of public 
park land, Pittsfield offers numerous recreational .ictiv ities for you th, adults and seniors along with offering 

an outstanding va riety of park and open spaces lncreas1ngly acces-sible by nor'l-n,otorized an1enities. 

1 
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Pittsfield Charter Township Is a vibrant community with a wide spectrum of land uses including commercial 
corridors, business parks, agricultural lands, park land, open spaces, and many strong residential 
,neighborhoods representi,ig a variety of housi,ig options. The true hallmark of the Township, however, is 
the diversitV and talent of its residents. Pittsfield is bordered by "the three communities of Al1 n Arbor, Saline, 
and Ypsila11tL Pittsfield Is uniquely poised lo lake advantage of Lhe density supported by Its r,roxlmity lo 
these communities while ·simultaneously providing for existing larger.,scale agricultural, residenttal, 

commercial, and business use d!!velopmenls. Leveraging the existing mix of urban, suburban, and rural 

Influences, along with t he various mixture of land uses and its demographic diversn:v, Pittsfield has taken a 
leadership role ill establishing a new standard ror mainstreaming non-motorized lransporLation, dense 
mixed-use, green/open space presel'\lation and infill development within a township context. 

Pl l\.siield Towoship J'ia operated ul'lder the charter lOWMhl)) rorm or governmenl since 1972. A ctiarL@r 

township status Is a special township cla~ification created by the Michigan Legislature in 1947 to provlde 
additional powers and streamlined administration for governing a growing communtty. Pittsfield Townshlp 

government is cond\Jcted by a wwnship board consisting of st?ven members - a supervisor, clerk, lreas1.1rer, 
and four truste$ • who are elected by Township residents. 

,Procedures for the Township's financial admlnlstration, such as budgets, accounting, investments .ind 

deposits, are closely regulated by the Slate. Township meetings mus-I comply with Michigan's Open 
Meellhgs Act (MCL 15.261-15.215), and Township records must be st0red and made available Jn 

conrormance with specific laws, such as the Freedom of lnformalion Acl (MCL 15.231-15.246 ). The Charter 
Act (MCL 42.1 - 4234) gNes charter townships broad powers to enact and enforce a variety of ordinances. 

zoning ordinances enacted under the Michigan Zot1it1g Enabling Acl (MCL 125.3W1 - l2S.37021 give 
townships the authority to regulate land use, while many other specific ordinances, control activities t hat 

infringe on the rights of citizen,. The Michigan Constitution and st<1te stab.r~s also limit the ,unount of 
properly tax millage thal townships can levy for general township operattons. Charter townships may levy 
up to five mills. 1ownships also utilize other sources of revenue to-s pport services. User fees, permits, 
fines and special assessments on rea l property are the most frequenlly used sources. 

A.II powers of the Townsl)ip shall be vested lh and all n1allers of policy of U,e Tqwnship shall be e~ercised and 

determined by tl)e Township board or trustees. The Township· board typically holds two reg,1lar rneellngs 
per. month. The Township board is the Towrts ip's legislative and policy making body. The Township board 

Is reSp•nsible for ad<i1pting Lhe annual budge'l, conlrac\s, laws, ordinances and resolul1ons; approving 
purchases; and grantini; permits ,1lld license terms. Board members are elected at large to a four year term, 
and general elect!lons are held in November of a Presidential electlpn ye.ir, The Township board serves as 

t.he direct dlizen's link to Township Hall. 

The Township board appoints all boards, committees and commissions e~cept for the Parks & Recreatio.n 
Commfssion Board, which is independently elected. Statutorily, the Township supervisor, clerk and treas1.1rer 
appoint their deputies. The government's three full-time elected off icials (supervisor, clerk, and t reasurer) 
are responsible ror carrying out the policies and ordinances of t he Township board, for supervising the dav• 
to-day operations or the government, and for .appolnLing the t,eads- or Lile government's various operaLing 
departments. 

The Towmhlp is also financrally accountable for a legally separate entity, which is reported separately within 

lhe Townships' financlal s.tatements. Additional information or, this legally separate entity can be found 111 

ll1e notes Lo lhe basic financial Slaternents. 

2 
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Pittsfield Township operates on a calendar year fiscal cycle. For its regular budget development schedule, 
the Ch.irter Townsh ip Act provides that the Townsh ip must conduct a budget public hearing by December 15 

or earlier, and adopt the budget by December 31 of th1= year preceding tlle calendc1r year for which the 
budget is being prepared_ Concurrent With budget adoption, the Township board is required to provide for a 

tax levy necessary lo rneel lhe budgel e>1pendilures ijp Lo l he authorized ctiarter millage of the Townsh1p. 
This annual budget serves as the foundation fo r the Township's financial planning and control. The 'budget ts 
prepared by fund, deparLmenl, and function. The Township supervisor Is authori~ed 1.o approve transfers of 
budgetary fu nds within a cost center, exchJdin,g wages, salaries, overtime and fringes, in consultation with 
Lhe effected department dlrector:md/br the Finance Dlreclor. 

FactorSc Affecting Economic Condition 

The information presented in the financial staternents is perhaps beslunderstood wheo it I~ c.oosidered from 
the broader perspective of the ,environment Within which the Township operates as deseribed below: 

local economy 

Many municipaln:ies in Michigan are st niggling to address the fundamental flaws in t he existing local 
i::overnment financini:: system. The combined effects of Proposal A and the Headlee Amendment caps a 
township's ability to generate revenue at the rate of inflation, while the cost of .providing services continues 

Lo increase raster than infla tion. n,e stale and federal government also limit a townstiip's abilily to raise nork 
tax reveinuei. 

The Township's 2020 acl valorem taxable valuation of $2,008,203,009 re.presents a 4.17% increase from 
2019. The ratio of Lota! township l'ax collections Lo date for aix year 2020 (current and delinquent) Lo the 

cune('\t tax levy is 99.75%. 

The Stale of Michigan is currently In ttie midst or a fundamental economic sbifl from a manufacturing base 
to.i new ecunomy. Many naLlonal rorces a(e also having profound impact on the Sta te: a slowing national 

economy, the foreclosure ,risis and vola\lle energy .i:a-sls. While many would view this as a time to forego 

variQUS projects, Plttsfi'eld , ownship is moving forward on ensuring the economic health and vitality of the 
Township's future. 

Lon9-lerm flnancia/ pldpning 

Ptllsfield Township con t.inues Lo renne a'nd upda le its flnancrlal forecast model lQ address dlanges and 

trends idenHHE!.d. BY seeirig what polenlial outcomes are a11a(lable, the Township cari posiLion IL.setrto mor:e 
adequately deal with its future. 

Relevant financial policies 

The Township has recenlly reviewed some or ils firia!'lcial pofrcies: and procedures and made· changes lo 
ensure t ha1 adequate controls are in place. The Township ls constanlly undergoing a review of iLs currenL 

water and sewer rates in order 1.o develop a long-term rate track plan. The plan Will help lb ensure the 
financ:ial mbility of the water and sewer utilrties. The Township is in tlie process of ev.ihJating outst.inding 
debt generated from utility capital Improvement projects and exploring what potentral savings can be 

recogn lzed. 
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Major initiatives 

The Township, in 2019 commence the construction of the Platt-Textile Greenway (PTG) project. This project 

will connect over six miles of existing greenways within Pittsfield Township. PTG will provide area residents 
with seamless non-motorized connectivity to nearly 600 acres of recreational, historic, and administration 

facilities. This pathway will consist of a ten foot wide pathway on the south side of Textile Road. In 2018, the 

construction phase commenced, in conjunction with a Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) 
funded project to pave Textile Road between Hines Drive and Michigan Avenue. The Township has received 

a Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) grant in the amount of $800,000 for the design and 

construction of PTG. The Township was also awarded a grant through the Washtenaw County Parks & 
Recreation Commission (WCPAC) in the amount of $250,000 for this project with the remainder of the cost 

will be funded by Township General Fund. This project was completed with restoration of the construction 

site in fall of 2020. The total cost of this project is $1.81 million. 

In 2019, the Township was awarded a pass through grant from the Southeast Michigan Council of 

Governments (SEMCOG). This grant, for $46,500 is for activities related to the restoring the Lake Erie 

Corridor through Green Streets Project, funded by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). The 

Townships application is for a green infrastructure project on Textile Road adjacent to the Pittsfield Preserve, 

Marsh View Meadows Park and the Platt Road Textile Greenway. In addition, to this grant, the Township will 
be using funds from the Tree Mitigation Fund to complete this project. This project involves restoring the 

corridor by creating a natural landscape by utilizing native plants based on historical records. Along the 

corridor, the Township will be installing a rain garden and bio swales to improve water quality by collecting 

and slowing the flow of water, allowing harmful materials to settle out before entering sensitive ecosystems 

and waterways. The garden and swales can also reduce flood risk, improve air quality, and improve a habitat 

for beneficial birds and insects. The total cost estimate for this project is $100,000 with a year to date 
amount spent thus far is approximately $25,000 Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, part of this project has 

been placed on hold, however, the rain garden was installed and planting of the native plants will begin in 

the Spring of 2021. 

On December 11, 2019, the Township authorized the construction of a Mid-Block Crossing located on 

Packard Road between Hawks and Torrey Roads. Keeping consistent with the other Mid-Block Crossings 

around the township, this crossing consists of a mast arm structure spanning high above Packard Road, 
calling attention to the pedestrians crossing below. This crossing features an illuminated crosswalk; push 

button activation of Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon's (RRFB) providing advance notice to oncoming 

motorist of a pedestrian(s) crossing the road. Also installed is a refuge island in the center left-turn lane 
providing a safe location for a pedestrian to pause when waiting for additional traffic to clear. This project is 

partially funded with a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) of $198,315 with the remaining 

amount funded by General Fund. The total cost of the project is $242,803. 
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In March of 20201 Plttsfield Charter Township received an awarded or $1,072,747 in federa l funding lhrough 

the Transportation Alternatrves Program (TAP) offered in cooperation by t he Southeast Michigan Council of 

Governments (SEMCOG) and the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT). This project, know as the 
Plat t Road Greenway Phase II (PR.GIi) , wlll be t he first constructed 10' greenway south of Mich igan Avenue ln 

Pi t lsneld Township lo connecl lhousan<ls of area residents lo lhe southern-most (Wall) park In our 
community. The first greenway Pittsfield insta lled, over a decade ago, was the Platt Road Greenway along 

Plal l Road between Ellsworth and Micl11cgan Ave.nue, which connecls Lo lhe Township's mosl visited (LIi iie) 

park. Thts second phase extends the 10' wide paved pathway -south of Michigan along Platt Road between 
Michigan Avenue and Wall Park (soulh of Merrill Road and norlh of Bemis Road). IL will add two mid-block 
crossings at Township Hall and at Wall Park w ith mast arm LED crosswalk illumination and Rap id Flashing 

Beacons. In December 2020, the Township was also awarded a grant through t he Washtenaw Cou nty P-arks 
& Recreation Commission (WCPAC) In the amoLInt of $250,000 For const ruction. The remainder funding 

source wil l come from Township's General Fund. This Project will start in July/Augu~"t of 2021 with a 
compleLion date of November 2021. Tl1e Lota I estimate of Lhis project is approximately $2 .3 MIiiion. 

As PiLLsfie l<l Township continues Lo enhance its mulli-moda l network, the addillon of a greenway south of 
Michigan Avenue by way or PRGII assists ,n meeting its goal. By providing non-moLorized ameni ties to the 
many reslderi ts in the area Lha t are looking to age in place or reside in r11Ulli-unlt housing whi le having access 

to recreational, cullural, public, comrnercia~ and open spaces, The ulllrnate floal, as always, for Pill fJeld 
Township remains to enhance the quality of li fe For all in 0l.J r community. 

Awards and Ackrtowledgements 

hnp://plttsfield-ml.go11/awa rds 

The Government Finance Officer.; Association [GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 
Financial Reporting to Pittsfield Cha rler Township for its comprehensive annual fl nancial report (CAFR) for 
the fiscal yea r ended December 31, 2019. This is the tenth consecutive year tha t the Township has received 

tl1ls prestigious awar·d. In O!'der to be aw:arded a Ceniflcate or Ach ievement, the governmen t had to publish 
an easily readable and efficiently organl~ed CAFR that satisfied both gerierallv accepted account ing principles 
and applicable lega l requ irements. 

A Ce~tinca Le of Achievement is va lid for a period of one year only. We believe Lhat our currenL CAFR 

continues lo me.el lhe Cerllffcale of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting i l lo lhe 
GFOA 10 determine iLs eligibil ity for another cerlirica'le. 

In 2020, Pittsfield Charter Township was once again, recognized For its successes and efforts in contributing 
to MiGhiflan's er'!trepre(leurial growlli aM economic development Jn lhe annual eCilies study ,cn<JUcLed by 
researchers at ilabs, the University of Mich1gan-Dea~born's Ce nt er for Innova tion Resea rch. The program 

uniquely researches factors that contribute to economic success al the local level. Pittsfield Charter 
Township was selected, for t he fourth consecutive yea r, ;is one of a handful in the state, to receive the 

highest designation of being a 5-mr Best Pract ices Community for clearly identifying <1nd implementing a 
vision Lo foster economic success, Including arllculaLing a place making strategy. Tl1is Is Lhe si11Lh consecutive 
year that the Township has received this award. 

5 



PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP 21 
Board of Trustees  
Minutes for a Regular Meeting  
Held June 9, 2021 
Attachment 1 

 

Pittsfield Township was awarded in November 2019, a Gold Certification In the Michigan GreenCommtmit les 
challenge for commitment to sustainabillty. Michigan communities were honored in the statewide Mkhrgan 
Green Communities Challenge for commitmen t to sustair,abilrty projects, from green infrastn;ct ure 
lmprovflrnents to reMwable eMrgy project'.S'. This Is the third year t ha t Lhe TowMhlp has received thfs 
award. Program beneflls inclUqe creating a roaqmap for susLalnability lnltlalives; establishing benchmarks 
for your community's progress toward sustainability initiatives; and the motivation of comparing and 

cornpeLln{.wl Lh 0th.er Michigan communities .. 

In May 2018, Plltsfield Charter Township was awarded the Michigan emp loyee Support or the Guard and 

Reserve (ESGR) Pr6 Patria Award fo r exemplary supporl or township employees who serve in the Nalional 
Guard or Reserves. The ESGR1 a U.S. De.parlmen l or Defense program, has been recognizlrig ex:ceplional 

support and treatment o f guard and reservE! members and LhE!ir' fa,rilllE!S by employE!rs, The .Pro Pairia Awatd 
is the highest that can be bestowed by the Michigan ESGR Commitlee. It is presented annually t o the public 
sector employer in each st ate that has demonstrated the great est support to guard and reserve. employees 

through t heir leadership and practice.s, including adopting personnel policies t hat mal<e it easier [or 
e.mployee.s to participate In t he National Guard and Re.serves. 

Pittsfield Township has been named, in the Niche.corn annual list of the Best Places to live ·1n 2017, :as the 

8th most desirable community in the Stale of Michigan. The best plates Lo live rank ing provides a 
comprehensive assessment of the overall llvabllity oF an area. This ranking Lakes into account several key 

factors of a location, including the quality of local schools, crime rates, housing t rends, employmenls1.alistics 
and access to amenities In an attempt to measure the overall quality of an area. 

In March 2016, Pitt-sfreld Charter Township was ranked among the top 50 safest places to live in t he State of 

Michigan, coming in at lt40, 

The Southeast Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) selected Pittsfield Charter Township lo receive 
the S.isLalnable Commuriity Leader Aw.ard al lhe gold )evel in December 2014. Pil ls!ield is Lhe fil'SL 

comm,urow ih Washtenaw County ahd t he 14,h in southeast Michigan to receive this award and distinction . 
This award recognizes SEMCOG m~mber cornmllnl\ies . '1a l are incorporating sus~alnable practices. 

For local gover.nrn¢nl5, susLalnabiliLy is abouL achieving economk prosperity while proLecLing the 

envrronmenl and p(oviding a l\tgh Q\JaliW or life for resident . SEMCOG supported inilia tlves help local 
governmen ts achieve nd maintain s.istainabilrty along eoonomlc, fiscal, environment al, place making, and 
acc~ii;>ilttv par~metflr~, 

In addition, Pll \$1teld Township Parks and RE!crealiQn received lls third Marketing Award fqr Best Slnsle 

Brochure for Fall 2012 and Win ter 2013 from t he Michigan Recreation and Park Associat ion (MRPA) on 

March 1, 2013. 

The MRPA honors e~emplary parks and recreat ion professionals and citi2en advocates through the 
Association's annual awards, Honorees embody Lhe core values of the pro fession, demonstrate the highest 

level of performance in t heir job duties amf maintain a trernendoL/5 commitment to MRPA and rts 
membership. Marl(etlng Awards honor outstanding promotional acti\lit ies or n11m1bers and agencies, 
recognizing single a'nd speclal brocl)..ires, web sites, i~ tegrated marketing campaigns, videos and media 
advocates. 
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The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated services of 
the entire staff of the accounting and administration departments. We wish to express our appreciation to 
all members of the departments who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. Credit also 
must be given to the governing towns hip board for Its unr.illing $Upport for maintaining the highest 
sta17dards of professionalism In Lhe managemenlof Pittsfield Charter Township's finances. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Signature not included for security purposes 

Mandy Grewal, Ph.D, 
Township Supervisor 
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Tracy Watkins 
Flnance Director 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

LIST OF ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICERS 

For the Vear Ended December 31, 2020· 

Elected Officials-
Mandy Grewal, Township Supervisor 

Michelle L. Anzaldi, aerk 

Patricia Tupacz Scribner, Treasurer 

Linda Edwards-Brown, Trus-tee 

Gerald Krone, Trustee 

Yameen Jaffer, Trustee 

Andrea Urda-Thompson, Trustee 

Appointed Officials 
Lyi, Sebestyen, Deputy Cl.erk 

Orna Angus, Deputyi:reasurer 

Administration 
Matthew Harshberger, Public Safety Director 

Patricia Denig, Hurnan Resources Director 

Tracy Watkins, Fim~nce Director 

Kurt Weiland, Building Director 

Barbara McDermott, Assessor 

John Adams, Information Technology Director 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Board of Trustees 

Pitts field Charter Township 

Ann Arbor , Michigan 

Mcmth //, 2021 

We have audited the accompanyin!l financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 

activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 

information of Pittsfield Charter Toww;hip, Mfr:higan (the "Township~), as ef and for the year ended 

December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statemen~, which collectlve1y comprise the 

Township's basic financial statements as listed fn the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Stutement5 

Management is remonsibll:' for the prep,ration ancf fair presentation of the,e financial statements in 

accordance With accounting principles genera lly accepted in the United States of America; this incl udes the 

design, implementation, and maintenance of interna l wntrol relevant to the preparation and fair 

presentation of fln,.ncl-al sta tements that are free from materia l missracement, whether due to fraud or 

error. 

Independent Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responslbi llty l s to express opinions.. on the$i> financJal statements based on our audTt. We conducted 

our audit in accordance with -auditfng standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 

standards applicable io Financial audits contained in Government Auditing 5tondords, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable asswance <1bowt whether the ftnancia l s-ratements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves i:ierformlng procedures to obtain audit e-vidence about the amount~ and disclosures In the 

financial st~Jernents. The procedures selected depend on auditor judgment, Including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the frna neial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 1'(1aklng those 

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Township's preparation and fair 

presenration of the finilnelal statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

ci rcumsta nces, b~t not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township's 

internal control. l\ccordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluat[ng the 

appropriateness of accounting polrcies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the fiMncial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a, basis for our 

audit opini'ons. 

Opinions 

)n our opinion, the financial stateJllents r,;,ferrec! to <!bove 1;1res,;,nt fairly, in all material respects , the 

respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely 

presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund Information of the 
Township, as of December 31, 2020, and the respective changes In f inancJal position and where applicable, 

cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary' comparisons for the general fund and the major speda l 

revenue fund for the year then ended in accordance with accountlni;: principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Reqiiired Suppleme11tary ltt/ormation 

Accounting principles genera lly aocepted In the UnJted States of America regurre that the Management's 

Discussion and Analysis and the schedules for the pension and other postemployment benefits plans, as 
listed In the table oi conter,ts, be presented to supplen-,ent the basic financial statements. Such lnforn,at!on, 

although not a part of the basic financial statements, Is requ ired by the Governmental Accounting Standards 

Board, who considers It to be an essential part of financial reporting for pfaclng the basic financial 

statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain IJmited 

procedures to the required supplementary informatfon in accordance wrth auditini;: standards generally 

accepted In the United States of America, which consisted of inqulFTes of management about the methods 
of preparing the information and comparing the information for ,conslsteJ1cy wiJ:h management's responses 

to our inquirie~, the ba~ic financial statements, and other km>Wledge we obtained during our aUdft of the 

basic financJal statements. We do not express aci opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited prncedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide 

any assurance. 

Other,Jnformation 

0ur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the f inancial statements that collectively 
comprise the Towriship's basic flf\anclal statements. The combin,ng and indl vidual fund financial statement• 

and schedules,, the introductory section, and the statistica l section are presented for purposes • f additional 

at>a!ysis and ~re riot ii req1,1ired pert of the basrc financial statements, 
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The combining and individual fund financia l statements and schedules are the responsibility of management 

and were derived from and re late directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 

the basic financial statements. Such Information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 

the audit of the basic fin,;ncial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 

reconci ling such information direc.t ly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 

bgsic financial statements or to the bas ic financial statements themselves, and other additional r;,rocedures 

in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion , 

the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated, In al l materlal 

respects, In relation to the basic flnanc/al statements as a whole. 

The Introductory section and s!atlstlcal tab les have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applled in 

the audit of the basic financia l statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 

assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have alw issued, Onder separate cover, our report 

dated MONTH X.X , 2021, on our cons ideration of Pitts field Charter Township's intemal co11trol over financial 

reporting and our tests of its compliance wrth certain provisions of laws, regulation~, contracts, and grant 

agreements and other rnatt,.rs . The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testrng o( internal 

control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 

opinion on the internal contro l over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 

an audit performed in accordance wrth Government Auditing Sta nda rds In considering the Township's 

internal control over financia l report ing and compl(ance. 

15 



PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP 31 
Board of Trustees  
Minutes for a Regular Meeting  
Held June 9, 2021 
Attachment 1 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

16 



PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP 32 
Board of Trustees  
Minutes for a Regular Meeting  
Held June 9, 2021 
Attachment 1 

 

/ 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Management's Disi;ussion and Analysis 

As manag1mIent of Plttsiield Charter Township, Michigan lthe '"fownship" ), we offer readers of the lownship's flnancl~ I 
statements this narr~tive overview ,md ,m~lysis of t he financial .activities of the Township for the fi scal year ended 
Uecember 31, 2020. We encourage readers to consider the in formation presen ted here In conjunction with additiona l 

Information that we hav~ furnished in our letter of transmittal. 

Fina ncia l Highlighh 

Total net position 
Chilnge In total net positron 
Fund balilnces, governmental funds 

Change In fund balances, governmental funds 
Unassigned fund balance, general fund 

Change In fund balance, gGncral fund 
Bonded debt outstanding 
Change In bond!'d tleb! 

Overview of the Fina ncial Statements 

$ 74,058,383 

5,036,446 

14,588,042 

2,1/9 ,682 
3,939,969 

126,642 
8,995,080 

(981,000 ) 

This c!i,cu,slon and analysis is intended to serve as an Introduction to t he Township's ba~lc financial statemen ts. The 
Township's basic financial statements are comprised ofthree components: 11 governrnertt-wlde financial srarnments, 2) fund 

financial statement s, and 3) notes to th" financial sta tements. This report also contains other supplementary information in 
addition ro the basic financial statements themse lves. 

Governmen't-wide Financia l Statemenh, lhe gavemment-w/de [/none/a l sl;at~ments are deslened to provide readers with a 
broad uvt~rview of th P. 1 ow nsh i p1 s ti na ncP.-sr in ~ m a.n ner s i mi la r'I to a private-sector bus:i ness, 

Thf!.stotem,mt af net position pre,ents inforTPation on al) of the Township 's assets, deferred ou tflows of r,,sources, liabilities, 
and deferred Inflows of resources, with the mma,nlng amount reported as net position. Over time, Increases or decr!!ases in 

net position may serve as a usefu l indicator of whet her the financial position of t he Township is improvin,i or deteriorating. 

Thestoteml'ntofactieities presents Information showi~g how the government'~net position changed during the most recent 

fiscal year. All changes In nt.'t position are reported as soon as the- underlying event giving rise to the chanec occurs, 
regard/es.~ of the riming of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and e~penses are reported In this statement for some items 
that will on ly rc!u lt in Ga,h flows In futwre fi lca l periods (e.g., uncollected laxes and earned but unused vacation leave), 

lloth of the eov<!rnrn@nt wide financial statcmonts disti nguish fonct ions of the I owns hip tha t arc principally supported by 
t;ixes ;ind lntr. r&overrvnent;il revenues (governmental acr/vitlesJ from other functions that are intended to recover .ill or a 
significan t portion of their costs th rough usc:r foes and charg11, /bus/nc,ss type octivit/c,s). Th<! governmenta l activities of the 
lownship ]nciude general government, public safety, public works, plannlng and zoning, and culture and recreation. I he 
business-type activities of the, Township arc water and sewer, 

The 60Vernment•wide financial statemenh Include not on ly the Township ibelf (known as the primary government ), but al,o 
a lega lly separate en tity for which the I ownship Is ·flnandal ly acco1intable. ~inanc lal Information for the Lconomic 
Developmen t Corporation component unit is reported separiltely from the financia l information presented for the primary 
goV!'rnment Itself. 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Management's DisGussion and Analysis 

Fund Financial Statements. A fund Is a grouping of related accounts that Is used to maintain oontro l over resources that 
have been segrngatod for specific activi ties or objectives. The Township, li~c other st.Jtc and local governments, uses fund 
account ing to ensure and demonstrate compliance with flnan~e-re lated leeal requirements. All of the funds of the 1 owns hip 

can be div ided into three categories : governmental. proprietary, and fiduciary funds . 

Governmental Fu nds. Govemmentol fund, ;,re used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 

activities in the B0Vemment·wicie financia l statementli. However, unlike the eovernment-wide financial statement., 
governmental fund financial suitemenls focus on near-t~rm inflows and outflows of sp~ndabli, resourc<'s, as well as on 
balances of spendable resources availab le at th" end of the fiscal year. Such lnlbrmation may be useJul In eva luating a 
goverrtmenes near-term fimmcing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government -wide financial statements 1t rs useful to 
compare tho in formation prnsented for govurnmentn/ funds with similar Informat ion presented far governrntJnto/ activities in 

the governmen t-Wide fi nancia l statements. By doll'\g so, readers may better understand the lr1ng"term ln,pact of the 
government's near term flnanclne decision~. i;oth the eovcrnmental fund balance sheet and the eovernmental fu nd 
statement of revenues, e~penditures, and changes In fund balances provide a reoonctllat ion to facilitate this comparison 
betwc<,n govemmdrito/ furirJs and gavarnm11ntol actlvitiC!>, 

The Township maintains m1merous individual governmental funds. Information 1s presented s~paratcly In the governmental 
funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds sta tement of revenues, expenditures, and chan~es in fund balances for 
th~ general fund, public safety special rcvcnl.Je fund, and the, local roads maintenance capit:i l projects fund, all of which arc 

considered to be major funds. Data from the other govemrnental fund• a<e combined Into a ,Ingle, a1rnregat<.'d presentation. 
The combin ing statements refe rred to earlier in connect ion with nonmajor and flduclarv fund, are presented hnm~diah:ly 
followlne the required supplementary lnfonnatlon. 

rhe I owns hip actopt; an annual appropriated bUdBet for It , general rur,cl and spe,:ial revenue funds.. ~udeetary comparison 
statements or schedul("< have been provided for these funds to der,,onstr,i te compl iance with the budgets. 

Proprietary Funds. The Township has two types of proprietary fund. En terprise funds are used to report the same functions 
presented as bu,;iness rype actlvitle il'I the government wide tll\ancial sta tements, only In more deta1J. I he I ownshlp uses an 
enterprise fund to account fo r its comb1ned water and sewer operations, which is cons idered to be• a major fund of the 
loWnshlp, In ternal s11rvict fund, are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate cost.s internally among the 

Townsh1p's various /unctions. The Townsh ips uses an internal service fund to account for its Insurance. Because this -;ervice 
predominately benefits ~overnmental rather than business type fun ctions, It has been Included within governmental 
actlvitieG in the government-wide financial statements, 

Fiduciary f unds. Fiduplarv funds are used to account for resourc~s held for the ben~flt of pij rttes ou tside the government, 
F]cjuclary funcis •fl! not rdlected In the government wlcfo fi nancial statements because the resources of those funds are not 
avallable to support the lownshlp's own programs. I he accoun ting used for fiduciary funds Is much like that used for 

proprietary funds . 

Notes to the Financial Statements, The notes provide additional information that i~ essential lo a full under:;tanding of the 
da ta provided ,n t~ s<>ve rnment•wide and fund financial statements. 

Other Information. In addition to the ba~ lt frna!'lcial statements ,ll'ld accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 
mquired ,upplementory information. Thi>, is llmirad to th" management's discussion and ana lysis and schedul"s conc~rning 
the I ownshlp's progress In funding Its obligat ion 'to provide pension and oth<!r postemploymont bandit s to certain 

employees. 
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Gove rnment-wide Flna nd a l Ana lysis 

As previously lated, net position may serve over t ime a, a useful indicator of a &o\lernment's financia l position. Jn the case 

of the Township, Jssets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded li abi lities and deterred inflows of resources by 
$/4,0t.8,383 at the clo,;e of the most recentfaca l year. 

Assets 

Current an d other assets 
Capita l asset,, net 

Total assets 

Delem id o~tllows 

of resources 

Liabi lities 

Current li3billtits 
Long-te rm d0bt 
Other noncurmnt I abllltlcs 

Total liabiliti es 

Deferred Inflows 

of resources 

Net p0s lt10n 

Net investment in 
cap ital assets 

Restrictfld 
Um~strl c;led (deficit) 

Total net position 

C.overnmental Act ivities 

2020 2019 

$ 33,788,672 $ 30,696 ,331 
34,975,363 33,224,301 
68,764,035 63,920 ,6-32 

2,880,662 1,924,539 

3,3'.>6.104 2,919,814 
7,295,397 7,433,087 

10,684,362 11,602,308 
21,335,863 21,955,209 

16,209,6.90 14,081,0:W 

31,891,412 10,253,665 
S,565,7 4 4,425,236 

(3,358,022) f4,1!69i9S21 

$ 34,099,144 S 29 ,808,949 

Net Position 
8usiness-type Activities Total 

2020 2019 2020 2019 

$ 16,671,341 $ 16,034,224 $ 50,460,013 $ 46,730.555 

32,760,560 32,843,679 67,735 ,923- 66,067,980 
49,431,901 48,877,903 118,195;936 U.2,798,535, 

315,611 242,001 3,196,273 2,166,540 

3,142,880 2,699,013 6,498,984 ',,QJ.8,82/ 
5,529,078 6,162,399 12,824,475 U,595,486 

960,620 1,04~.~04 11,644,982 12,641,812 
9,632,578 9,906,916 30,968,441 31,862,US 

155,6% 16,36~.38~ 14,081,013 

27,484,013 26,932,047 59,375,425 57,185,712 
5,565,754 4,425.236 

12,475,226 12,280.941 9,117,204 7,410;989 

S 39,959,239 s 39,212,988 $ 74,058 ,383 $ 69,021 ,937 

The largest po rt ion of the. Township's net position (80.2% or $59,375,425) reflects Its Investment in capital assets (e.g., land 

and easemcnrs, construct ion in progress, building~ and improvements, Infrastructure, and machlnury and cquiprnont) loss 
anv related debt used ·to ;icqulre those assets that are sti l l outstanding. The Township uses t hese i;apltal il,set to prov1de 

serv ices to ci tli;:ns; conseq uently, these assets arc not availab le for future pending. Al though the Township's net lnvcstmcnt 
In capi tal a~,et s is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that lhe resources needed to repay this de bt n1ust be 
providl!d from ot her sources, since the cii pltiil assets themselves cannot be used to liquida te these liabil ities. 

An addit ional portion of the Township'~ nllt po~lt lon (7.5% or $5,565,754) reprc,cnts resource, tha t ¥C s~bjcct to externa l 
restrictions on how they may be used. I he remaining ba lance of unrl!str/cted r1et posit/or, (1;2.3% or $9,l11,l04) may be ~•ed 
to mi,d thi, gOv<!rnmo,nt':,ongoing obligatiom.. 

Governmenta l activ iti e, revenues incr<;,ased by approximately 3,2% fro m the prior yea r, largely due to a slight increase lo the 
talulb le value of propert y t a~ coll.,ct lons, and ~cdMal grants to assist with the Coronavlru, ICOV ILJ 19) pandemic. 

Governmental activities e~penses decreased bV appro~tmately 23.4% from the prior year, la rge ly due to the CDVID-19 
pandemiG, wh1ch haltt'd the particlpat,011 of ~roBram activi ties, bui lding permits, and the do sure of 1 owns hip offices . 
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Business-type actlvttres r·evenues and expenses decreased slightly, by approxlniately 2.3% and 1.3%, rP..spectlvely, from the 

prior vear, remaining re latively consistent. 

Change in Net Position 

Governmental ActMties Business-type Activit es Tot al 

2020 l019 1020 2019 2020 2019 
Revenues 

Program revenues: 

Char6es f-or services s 6,956,001 $ 6,684,247 $- 13,897,985 $ 13,283,992 $ 20,853,986 $ 19,968,239 

Gr ants/con tributions: 

Operating 429,217 700,137 429,217 700 ,137 

Capi tal 618,820 879,011 582,960 1,514,063 1,201,780 2,393,074 
General reven ues: 

Property taxes 13,632,825 12.,525,684 B,632,825 12,525,684 
State shared revenue 3,302,224 3,311,/53 3,302,224 3,311,753 
Unrc:,lricted i nvestment 

earnings 102,235 156,733 68,641 100,846 170,876 257,579 
Total revE!! nU@s 25,041,322 24,257,565 14,549,586 14,898,901 39,590,908 39,156,466 

Expenses 

General government 3,391,810 J,~66,1:,38 3,391,810 /,566,~38 
Pub lic safety 11,934,564 13,653,191 11,934,564 13,653,191 
Public wo rks 3,16~,9J2 3,363,362 3,l6S,932 3,363,362. 
Planninc and zoning 615,807 669,289 615,807 669,289 

Culture and rP.crP.atlon lh42,958 l,/~9,681 l,t>42,9.'>8 1,1~9,681 
Interest on debt 100,056 61,737 100,056 61,737 
Water and sewer 13,803,33~ 13,985,622 13,803,335 13,98.'>-,622 

Total expenses 2:0,751,127 27,073,798 13,803,335 13,985,622 34,554,462 41,059,420 

Ch~nge In net posiHon, 

bdor~ translers 4,290,195 (2,1! 16r233) 746,251 913",279 5,036,446 (1,902,954) 

Transfers (293,750) 293,750 

Change. in n@t position 4,290,195 13,109,983) 746.151 1,107,029 5,036,4~6 11,902,954) 

Net posi tion: 

Gc-e111ninP, of year 29,808,949 32,918,932 39,212,988 38,005,9'>9 69,021,93/ /0,924,891 

End of year $ 34,099,144 $ 29,808,949 $ 39,959,239 $ 39,212,988 $ )4,058,383 $ 69,021,93 I 
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Ptnandal Analysis of the Townshlp's Funds 

A; noteci earlier, the I ownshlp uses fund ,iccountlng to en,ure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related l<1fl<1I 

requirements. 

Governmental Funds. The focus of the Township's governmental fund, Is to provid~ informati on on ne~r-term in fl ows, 

outflows, and balances of ,,pendab/e resovr-es. Such Information 1s risefu l in ai..-esslng the rownship's flnancine 
requirernent.!i. In partic:u lar, ur1os.~igried fund balont~ may serve a.!i a ust:fu1 rn(:asure of a -goven1me,r,t's net resourc~s 

available for spending at till'! end of th~ fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fisca l year, th~ I ownshlp's governmental funds reported eombil'leci cndln8 fund balances of 
$14 1588,•41, an increase of $2,179,682 from the prior ~ar. Approximately 2.7.0% of this tot/ll amount (or $3,939 1969) 

constitutes unmslgm:d fund balan~", which is ava ilable for spending at the government's discretion. I hu remainder of fund 

balance is nonspendable, rest ricted, committed or assigned 10 Indicate t hat it is nnt available for new spending. 

l he general fund is the chief operating fund of the Township. At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fun<;! balance of 
the gent ml fund was $~,641>,311, of which $3,939,969 was unassigned. As a measu,e of the eenCral fund's liquidity, It may be 
useful to c<impare unassigned f;md ba lance to total gr.ner.al fund e~penditures and transfers out . UnassignP.d fund b.alancr. 

represents 28.8% of total general fund cxpcnditLJres and t ransfers out . Overall, the fund balance of the general fund 
increased by $116,642 for the year, resu lting In the actual increase in fund balance eicceeding the budgeted change by 
$1,185,260. 

Other factors affecting the gent!ra l fund fln,1ncla l results for the year inclucie: 

Total g,:,nera l fund revenues decreased approximately 4,5% compareci to the pr[or year. Most of the g('neral fund 

revenues are provided by property tax co lll\otions, which were highacby 4.19'!1, tomp;ired to last fiscal year. HoWE!Ver, clue 
to the Coronavlrus pandemic shut down in 2010, most services and programs were ceased, which largely contributed to 
the cJccrea,., In reven~e. Another area of revenue rL-ductlon Is the Interest return on the I own ship investments, which 
showed a 3&% decline from prior year. 

Total general fund expendi tures decreased approximat ely 13% comp3red to thr. prior year. Mo,t of the general fund 
expendltL1res dcclihe was due to tht! re allocation of personnel, diminl~ht!d program cxpt,nse, and a halt In hiring 
seasonal employees due to the shut down of Township offices and programs in response to the Coronavirus pandemic. 

I he I ownshlp transferred $6.0 mill Ion to the pL1b lic safety special revenue fund t0 ,~pport its operation,;, 

I he public safety specla l revenue fund hac;I an enplne fun\J balance of $3,149,2~6. rhis balance Is an increase from the 
previous year of $1,012,949 due to ;m incn,dse in gramt funds received from !hi! C• rondvirus Aid, Relid, and Economic 

Security (CARt I Act, and a decrease In departmenlal expenditure, and relaled personnel costs attributed by the COVID-19 
pancfomft. The Town,h1p previously elect~d to maintain these opl:!rations under a ~ingle Sl;!parate fund to accurately re flect 

the true total costs of t he pub lic safety department and account for the re lated special voted property tax millaee. 

I he Local Roads Maintenance capital projects fund Is used to account for the construction of local roads within the I ownshlp. 
The fund had expenditures .of $450,882 during the year that were financed by the issuance of a general nblip,at ion bond in the 

prior yearc 
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

I he I ownshlp takes an active role In monitoring al l departmental needs and budget requests throwghout the fls ~a l year. I he 

Township will continue to find ways to reduce costs and still provide the cm,nt lal services to the ci t izens of Pi ttsfie ld. 

Ad ual Over Percenta ge 

Flllil (Under) Final Over {Under) 
Budget Actual Budget Fina l Budget 

Re.Vt-!nues $ 13,475,646 $ 13,824,163 $ 348,517 2.59% 

Lxpcnditurcs 1,905,389 /,068,65/ (836,/321 10.;,8% 

other financing sources (uses) (6,628,875) (6,628,864) (11) • .• •% 

Intergovernmental revenues were over budget by $479,842 due to receipt of Coronavlrus Aid, Relief, and Economic: Security 

(CARLS) Act funds , All other revenue, were re latively consistent with the Jmended budeetamounts . 

Slenificant chaneus In o riginal budectud r"wnues to flna l amended budgeted revenues wNe larg.,ly due to a $333,200 
dccre;ise in budgeted program revenue. This budget amendment was due to the state-w ide shuf down of ;ictiVitie:. due to 

the Coronavirus pandemic. 

Expend itu res wen:, under the amended budget amounts. Some of the contributing factor.. were a, follows; 

Acll1a l over Percentage 
Final (Und11rl Final Over fU nder) 

BudgeJ Actual B~dget Fina l Budget 

Pub lic wo rks • 

Hlehways, st reets and drain, $ 1,499,931 $ 1,1/5,91, $ (323,956) 21.60% 

Public works e.i<pe~dlturcs were ur.,dcr budeet for hiehways a11d streets. I his wai due to redlrectlng road project$ to be 
funded through t he Local Mainte,nance Bond _ 

Sign ificant change! in original budgeted expendit ures to f inal amended budgeted e~penditUres were largely due to a 

$285,069 decrease in budeeted hlehw~ys, st reets and drains. I h1s budget amendment was d~e tu road projects belne funded 
through bond funds r~lated 10 the local maintenance program. 
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Capital Asse t and Debt Administration 

Ca pi tal As set s. At the end of fiscal 2020, t he loWnsh\p had $61,/35,923 invested In a broad ranee of net capital assets 

inc luding land and ea cmen ts, construct ion in progre s, building; and lmprovcmcnl!i, Infrast ructure, and machinery and 
equipment. 

Governme ntal Aclivities 

C.. pital /\$sets \Net of Depreci~ tlon) 

8uslness-1ype Ac.tivltles Total 

2020 2019 2020 
Land a nd 

easements $ 25,595,400 $ 25,437,573 $ 379,578 
Const ruction in progress 225,199 1,551,851 
Buildings/improvements 938,212 1,015,660 316,437 
lnfrJstruct urc 6,753,794 5,160,148 29,803,962 
Machiner/ and equipment 1,462,/58 1,.610,920 708,/32 

Tota l capital assets, net $ 34,9 /5,363 S 33,224,301 $ .32, 160,560 

Major capita l asset purchases duri ng the current fiscal year Included: 

3 Chevro let lahoc's 
1 ~ord Fusion, l Grand Cherokee, and l Dodger Charr,er 
l Su nbe lt M,m.ige Board 
~latt Koad Greenway 

2019 2020 2019 

$ 379,578 $ 25,974,978 $ 25',817,151 
227,023 1,777,0SO 227,023 
348,081 1,2,54-,649 1,363,741 

31,082,457 36,557,756 36,242,605 
806,540 2,1/1,490 2,411,460 

$- 32,843,679 $. 67,135,923 $ 66,06/,980 

Addition.ii Information on l he I ownshtp 's ,apital asset ai;t ivlty m~Y be found In Note ~ of the notes to the fi nancia l 
statement..s. 

long-term o ~bt, At the end of the curren t fisc:al year, t hP. T awn sh ip had total long•term debt I excluding compensa t1'd 

abscnce1 and uMmorti2ed premiums! ourn:al'ldlng of $10,099,944, which i'> backed by th(• full faith and credit of the 

gove,:n rnent. 

Outstanding Debt 

Governme nta l Activities Business-type Activities Total 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 

General obliga tion bonds s 3,664,000 s 4, 000,000 s 5,331,080 s 5,976,080 s 8,!l9S,080 $ 9,976,080 

Spec I al a~cssment debt w/ 
governmc:HJl commitm~nt. 1,104 864 1,;;>19 <7 42 1,104 864 1~19,742 

Total outstand ing debt $ 4,768,864 $ 5,219,742 $ 5,331,080 s 5,976,080 $ 10,099,944 $ 11,195,822 

rhe Township has an AA- ratlne from Standard & l'oor's on rts eenera l obligat ion bonds. 

Additional Information on the I owmhlp', long•term debt actlvtty can be found In Note 8 of the note, to the financial 
, tatement..s. 
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Eco nomic Factors a nd Next Year' s Budget and Rales 

I he I ownshlp' s expenditure bUdBet for niixt fisca l yiiar Is $6"/9,549 higher than the current year amended budget which 
inc ludes $736,280 of fund balance that will be used for capital expendi turl:S, Revenues are budgeted to be $451,887 higher. 
I his increase In the revenue budBet ,s due to a 6% growth in the lownshlp's ta,able value rn property ta. revenue foriisca l 
year 2021. As we havo, started our fi sca,I year 2021, we see budgeting in t he era of COVID-19 requires consideration of a 

number of unprecedented variables, both In terms of revenues and expenditures - all while dealing wi th the day -to-day 
impacts of the Coronavirus pandemic. The Township will be facing budget arn,,ndments for the 2021 budget year a, an 

extraordinary shut down continues, the economy and hieh unemployment rates bring significant challenges. I he r ownshlp's 

goal is 10 prese rve jobs with no ,.,duct ion in service levels and will moni tors expenses close ly. 

Contact ing the Township 's Management 

This financial report is Intended to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and Investors with a general overview of t he 

lownship's finances and to show th(• lownship'; accountabi lity fo r t he money It receives. If you have question. about this 
report or need addit ional intormat lon, you a re welcome to cont act the Clerk's Office. at.(134) 822-3120. 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHI P, MICHIGAN 

• Stat4!mtnt of Net PositlM 
December 31, 2020 

Component 
U,lt 

Prlmarv Govern m""t Econ.,...Tc 

Governmental Busl ne-ss,.typi!! Developlll eot 
ActMffes ActMtles Total CorporatlO<t 

A"5et5 
C21'!:n iind t:'llsh equN~li!!!nb: s 24,469,080 $ 13,727,648 38,196,728 8,952 

Re<eivabl,:., S,210,024 2,266,701 11.476,725 
Internal balances (69,642) 69,642 

Other assets 179,210 607,350 7.66,560 
Ca~llal assets not being depreciated 25,820,599 1,931.429 27 ,752,028 

C-apltiil assets. be.ingdepreQlated1 net 9,154,764 30,829,131 39~S3,S95 

T,;,tal assets 68,764,035 49,431,901 118,19>,936 8,952 

DefetreO outflows or resources 
Deferred pension amounts 2,571,126 216,342 2,798,468 
Oeft:.rred ether postemployme:nt benefit amounh 308,536 34,736 340,272 

Deferred charge on bond refunding 54.533 54,533 

Total deferred outflows of resources l ,880,662 31S,611 3,196,271 

Uabllltles 

A,«i~nts payabl~ 1,992,399 3.0~.758 5,084,157 S,952 
At<ru•d liabilities 1.,284,373 51,lll 1,335,4.95 

Unearned revenJJe 79,332 79,332 

IDng•term d•bt: 

DuewJthln one year 1,983,llO 785,000 Z,768,120 
Due rn mo re than Or)e year 5,311,277 4 ,744,0'18 10,05&,355 

Other 11,bll~le-s, due in mQre than one year. 
Not pe11Slon liability 9,853,944 867,129 10,72.1,073 

Net other postemployment benefit llabil~y 830,418 93,491 BB,909 

Tot,,f lloblill;les 21,335,1163 .'3,632,578 30,968.441 8,952 

Oeferre,1 lnflQWS Qf reswr<e> 
Deferred ponMn amount:. 1 ,171 ,7 59 103,113 1,274,872 
Deferred oth,r postemployment benef~ amaun)'l 467 ,050 52.582 519,632 
Taxe& levied but. intended for 

sub,oq(/ent period 1.4,570,881 14,570,881 

T,;,tal deferred outflow> of n,,ources 16,209,690 155,695 16,365,385 

Net position 
Net investment In caprtal aiSrls 31,891,412 l7,4J!,1,013 59,375,425 

Re>trfcted fer; 
General gwernment 31!6,459 386,459 

Public ,afety 2,55.9,22.8 2,559,~28 
Publ ic works 509,412 509,412 

Cu ~ure ;md r•cr• at ion l t246t672 l ,"246,&72 

D•bt service 664,440 664,440 

Other jpVerornental program~ 199,543 199,543 
Un restricted (deficit) 13,358,0221 12,475,226 9,117,204 

Tolill net position s 34,099,'144 s 39.959,239 74,058,383 

The accomponylng notes ore an integral part of these basic flnoncial stotement,. 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSH IP, MICHIGAN 

• Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Program Revenues 

Operaling Capllal Net 
Charges Grants and Grants and (Expense) 

Functions/ Ptograa'.ls .Expenses far Service..s Contribu tions Contri.butioris Revenue 

Prim c1ry government 
Governmental adivilil::!~~ 

General ~ov~rnrne ri L $ 3,.i!ll,810 $ 6,068,540 $ 299,626 $ $ 2,97b,356 

Public ,af•tv 11,914,Sb4 394 ,277 129,591 .51!2,197 ll~,828,499) 

Publ c works 3,1GS",932 345,895 31,623 12,788,414) 

Pla nnln~ and ,oning 615,807 88,321 (S27,48fi) 

Cultu re and recreation 1,542,958 58,968 5,000 ( l ,478,9!JO) 

l rllerest m1 lonP, ~l~rrn delJL 100,056 (100,056) 

Total government.a l ;1ctivlU~:5' 20, 7$1, 117 &,956,IJQl 429,.1.17 alH,820 lll,747,IJ89) 

Bu:i inr.-ss-~w pe o:u:liv ili~s -
W~ter :and 'iPWP.r l3,803,.H5 13,8~7,985 582,!)60 677,610 

TotiiJ I primary governmerrt s 34,554,462 $ 20,853 ,98b $ 429,217 $ 1,201,780 s 112,cl69,479j 

Compor,ent unit 

Ecur1ornic Deve loprne11L Corpt>ra~iun s s s s s 

continued .. , 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSH IP, MICHIGAN 

• Statement of Activ ities 
For the Vea r Ended December 31, 2020 

Changes in net position 

Net (ex pense) reven ue 

GenE!ro:11 revenues: 

Property taxes 
Stale s ha red rev~no~ 
Unrest rlct"@d inv~stm~nt earning~ 

Total e~neral revenues 

Change in net position 

Net posilion, beg inning of ye~, 

Net position , end of year 

Governmental 

Activities 

s (12,747,089) 

13,632,825 

.3,302,224 

1011235 

17 ,037,284 

4,290,195 

29,808,949 

$ 34,099,144 

Tl1 e accompanyinc notes a re an lntecral part ol these baslc fina ncial statements, 

31 

Primary Government 

Business-type 

Activities 

677,610 

68,641 

68",641 

746,251 

39,212,988 

$ 39,959,239 

s 

$ 

Total 

(12,059,479) 

13,632,825 

J,302,224 
170,876 

171105192.5 

5,036,446 

69,021,937 

74,058,383 

s 

$-

Component 

Unit 

conc luded. 



PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP 47 
Board of Trustees  
Minutes for a Regular Meeting  
Held June 9, 2021 
Attachment 1 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

32 



PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP 48 
Board of Trustees  
Minutes for a Regular Meeting  
Held June 9, 2021 
Attachment 1 

 

/ 
/ 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

33 



PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP 49 
Board of Trustees  
Minutes for a Regular Meeting  
Held June 9, 2021 
Attachment 1 

 

PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSH IP, MICHIGAN 

• Balance Sheet 
GovemmenMI Fund1 

December 31, 2020 

NonmaJor Tdtol 
Publl o Loc.-1 Road, Gow,rnmuU! GovernmeJ1tal 

Gen0<al Safety MaJnte.nanc.e Funds Funds 
J\s.i;ets-

Cash and c-ash eq uivalsnts 11,464,646 4,977,048 $ 491 ,642 6,361,078 $ 23,294,414 

ReceiVables: 
Accounts 4ao,29s 324,136 101,944 520,0W 1,376,407 
5p11!.d:ei I a:ssl!'s!i:i m@rih 483,912 463,912 

Ta~•• 4,634,342 2.174.i16 541,147 7,349,705 

Ou~ from othie r fund'!.: Sl,588 734 37 ,776 91,098 
Pr@paid lt@ms 541274 1 21,744 3",192 17.!l,11 0 

Total assets s 16,636,148 ' 
7,597,878 $ 593, 586 7,947,134. ~ 3~774,746 

Uablll!Jes 
Accounts payable $ 513,751 s 171,708 s 10,748 s 3.36,571 s 1,032,778 
Accrued IJa bJlit ie, 108,718 248,967 844,545 1,202,230 

Due to other fu"d' 41,144 290 l.7S9 46.734 90,957 
Due to other Jl<)vernments 36,030 % ,030. 
Escrow poyable 682,196 8 ,387 590,583 

Unearned revenue 41,·0l& 38,314 79,'332 

Total liabilities 1,422,857 459,279 13,537 1,236,237 3,131 ,910 

Deferre.d Inflow~ of resources 
Unavailable reve nue.-

Special ass.!!:ssm!!nls 483 ,913 4lB,913 

Taies levied but Intended for 

-subsequent pe rr od 9,567,980 3,989,343 1,013,558 14,570,881 

Total defened Inflows of resources 9,567,980 ',,989,343 1,497,471 15,054,794 

Fund balan,es 
Nonsoendal>le - prepaid kerus S4.274 l.l.l,244 ~.l9l. 179.210 
Restrloto.d for: 

Gene.rai g_tJVff!.l"J'ln,@11t 386,459 386, 4.59 

Publfc safety 2,556,036 2,556,036 
Public 1•1ori<s 509.412 509,412 
cu lture arid recre.ation 1,246,67< 1.246,6/l 

Debt service 210,618 210,61S 
Cap~al impro,emenu 580,049 580,049 
Drug ~nfor<•ment 
Right otwav 154,568 184,!!68 
ro lic• tra.Hlinggnnts lU4S 11,345 
Donations 1,200 2.130 3,330 

Committed fo r: 
Publ ic safety 2,764,037 2,764,037 
Cap~al projects 500,000 250,000 301,037 1,051,037 
Budget stabilizat ion 965,000 965,000 

Una.,Jgned 3,939,969 3,939,969 

Total fund balances 5,645,311 3,1A9.256 580.049 5,213, 426 14, 588,042 

Tobi 11.abllltl~, di!!ferred lnflo'!N'i of 
resources and fund balance., s 16,6%,148 s 715971878 s 593, 586 s 7,947,134. s 32,774,746 

The a ccompa nyl ne notu :a re- ii n integral part of these basic: fin a ncfa I state men ts. 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, M ICHIGAN 

• Reconciliation 
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to Net Position of 
Governmental Activities 
December 31, 2020 

Fund ba la nee s - tot a I gove rnme nta I funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 

net position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources, 

and therefore a"' not reported in the fund statement. 

Capital assets not being depreda ted 

Capital assets being depreciated, net 

Internal service funds are used by management to cl1a rge the costs ofcertain equipment 

usage to Individual governmental fund,. The assets and l!a bill t!es of the iriternal serVice 

funds are included in governmental activities In the statement of net position. 

Net position of governmental Internal service fund 

Portion of internal service fund net position 

attributed to business-type funds 

Unavai lable revenue is not a cunent financia l resource and. therefore is nor 

reported as revenue in the governmental funds. 

Certain liabilit ies, such as bonds payable, are not due and payable 

In the current period, and therefore are not reported fn the funds. 
General obligation bond and speelal assessment debt payable 

Unamortized premium l!ln bonds 

Accrued Interest on bond and spe~ial assessment debt payable 

Compensated absences 

Certain pension and other post.employment benefit-related amounts, such as the 

net pension and otlier postemploym.ent benefitllabllities and deferred amounts 

are not due and payable in the a.Jrrent period or do not represent current finandal 

resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Net pension liability 

Deferred outflows related to the net pension liability 

Deferred ihflows related to the net pension liabi lity 

Net other postemptoyment benefit liability 

Deferred outflows related to the net other postemploymentbeneftt liability 

Deferred Inflows related to the net other postemployment benefit liabi lity 

1\Jet position of governmental activities 

The aecompanyrng notes are an lhteg(al part of tt,ese basiefinancla l statements. 
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$ 14,588,0•12. 

25,820,599 
9,154,764 

893,043 

(73,220) 

483,913 

[4,768,864) 
(20,173) 

(30,091) 

(2,50.6,160) 

(9,853,944) 

7.,572,17.6 

(1.171, 759) 
(830,418) 
308,536 
(467,050) 

S 34,099.144 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSH IP, MICHIGAN 

• Statement of Revenues, expendit1.1res and Changes in ~und Balances 
G\lvernmental Fund~ 

For the Year rnded December 31, 1020 

Nonmajar Toh! 

Publi< Local Roads Govefnl)len tal Governmental 

Gener-at Safety Ma In t~n-!n te funds f und s 
Revenues 

Taxes and speda l assessments $ 8,129,773 $ 4,545,979 $ $ 1,0ll, 880 s 13,697,632 

L Ice nsei a 11d p • rin Its 95,282 33,582 1,896,738 2,025,602 
lntergo1,1ernm@ntal '.l,S.'!S,3~9 661,451 81,1,16 4,27M41i 

Chal'l,es tor servlres 1.414,060 11,389 1,958,099 3,383,548 

nna, ~nd forfal ture, 6,ijOIJ .57,HlS M,6l5 
rmnr.hls-!! fees 498,414 498,414 

Interest income 84,894 6,756 11567 9,018 102.235 

Don:illon, 5,000 26 5, 026 
Ol her ,-even ue.s 54,571 31,5S4 51,7ll6 14~,911 

Tota l re"cnu ei 13,824,163 5,349,552 115(,J 5,030,147 24,205,41,9 

El<pendft\Jres 

Current: 

G eoiP. ra I govl!!'tn me.nt 3,24~,973 31,401 3,27~.'174 

Public safety 104,178 10.049,591 1,216,628 11,370,397 

Public wor~s l,l 75,975 1 ,905,153 3,081,128 

Planninfl and m ning fil0 t22::! 62U,2U 

Culture and recreation 1,121,49G %6,458 l,4ll7,954 

Corilln8endes 75,000 75,000 

Debt servic~, 

Principal 336,000 114,8?8 450,8?8 

lnl~res\ ilr1d fi,c;,I th~r(les 92,250 .13.184 115,434 
tap,tal outli!V 296,563 214,010 450,882 584,905 1 ,546,.ifi(J 

Total expendit ures 7,068,657 10,263,601 450,882 4,242,607 22,025,747 

Revenues over (under! expe~ditures 6,755, 506 (4,914,049) 1449,315) 787,540 2,179,682 

Other financing sources (uses) 

Trans-fsr:, in 6,000,000 701,866 6,701,866 

Tnmshns oul (6,628,8&4) (73,002} (6,701,866) 

Tota l other fi nM t ing.sour<~ (usesJ 16,628,864 l 5,926,998 701,866 

Net change in fllnd bal~nces 126,642 1,012,949 (449,315) 1,489,406 2,179,682 

Fund ba lances, beginning of ve-ar 5,518,669 2,136,307 1,029,364 3,724,020 j2.40a,l60 

Fund b i1 la 11cest en d of ye-ar $ 5,645,311 $ 3,149,256 $ 5!!0,049 s 51213,426 s 14.588,042 

n,e acrompanyinc notes are an lntecral part of these baslc financial sta\ements, 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Reconciliation 
Net Change In Fund Balances of Governmental Funds tc 
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Net change ih fund balances - total ·governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different 
because: 

Collection of special assessments levied in the prior years provides current 

fina ndal gain in the funds, but do not affect ne \ position. 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expendltures. However, in the 

statement of activities, the cost of those assets Is allocated over their 
estltl'lated useful lives and repor't<!d as depreciation expens" 

Capital assets purchased/constructed 

DepreciatJon expen;e 

Bond proceeds provide wrr nt financial r.:sources to governmental funds in th.: 
period issued, but Issuing bonds Increases long-term liabil ities In the statement of 

net posltion. Repayment of bond principal is an expe nditure in the govsmmenta l funds, 

but the repayment reduces long-term liabilltles in the statemenrof net position. 
Prlndpal payments on long-term debt 

Accrued Interest expense on bonds and t l1e amortization of bond premlllrns and 
deferred losses are not rec0(ded by governmental funds, but a re reported under 

interest and fiscal charges for purposes of het position. 
Change in accrued int.,restpayable oh bond and spl!cial assessm.,ntdebt 

Amortization of premrum 

Internal service f unds are used by management to charge the costs of medical 

insurance to incffvidual governmental funds. The net revenues (expe.nsl!) 

attributable to those fu(lds is reported with governmental activities. 

Opera ting loss in ilitemal servlce fund 
Interest income from governmenta l internal service fund 

Internal serv ice fund change in net position accounted for in business-type activities 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of 

current financial resources and t herefore are nor reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. 

Change in the net pension liability and related deferred amounts 

Change in net other postemployment benellt liability and related deferred amounts 

Change in the accrual for mmpensated absences 

Change in net p,;,sition ,;,f g,;,v11mmental ,ctiviti"-• 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these basic flnancla l statements. 
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$ 2,179,682 

(14,041) 

Z,793,283 
(1,042,221) 

450,878 

13,137 

2,241 

(14,892) 

1,187 
1,110 

8,388 
226,872 

(315,429) 

$ 4,290.195 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Statement of Revenues, Expenditu{es and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual • General Fund 

For the Year Ended December3l, 2020 

AotUal Over 
Origina l final (Under) f ina l 

Budget Budget Actua l Budget 

Revenues 
Taxes and special assessments $ &,080,349 $ 8,080,349 $ 8,129,773 $ 49,424 

Licenses and permits 128,300 78,300 95,282 16,982 
In tergovernmen ta I 3,293,812 3,055,527 3,535,369 479,842 
Charges for services 1,754,970 1,513,270 1,414,060 (99,210) 
Fines and forfeitures 10,000 10,000 6,800 (3,200) 
Franchise fees 590,000 590,000 498,414 (91,586) 
Interest income 55,000 34,000 84,894 50,894 
Donations 10,000 10,000 5,000 {5,000) 
Ot her revenues. 104,200 104,200 54,571 (49,629) 

Total re11en ues 14,026,631 1.3,475,64& 13,824,163 348,-S17 

Expenditu res 

General government: 

Township board 72,850 71,865 69,718 (2,147) 
Township super11isor 145,6.50 lll0,635 139,809 (826) 
Elect ions 275,506 301,724 291,517 (10,207) 
finance 367,175 349,825 349,273 (552) 

Assessor 576,065 521,165 439,853 (81,312) 
Township clerk ll06,185 374,235 362,162 (12,0731 
Cormnunlty developtmmt 411,288 367,188 352,924 (14,264) 

Human resources 380,093 337,386 300,214 (37,172) 
Post employment servlces 185,000 220,000 213,266 (6,734) 
Board of review 4,312 4,312 2,973 (1,339) 

Administrative 286,000 226,994 195,882 (31.112) 

Professional services 295,000 236,940 230,259 (6,681} 
Township t reasurer 517.468 509,568 481,074 (28.494) 
Information technology 455,514 426,814 411,879 (14,935) 
Bui lding and grounds 213,600 196,600 160,837 (35,763) 
less: rei mbci r&ernent& (845,000) (963,500) (754,667) 208,833 

Total general government 3,746,706 3,321,751 3,246,973 (74,778) 

Public safety -

Property maintenance inspections 169,494 107.260 104.178 (3,082) 

P,1blic works -
Highways, streets and drains 1 785 000 1 ,499,931 1175 975 {323,956) 

contlnued ... 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Statement of Revenues, Expenditu{es and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual - General Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

AlltLJal Over 

Origina l final (Under) f ina l 

Budget Budget Actua l Budget 

Expenditures (concluded) 

Planning and -z• ning -

M unicipa l services s 711,150 $ 702,650 s 620,222 s (82,428) 

Culture ~nd recreati• n -

Park.I; and recreation 1,391,622 1,238,467 1,114,670 (123,797) 
Historica l comml ssfon 19,250 12,670 6,826 (5,844) 

Total cu lture and recreation 1,410,872 1,251,137 1,121,496 !129,641) 

Contingencies 200,000 100,948 75,000 (25,948) 

Debt service -

Principal -336,000 336,000 336,000 
Interest ,md fisc al charges 92,250 92,250 92,250 

i ota l debt service 428,250 428,2.50 428,250 

Capital out lay 420,000 493,462 296,563 (196,899) 

Total expenditures 8,871,472 7,905,389 7,068,657 (836,732) 

Revenues over expenditures 5,155,159 5,570,257 6,755,506 1,185,249 

Other financing uses 

Transfers out (6,057,875) (5,628,875) {6,628,864) (11) 

Net change in fund balance (902,716) (1,058,618) 126,642 1,185,260 

Fund balance, beginning of year 5,518,669 5,518,669 5,518,669 

Fund balance, end of vear $ 4,615,953 $ 4,460051 $ 5,645,311 $ 1,185,260 

concluded. 

The accompany1,1g notes are an integral part of tnese bas1 financial statements. 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Statement of Revenues_, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actua l , Publ ic Safety Special Revenue Fund 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Actual Over 
Original Final (Under) Final 
Budget Bl!llget Actual Budget 

Revenues 
Taxes and special assessments s 4,486,364 s 4,486,364 $ 4,545,979 s 59,615 
Licenses and permits 45,000 45,000 33,582 (11,418) 
Intergovernmental 76,000 709,740 661,451 (48,289) 
Charges for services 30,400 30,400 11,389 (19,011) 

Fines and forfeitures 145,000 95,000 57,815 (37,185) 
Interest income 10,000 10,000 6,756 (3,244) 

Donations 500 SOD 26 (474) 
Other revenue 52,000 72,754 32,554 (40,200) 

Total revenues 4,845,264 5,449,758 5,349,552 (100,206) 

Expenditures 
Public safety 11,202,063 11.427,276 10,049,591 (1 ,377,685) 
Capital outlay 296,531 215,018 214,010 (1,008) 

Total expenditures 11,498,594 11,642,294 10,263,601 (1,378,693) 

Revenues over (under) expendit~res (6,6S3,330J (6,192,536) (4,914,049) 1,278,487 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers In 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 

Transf ers out (75,000) (73 ,002) (1,998) 

Total otherfinancing sourc& (uses) 6,000,000 5,925,000 5,926,998 (1,998) 

Net change in fund bala111:e (653,330) {267,536] 1,012,949 1,276,489 

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,136,307 2,136,307 2,136,307 

Fund bal,nce, end of ye~r ~ 114821977 $ 11a&Si771 $ 3,149,256 $ 1,216,489 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these basic fl nanclal statements. 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Statein~nt of Net Pos1t io11 
Prnp,•i~rnry FUt1d5 
Do,eMbef 31, 2020 

As.sets 

fur,~n1 ;_a~-.p t-. ~ 

r-a .. lt .:and t":'1-,h t:gulvJl 1-1 rit.:;, 
Accou 11h 1ece,fv:ab le. 
Ont from of her fund$ 
11,1,,en to1y 
P, eqM irlih'!lll', 

To l ;-i t i' 11t ,!!- 11t :iss~I!.. 

Noncurrcnt assets: 

(;apit.:1 I asset» not b(!:fr,g dciprcc.i.a1ed 
Capit;;i l 1i1s:~1:;;. t,ciine ctc-prrd;1tc iJ, m:~t 

Tti lJI mmcumml .i~ts-

D IB'ferre.d outflows. of rMoorte i5. 

n("f t1rr~d pc",;icn ;unounf"i 
r.ie.re r•~d ulhe t uo~1e1npluv rmmt he.nt""lil t1 r11mml !t 

[)e rerted t..tlaIgeo111el u11ctmg 

Total de.fetrfld outflOWi of resourte:i 

Llabltrtlet. 
t·rn rco t li;:ihil~ iri:.: 

Ac.counts pc1y,iJb le 

Accrue-d li.lbtlilies 
Ac_crued interest 

n u,.. ,a cthrr fUfl d~ 

• ~u;:iw pr1y,1blt 
l omp(> r,~l1•d nb'\l•nt,.11-.., c ur ri'.!-111 porlh1'1 

Bondi payable. curr.enl portir.in 
Tntn1 tu 1 ,~ 11t tlabmtie-s 

Nu11t.u rre1 1l li;1 t1irftie:..,,: 

N!<t1 ptwsrm, lf-"hility 

N~t 01t,c1 1m,lf?1111iloynurnl heneU 11 ... 1,llit y 
Compeo~ted ..a b~nces1 net of currenl portion 
Dond-s. pay.able1 net ot cu1 rent 11ort lon 

To tal noneturent liabAUie.s: 

Total Uabilltie.s. 

Dll!lt@rred lnflow1 of rnources 

Oetarr~d pe.Mion a1nou11ts 
Oefe- 1TC'd 0H1t' r pos:tC"mp loymc-nl bo.rmf~ 'anlQUll\<; 

Tot,1 1 deferr,r,d Inflows o1 rewurces. 

Net pm.hlon 
N rd ln~~1 n ~ nf 1111 M 1111,d a"d~h 

IJ1111'.!'.!>lndcd 

Tota! net po.sl11on 

41 

Goven1m~ntal 

Bu5lnen-type- Ac1lv!tles • 

Ac1lultles • Medlal 

Wilter-i.nd ln,unnC'@ 
S...or lrrll!f"n•I Ser.win 

Enterprise fund Fund 

H,717,(;118 $ t, 174;h66 

1,)66,701 

ni ~;137 
<53 ,8\)/ 

llo,S/13 
rn,t02,4n 1,178,103 

l t~:t:H,'1l9 
50,829,13 1 

:J~ , /fi(), S(;(l 

49,36l,033 1,178,103 

n&,.;M.l 

34 ,r; s 
>'!,SH 

l15,611 

),f,/';,j~; l>-l,1108 
26,441 52,052 
14,681 

4,352 

41.~,J9fi 

vo,ornJ 
r,;~,000 

3 ,9Jl.,13l. l.85,060 

86/1119 

93,491 

71~8 
~.666,080 

5 ,71"1,698 

q,6'G,930 lSS,060 

101,113 

~1,)Sl 

115,69!! 

17,484,01.l 
, 1,4!1l,00b 893,043 

19 H8t-i OH) 8\BOH 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Reconciliation 
Net Position of Enterprise Funds 
to Net Position of Business-type Activities 
December 31, 2020 

1\let position - enterprise fund 

Amounts reported for business-type activities in the 6tatement of net position 
a re different because: 

Internal service funds Me used by management to charge the costs of certain services. 

to individual governmental and enterprise funds. The net revenues (expense) o f 

the internal service funds are allocated to governmental and bus iness-type activities. 

Portion of internal service fund cumulative change in net position 

attributed to enterprise fund. 

Net position of business-type activities 

The accompanying notes are an in tegral part of t hese basic financial statements. 
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$ 39,886,019 

73,220 

$ 39,959,239 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 
Proprietary Fu nds 
Fo r the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Business-type 

Activities -

Wate..-and 

Sewer 

Enterprise Fund 

Governmental 
Activities • 

Medical 

Insurance 

Internal Ser11ice 

Fund 

Operating re11enues 

Charges for services S 13,897,985 _$ __ 2. __ ,0_S-'6,_74_5_ 

Operating expenses 

Personnel services 

Materials and suppl ies 

Con tr actua I 

Insura nce 

Maintenance 

Benefits and insurance premiums 

Other expense 

Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating revenues (expensesl 

Interest fnoome 

Interest expense,and fees 

Total nonop~rating revenues {expenses) 

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 

Capital contril:>utions - tap fees and other 

Change in net position 

Net position, beginning of year 

Net position, end of year 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these basic fina ncial statements. 
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s 

1,22.13,089 

9,867,255 
188,798 

41,006 

202,983 

2,071,637 

687,566 
1,448,637 

13,664,334 2,071,637 

233,651 (14,892 ) 

68,641 1,187 

(137,891) 

(69,250) 1,187 

164,40l {13,705) 

582,960 

747,361 (13,705) 

39,138,658 906,748 

39,886,019 s 893,043 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Reconciliation 
Change in Net Position of Enterprise Funds 
to Change in Net Position of Business-type Activi ties 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Change in net position - enterprise fund 

Amounts reported for business-type acrivirles in the 6tatement of act ivities 
a re different because: 

lnt,;,rnal service funds Me used by management to charge the costs of c,;,rtaln services. 

to individual governmental and enterprise funds. The curren t year change in 

net positio n of the interna l service fund ls allocated to governmenta l and 

business-type activities. 

Change in net position of business-type activities 

The accompa nying notes are an integral part of these basjc financia l statements. 
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$ 747,361 

(1 ,110) 

$ 746)!51 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprieta ry F'U n ds 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipt.s from customers and users 

Rece ip ts from inl erfund services 
Payment.s Lo suppliers 

Paymenl.S Lo employees 

Nel cash provided by operaling activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 

Principal paid on debt 

lnteres t paid on debt 
Purchase of ca pil.1I assets 
cash con tributlons for tap fees 

NeL cash used in capi tal and related fi nancing acliviL1es 

Cash flows from investing act ivities 

Interest income received 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equrvaleryts, end of year 
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Governmental 

Business-type Activities • 

Acttvities- Medical 

Water and Insurance 

Sewer Internal Service 

Enterprise Fund Fund 

.$ 13,602,091 $ 
2, 053,308 

(10,676,338) (2,007,464] 

(1,225,899) 

1,699,854 45,844 

(645,000) 
(130,966) 

(1,365,S 18) 
582,960 

(1,558,524) 

68,641 1, 187 

209,971 47,031 

13,517,677 1,127,635 

s 13,727,648 $' 1 ,174,666 

continued .. . 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary F'Unds 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Opt?raling intorne (loss) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 

lo nel cash provided by operali ng aclivilfes: 

Depreciation expense 

Chonge in : 
Accounts receivable 

Due from other funds 

Inventory 
Prepaid items 

DeFerred outflows of resources: 

Pension amounls 

Other poslemploymenL benefil amounrs 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liapililles 

Escrow payable 

Due to other fu nds 

Net pension liabil ity 

Net.other posternployment benefit liability 
Deferred Inflows of resources; 

Pension .amounts 

Other posLemploymenl benefiL amounts 

Cor'np~nsat ed absences 

Net cash provided by operat ing activities 

Business-type 

Activities -

Water and 
Sewer 

Enterprise Fund 

$ 233,651 

1,448,637 

(295,894) 
81,492 

(73,013) 
(145,193) 

(99,71.0) 
16,185 

G43,334 
3,225 

(199,702) 

4,352 

4,862 
(89,746) 

103.113 
52,582 
11,679 

$ 1,699,854 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financia l statements, 
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Governmental 

Activities • 

Medical 

Insurance 
Internal Service 

Fund 

$ 114,892) 

(3,437) 

90,606 
(26,433) 

$ 45,844 

co~cluded. 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
Fiduciary Funds 
December 31, 2020 

Assets-

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments -

MERS tota l market portfolio 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Undistributed receipts 

Net position 

Restricted fo r: 

Ot her postemployment benefits 

The ~ccompa nyl ng notes are an Integral part of these basic financial statements. 
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Custodial 

Funds 

Ret iree Tax 
Healthcare Collection 

Trust Fund 

:$ 424,000 $ 5,933,703 

12,458,063 

12,882,063 5,933,703 

5,933,703 

$ 12,882,063 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
Fiduciary Funds 
December 31, 2020 

Additions 

Investment Income: 

Net appreciation in fair value of inve.stmenls 

Employer contributions 

Ta xes collected for other governments 

Total additions 

Deductions 

Benefit payments 

Administrative expenses 

Payments of taxes to other governments 

Tot.ii deductions 

Total net change in net position 

Net position, beginning of year 

Net position, end of year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financia l sta te ments. 
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s 

$ 

Retiree 

Healthcare 

Ttust 

1,460,774 

682,197 

2,142,971 

230,998 

19,741 

250,739 

1,892,232 

10,989,831 

12,882,063 

s 

s 

Custodial 

Funds 

Tax 
Collection 

Fund 

81,322,600 

81,322,600 

81,322,600 

81,322,600 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Notes To Fln~ncial Statements 

1, SUM MARV OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUl'ITING POLICIES 

I he fi nancia l sta tements of Pittsfield Charter I owns hip, Washtenaw County, MlchlP,an I the "rownship" ) have been 

prepared in conformi ty with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standdrds lloard IGASlll is the arnepted standard settmc body for est<1bllshlne eovernmental 
account ing and financi~I rt porting principles. The more significant of the Township's accounting policies .are described 

below. 

Reporting £/rtity 

As 1-cqulred by BC'nernlly accepted accounting principles, these finMdal swtements present the government and its 
component unit, an entity for which the government is considered to be financially accountable. .Blended component 

units, If any, although kgally separat" entitles, arc, in substance, part of th" gowmment's op.,rlltions and so di!ta from 
these units are combined with data of the primary government. Discretely presented component units, on the other 
hand, are reported In a separate column In the eovernment w1IJc financial $tatemcnts to empha,lze that they arc legally 
separate from the government. 

DJ~cmrely Presented Component Unit 

Pittsfield Township Economic Development Corporation !the NEDC ") -The EDC, established pursuant to State statutes, 
was formed to ass i,t economic .ictivltV In the Township, primarily through the issuance of tax exempt bonds, The 

I owns hip has no oblicatlon to fund deficits of the Ll.lC nor doe, It guarantee its debt. Members of the WC'.5 lloard of 
Dirnctors are appolntt'<l by the Township's Board of l'rustecs . Although the me does not otherwise meet the crl t~rla 
for l ndusIor,, the I own ship has determined that Its e~duslol) would render the fjnanclal statements mialeadlne. 
Separate flnancial statements are not issued for the EDC. Instead, the activities of the EDC are presented in the 

statements of net position, nd activities (and no adjust menu are required for t~ls .iccrual basi~ presentation). 

~iduc,ary Component Unit 

I he ~lttsfidd Charter I ownshlp ether Posternploymcnt 13enefit Plan (the "OPLB Pla,1") Is a slr,g(e•employer defined 
benefit postemployment healthcare plan establ ishi>d and administered by the Township to provide healthcarl! benefits 
to cllgibl., retirees and thdr beneficiaries. l he OPlL\ Plan ls administered throllgh the Retire,~ Health com rrust. I h" 

Township is Hnanc·a I1y accountable for the OPEB Plan, as It is obligated to make employer contributions. Plan provisions 
are established and rray be amended by the Chart~r rownship Board of I rustces, subject to the I ()Wnshlp's various 
collective bargaining agreements. 

Govemmem-wide pr,d Fund F/r,ar,c/a/ S1ateme111s 

the govemment-wide financial statements (i.e., the stale[llent of net position and the statement of activities) report 
information on all of the nonfiduci~ry activities of the primary government and Its component unit. For the most part, 

the effect of lnterfund acliVitY has been removed from theie statement~. Govemmental act/V/tle~ which normally are 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business •type activities, which rely 
to a sienlficant e~tent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary eovernment is reported separately from 
co,rtain l~gally separute component units-for which the µrimary government ls financial ly accountable. 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Notes To Financial Statements 

Th!l statemP.-nt of act ivit ies demonst rates the degree to which the direct e>penses of lJIVl~n funct ions or segr11erits ar<i­
offsot by program mvcnuos. Direct expenses are those thdt <1rc clearly identifiable with a specific function or segmen t. 
l'rogrom revenues include: l) diarBes to customer, or applican ts who purchase, use, or direc tly benefit from goods, 

serv ices, or privilege, provided by a given function or .,cgment, and 2) grants and contrib~tlons that arc rc,trlcted to 
rneetine the operat ional or capita I requirements o·f a particu lar function or seement. I axes and other items not properly 
includ.,d.among program revenues are reported instead as general r~ venu~s. 

Separara financial stat e.mi,nts are provided for governmental, propril!tary, and liducfary funds, even though the latt"r 
arc clle luded from 1tne govcrnmtml wide financial sratements. Major individual governmenta l and enterprise funds are 
reported .as s~. par.ate columns in the reipective fund financial statements. 

Ml!osurement Focus, Bruis of Accounting, and financial .Statement Pre<l!lllation 

The government-wide f inancia l statements are reported using the economic resources meo.1uremenr focus and the 
accrual basis of accouotl11g, a~ are the proprietary, fiduciary and custodial funci financial statements . Rl'Vl'nues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability Is incurred, reaardless of the timing of re lated ca6h 
flows, Property tmu:,s are recoenlz.cd as revenues In the year for which they are levied. Gt.ints and similar ltums ar,, 

recognized as revenUP. as soon as all eligibi lity requirements Imposed by the prPVlder have bee~ mm. 

Govanrrnentil fund financia l statements are reported u6lng the currentfinondol re•oJ-Jrces m11osurenient focus ilrld t he 
morJlfir!d accrual bash, of accounting. Revenues .arc recognized ~s ,oon ,is they -are both measurable and availab le. 

Hevenues are considered -to be available when they are •col lectlble within the current period or soon enough thereafter 
to pay liabillt lt!S of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers rcvenut!S to be available if t h~'Y are 
collected wi t hin 60 days of t he l"Od of the c1.rren t 'liscal perloq, or within one year for reimbursement based grants, 
Expenditures generally are n,corded when a liability is incU(red, ,., under acc-rual accounli"!l - However, debt service 

expenditures, as Well as expef'ldi tures related to compensated absences and ~!aims and Judgments, are recorded only 
wh,m paym~nt is du~. 

Property taxes, state shared revenue, licenses, and Interest associated wit h the current fisca l period are all cons idered 
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been rcoogn lrnd as revenues of the curren t fiscal period. Only the portion of 
special assessments receivable due within the curri,nl'trscal penod is cor,s idered to be susceptlbl" to accrua l as revenu e 
-of t h~ curmn t period. Al l other rc!ven!Je Items arc consldffcd to be measurable and -available only when cash Is received 

by the government. 

I he fown, hlp reportl the following majorcovernmental fund5: 

J Ile general ful!d Is the government's primary operating fund. It account, for al l Financial resources of the general 
government, except those, accounted for ~nd reported in another fund. 

The public safety .special revenue fund accounts for the public <afe ty millage revenue and related expenditures. 

The loco/ roods maintenance capital projecrsfuncl accounts fo r and ri,ports on financial resources that are rest ricted, 
committed, or a;slgned to e~penditure for capital outlays, ihcluding the acquislt1011 or con,tructlon of capital 
facilities and other capi tal assets related to local road projects. 

The government reports the following major proprietary fund: 

The worer and sewer enrerprise. fund accounts for the act ivities of the watar distribu tion and t he sewage disposal 
nd t reatment systom, wh ich arc financed primarily by uso.r charees. 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Notes To Financial Statements 

Additiona lly, the government reports the following fund types: 

I he .;pee/a/ revenue- funds are u,ed to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that re 

res tricted or committed to expenditure to r ,pccifled purposes other than debt ,ervlcc or capi tal projects, 

The debt ,~Nia: fund., are used to accoun t for and report finarn;ia l resources thilt are restricted, committed, or 

,a,slgned to expendltLire for principa l and Interest. 

l he capital pro/actl fund, arc used lo account for and report financia l resources that are rcstric~d, committed, or 
assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the .acquisition or construction of capita l ;,cillties and oth"r 

capita.I assets. 

I he int~rnai ,arv!ce fund accounts fo r the s~ lf Insurance sc.rvlces provided 10 other departments or funds on a cost 

reimbursement basis. 

The retiree heo/rhrnre trust fund accounts for the accumula t~d rllSourrns for other postemployrnent b1mefit 

payments to quali fied ret irees. 

The custodial Jtind~ account for as,ets held by the Township In a custodial capacJty fo r other governments and 
entitles suGh as property taxes col lected for other governments. 

As a eeneral rule the effect ot lntertund activfty has been ellmin~ted from the gQvernment·wide financial statements. 
Excep tions to this guncral rule are payments In lieu of taxus and various other functions of t he government, Ellmlnatlon 
ofthese charees wo~ld distort the direct costs and prOj!raq, revenues reported for the various functions cqnceroed, 

Amounts reported as pro~ram revenues include: l) chMges to customers or i.lP?ffc.ants for goods, services, or privileges 
provided, 2) operating grants and con tributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, inclutJ ing Spt!c ial asse.ssments. 

Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rat her than as program revenues. Likewise, eeneral 
revenue5 Include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds ,d ist inguish operating revenues and espenses from nonoperatlng items. Operating revenues and 

c,q,cnscs generally resu lt from providing services and producing and delivering goads in connection wi th a proprietary 
fund's principa l ongoing operations. The princ ipal operat ing revenues of the enterprise fund are charges 10 customers 
for sales and 5ervltes, Operating expenses include the co~t of sa les and s~rvlces, administrative expenses, and 
deprecia tion on capital assets, Al l revenues and expenses no t meeting this definition are reported as ~onoperatlng 

n:vHn\Jtc1s and rucpenscs. 

Asse ts, Defem,d Outflows a/ Resaurres, liabilities, Deferred In/laws af Remurces and Equity 

Deposit.sand lnvertm~nts 

The Township's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be ca,h on hand, demand deposits and short-.term 
inv~tments wi th origina l maturit i~ ottnree months of less from the da te of acquisit ion. 

I nvL•stments are statc,d at fa ir va lue. 

State sta tutei. .iuthorlze the eovernment to dcpo~it in the accounts of federally insured banks, credit unions and savine, 
and loan associat ions and to Invest in obligations of the lJnl ted States, certain commercial paper, repurchase 
agreements, banker acwp tancos and mutual funds composed of oth111wJsc lega l investments. 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Notes To Financial Statements 

Reeeivab/es 

All receivables are reported at their eross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is 

expected to be uncol l.•ctib lc. 

Act ivity between fund, t hat are repn:,sent-a tive of lending/borrowing arrnngements outstanding at the end of the fiscal 

year are referred to as either ''due to/from other funds" (I.e., the cwrent portion of interflmd loans) or "advances 
to/from other fund,'1 Ii-"·, thi, non current portion of interfund loan,). All other out.standing balances b"t ween funds 
arc reported as due to/from other funds. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activi t ies and 
business-ty pe activities are reported in th~ governm(~nt~wide statements os lrrternaf balan~t:.s . Advam:P.s between 

funds, if any, are offset by a nonspendablc fund balance account In app licable governmental funds to indicate they are 
not available for appropriati on and are not expendable ava11able financial resources. 

Amounts due from other governments include amounts due from gran ters fo r speci fic programs and capi tal projects .. 
f'roeram crants and capital eran t, fo r capi tal assets art' rL..:ord"d Js receivable~ and revenues at the time relmbur.;ab l~ 
project cosl:5 are incurred. Amounts rece ived in advance of project costs beina incurred are reported as unearned 
rcvcnuu. 

OtherAuets 

Inventory Is valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first in/firs t out method. The costs of governmental 

fund type inventory is primijri ly r'-'cordeci as e~pendlture·s when purchased rather than when wnsumed. 

~aymen\s made to vendors for services that wil l benefi t fu ture periods are recorded as prepa1d items, using the 
ronsump tion met hod, in both govern m.,nt-Wide 3nd fund firra ncia l st.itemi,nts. 

Cap;tal Assets 

Capital ,mets, which inc lude land, buildings, equipment, veh icles and infrastructure asset s (e.g., roads, bridges, drains 
and simi lar items), wi th an Init ial cost greater than $~,000, arc reported in the app licable eovcr!'lmcntal or bus Ines~ type 
act ivitles columns In the government-wide fi nancial !ltatement s. Such asset s are recorded at historica l cost or estimated 
historle11 I ao,1 If purchased or constructed. Dona ted e11pltal assets arc recorded at es timated ,icqulsltlon cost a t the datl' 

of donation. The coSts ol normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materia lly extend 
assets lives arc not capitalized , Major out lay, for capi tal assets and improv~mcnt, are capi talized as projects are 
constructed. 

Capital assets of the prlm;,ry governm~nt are depreciated using t he malght -line method over the useful lives of the 
assets as follows: 

lluildlnes and improvement, 
Infrast ruct ure 

Machinery ,ind equipment 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Notes To Financial Statements 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

In addit ion to assets, the statement of financial pos ition will sometimes report a separate se,t lon for deferred outflows 

of resources. This separate fi nancia l tatcmcnt clemen t, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of 
rret position 1hat ~pplies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of· resow"Les un til then. fhe 
Township has two items that qualify for reporting in this category, reported in th" government-wide statement of net 

position. A deferred d1arge on refundinB results from the difference In the carrvins value of refunded debt and its 
reacquisi tion price. This ~mount is deferred i!nd amortized over the shorter of the life of the re funded or refunding 
debt. I he I ownshlp also reports dMerri!d outflows of r<,sourccs related to Its pension and other postemployment 
benefit plans. 

Payables 

Ac! iVitV between funds t hat are represen tative of lending/borrow1ng arrangements outstanding at the end of tire fiscal 
year are reforrt•d to as either lnterfund receivables/payab les 11,e., the current portion of lnterfund loans) or advances 
to/from other funds (i.e., the non-current port ion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are 
reported as dLm to/from other funds, Any rnsldual ba lana,s outstanding between the governmental and bus iness type 

activitlr.s are reported In the govr.rnment-widr. linancial statements as internal balances. 

Compensated Absences 

In at~ordance with contracts neeotlated wlth the variou6 employee eroups of the I ownshlp, Individual employees have 
vested rights upon termination of employment to receive paymimt for unused vacation and sick leave under formulas 
and condi t ions specified In t h<' ~ontracts. All •klc ~nd vacation pay Is accrued when lnc~rred In the BOVernment•wlde 
and propri~t~ry fund fin ancial statements. A liability for these amounts is r ported in governmental funds only when 

t hey have matured or come due. lhe compensated absences ba lonce related to the governmental funds Is a llabll~y 
recorded in the statern.,nt of net position. 

Long-term ObligaOans 

In the l}OVernment-wide and proprietary. fund ftnancia l statements, long-term debt and other lon€-term obligat ions are 
rcporwd as liabill tlcs in the appllcablo gov,c,rnmc:mtn l activit ies, business type, activities or propriet ary fund typc 

statement of net p~itlon_ Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using 
the effe~t lvc interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or disc.cunt. 

In the fond llhanc[al $tatcmunts, governmental fu nd types recognize bond premiums and discmints during thc current 
period. The race ;imount of debt Issued Is reported as other fln;incing sources. Premiums received on debt i,suanc.es are 
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt Issuances arc reported as other fi nancing uses. Issuance: 
costs, whether or not withheld from the ac tual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Notes To Financial Statements 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

In add Itron to liab,lltles, the sta tement of net position and eovernmental flJnds balance sheet Wl lf sometimes report a 

separate ,ectlon for deferred inflows of resou rces. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of 
reso~rces, represents an acquisi t ion of net position that applies to futi,re periods and so wil l not be recoenlzed as an 
in fl ow of re ources !revenue) until that time. The governmental funds report unav-.iilable revenues, which arise, only 

under a modified accrual basis of accounting, from speci~I assessments. I hese amounts are deferred and recogniied as 
an inflow of ,.,sources in ti->" period that the amounts b"com" avajlabl,:,. In addit ion, def.,rred inflow, of re;ourc,;,, are 

r<1ported In t he government wide and govommcntal fund financial statements for propartytaxi,s levied during the yca,r 
that were intended to fimmce future period,. In the government-wide , tatements, the Township ,ilso reports deremed 

inflows of resources re lated to its net pension and other po1tcmployment benefits liabillttcs. 

Fund Equity and Net Position Flow A.rn1mption 

Governmental fund, report nomperidablt! fund ba lance for amoun ts that cannot be spent because they are either la) 
not In spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Restricted fund balaf\C!> is 
reported when external ly Imposed constraint,; arc placed on the lJso of resources by grantors, c;ontributors, or laws or 

regulations of other govi:rnments. CammitWd fund balance Is mported for amounts that ,an only hr. used fo r spec.Ifi e. 
purposc.,s pursuant to const raints Imposed by formal act ion of t he Board of Tru,te,cs (the.government's highest le~el of 
decision-making authority). A formal resolut ion of the Board of Trustees ,s reqµired t o establish, modify, or rescind a 
fund balance commitment Tho Township mav n,port r,ssign~d fund balance for amounts 'that are constraim,d bv the 

EOVernment's intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor wmmitted; however, the ~oard of 
Trustees has not yet authorized anyone to assign fund balance. Unas;fgn~d fund balance Is the rc!iiclual classi flcatlun 
for the eeneral fund or deficit fund ba lances In other funds, of which there are none. 

I he I owns hip lloard of I ru$tees ha~ established a budget stabl lizatron policy \1/ho;e goal Is to keep a reserve not to 
exce@d ei ther 15 perc0;>nt of the G,meral fund operaJing budget or 15 percent of the av@rage of the municipality's fi ve 

most rnccnt General ~und operat ing budgets, whichever ls less. If the ~udget Stablllzat lon ba lance e~ceeds the 
maxirnum, the excess- money shall be appropriated in the Townsh ip's next General Fund operat ing budget, but shall not 
be approprtated to t he fund. A!i of December 31, 2020, the ba lan,e in the stabilization arrangement was $96~.ooo, 
which Is reparted in the General Fund within committed fund balance. 

Funds In the budget stabilization fiJ'nd may be appropriated by an ordinance or resolLJlion adopted ny a 2/3 by the 
lownshlp's Board of lrustees whlc)t(created the fund for the fo llowtn~ purpo,es: la) 10 cover a eeneral fund deficit , 
when the municipalrty's annual audit reveals such a deficit. (bl To prellent a reduction In the level of public services or in 

the number of employees at any time In a fiscal year when the munidpa llty's budgeted revenue Is not being collected In 
an amount sufficient to cover budgeted expensr.s. (cl To prevent il reduction In the level of pub li~ serviui, or in the 
numbur of crnp loyel:!s when in pm paring the budget for the n(!l(t fiscal year the municipali ty's est imated revenue docs 
not appear sufficient to cover est imated e•penses. (d) Io cover ewenses arising because of a natural disaster, lncludlnl) 
a flood, fire, or tornildo. However, If foder.a l or state funds arc rccdvod to offset the ilppropriations from the fund, that 

funds shal l be returned to the fund . In determining whether the loWnship'i; revenue is not sufficient to cover Its 
expern,es, a reduct ion in the amoun t of money received for the fiscal year from any source in comparison to the amount 
of money received for the previous fiscal year, inc luding a reduct ion In the allocat ion of state ta, money, shall be 
considered. 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Notes To Financial Statements 

When the government incurs an expenditure for purposes for which various fund balance classifications can be used, it 
i~ the government's policy to use restricted fund balance first, t hen committed, assigned, and finally unassigned fund 
balance. 

Somet imes the government will fund outlays for a particu lar pull)ose from bot h restricted and unrestricted rewurces. 
In order to calculate the amount to restr icted and unrestricted net posit ion in the government•wld~ and proprietary 

fund flnancl~I statement,, a flow as sumption must be made about the order in which resources are considered to by 

applied. It is th<, goyernment'_s policy lo consider r<,stricted net position to have beP..n depleted before unrestricted net 

posltJon is applied. 

2. BUDGETARY INFORMATION 

Annua l appropriated budgets arc adopted on a basis conslst.,nt with genorally accepted accounting principles for the 
general and speclal revenue funds. All -annual appropriat ions lapse at year-end. Public hearings are conducted in 
s,:ptcmber and October to obta in citizen comment. ~rlor to IJecember 15 of eacb year, the Township Supervisor 
submits to the Township Board a proposed operating budget for the fisca l year commencing the following January 1, 

r hc operating budget Includes proposed expenditures and thu means of financing them fo r the upcoming year. A 

budget Is legally enacted by the Township Board through the passage of a budge~ resolution on or before December 1S. 
Line item budgets are adopted for internal financial management; however, the legal level of control for the budgets is 
at the departmental basis. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device for the general 
and spec ial revenue funds; budgets for these funds are prepared Jnd adopted on ./J basis consistent with generally 

~ccepted ac<.ounting principle,. I he I ownship doe. not emplov en,umbran~ accounting a, an extension of formal 
budgetary inkgriiti0n in the governmental funds. 

During the year ended D~c.,mber 31, 2020, the Township inc~m,d expenditures in certain budgetary fund< \vhich \vere 

in excess of the amo11nts bt1dgeted, as follows : 

800 MH, Consortium 

Publlcsafe.ty 
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$ 

Final Budget 

40,100 $ 

Actual 

~0,888 $ 

Actual Over 
Fina I Budget 

10,/88 
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3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

rollowlng is a reconciliation of deposits and investments as of December 31, 20:W: 

Statement of Net Position 
Cash and c:.,sh equivalents 

Sbt@m@nt of Fiducia ry Net Posit ion 

C~h and cash equivalents 

I nvest rnents 

Total 

Deposiu and investments 

Bank d<>posl t s (ch<'cking, savings, CDAfls, and ICS) 

Certificat~ of deposit (ma turing in less t han one yea r) 

Collaterallzcd sweep accounts 

Investments - MERS total market portfolio 

Cash on hand 

Total 

Depos;r and /,ivesrmem Risk 

s 

$ 

Prrrnary 

Government 

38,1,16,728 

5,933,703 

44 ,130,431 

s 

$ 

C<J mponeot 
Unit 

8,952 

424,000 

U ,458,063 

12,891,015 

Totals 

$ 38,205,680 

6,JS 1,103 

U ,458,063 

$ 57,011,446 

$ 23,126,198 

9,376,817 

12,0~9,668 
12,458,063 

100 

$ ~7.021,446 

lnteresr /?ate Risk. State law lim its "the allowab le inveotrr,ents an d the maturit ies of some of the al lowable investments 

as ident ifi ed In t h" following list of authurl-zed investments-. The Township'.- Investmen t pol icy does not hav~ spccl tlc 

limit,; in excess of state law on inVP.St men t maturities a, .i means of managing Its exposurn to fair v~lue losses arising 

from Increasing interest rates, The, ownshlp is not exposed to inwrcst rate ri,k. 

Custodio/ Credit Ri~k - o-,posit>. Custodial Cn!dit risk for deposits is t h" risk th~t, in the event of a bank fa ilure, the 

I ownshlp'5 deposits may not be re\urned. Deposits are exposed to custodial Cfedit risk if they are not covered by 
deposi tory insuranc.,_ State law does not requir@ and th@ Township does not hav" a policy for dO!posit custodia l cr~dit 
risk. 

At year end, $3,141,411 c,f t he combined bank b~ lance of ~36,181,983 of deposit s and collatcralizcd sweep accounts 

(tota l boolc balance of $44,562,683) was esposed to custodia l cred it risk as it was uninsured and uncollateralt,ed. The 

l ownshlp believes t hat due to the dollar amount s of cash deposits and t he II mils of W IG lns1,rancc, It Is impractical to 

Insure al l bank deposits. As a result, the Township evalua tes each fi nancial Institut ion wi th which it deposits funds and 

asscsse~ t he level of risk of each inst itut ion; only t hose instlt~tlo ns wi th an awiptablc level are usi,d as dcµo,itorles. 
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Custodio/ Credit Risk - Investments. Investments are exposed to custodial credit risk jf the securities are uninsured, 
unregistered or held by a coUntcrparty or its agency but not in the government's name. In accordance with the 

I ownshlp's tnvestmen t policy, all Investments are held In the name of the I ownshlp and are evidenced by a safekeeping 

receip t confirmation, and thus not exposed to custodial credit risk. 

Conc.,ntmtion o/ Credit Ri.;k. State law limits allowable investments but does not limit concentrntion of credit risk as 

Identif ied under "statLitory authority" ijbove. I he I Qwnship's investment pol icy does not have specific limits In ex~ess 
of state law on concentration of credit risk~ All lnvestm~nts held at y~ar end are reported above~ 

fair Value Mea.suremerrt 

The Township categorizes Its /afr value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by eenerally ac.cepted 

accounting principles. The hierarchy Is based on thu valuation Inputs used to measure the fair value pf thu as.set. L11ve l 1 

inputs are quoted prices In active markets for identical assets; level 2 Inputs arr. slgnlljcant other observab le Inputs; 

level 3 Inputs arc slenlficant unobservable Inputs. As of December 31, 2020, the I owri~hlp's lnVl'stments In the MLl{S 
total market portfolio are classified as level 1. 

RECEIVABLES 

Receivables of the priniary governrnent are comprised of the. fallowing at year end: 

Governmentijl &u5ine~~-type 

Activities Activities 

Acr:oUntS" recf.' ivabl~ s 1,376,407 s 2,266,701 

Specia l assessments 483,912 
Taxes rt!teivable. 7 ,349,7 05 

$ 9,21-0,024 ~ 2,266,701 

Special assessments not e,pected 

to be co llected within one y~ar s 419,311 $ 
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S. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Primary government 

C~pital asset ~ctivity for the pnmary government for the year ended \Jecember 31, 2020, was as fo llows: 

Be11innin11 

Balance Additions Disposals 

Governmenta l actlvitles 

Capita l assets not being deprecia1ed; 

L~ nd and casemcn ts s 25,595,400 s s $ 
Construction In proeress 225,199 

25,595,400 225,199 

Capital assets being depreciati,d: 

Bulldlnes a~d lmprovcmcnl s 6,416,691 

Infrastructure 16,439,999 2,267,059 

Machinery and equipment 9,/43,/29 301,025 l156,412) 
32,660,419 2,568,084 {l..56,472) 

Less accumulated deprec iation lo~ 
louildin~s and improvements (S,2'161894) (281,581>) 
Infrastructure (11,676,430) (276,834) 

Machinery and uquipmcnt (8,098,194) (483,802) 1:,6,4/2 
l25,031,S18) (~,042,221) 1.56,472 

Total capita l assets being depreciated, net 1,628,901 1,S25,863 

Governmental activities capital ;,ssd,, net s 33,224,301. $ 1,:>25,863 $ - $ 

D1;1preclation ~pense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows; 

Genr.ral govr.rnment $ 421,435 

Publlt:safcl'y 4 ',/,196 

Public works 84,804 

~arks and recreation /8,786 

Total depreciation expense s 1,042,221 

61 

Ending 

Balance 

25.,595,400 
22!>,199 

25,820,599 

6,4/6,691 

18,707,058 

9,l!88,2ll2 

35,072,031 

(S1~38,4/9) 
(11,953,264) 

($,42:,,:,2.4) 

I.ZS,917,267) 

9,154,764 

34,9/S,363 
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Beginning Ending 
Balance Additions Disposals Balance 

Business-type activities 

Cap ltd I assets not being depreciated: 
Land .$ 319,SIB $- $ $ 319,!,/8 
Construction in progress 227,023 1,324,828 1,551,851 

606,601 1,324,828 l,931,429 

Cap Ila I assets being dcprcciat(lci : 

8uilding, 949,314 .949,314 

lnfrastructur<: 51,219,862 ~/,279,862 
Machln<ery and equipment 2,358,986 40,690 2,399,676 

60,588,162 40,690 60,628,8!>2 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings (6Dt,233) (31,644) (632,877) 
Infrastructure (26,19 1,405) (1 ,2 /8,49:,) (21,4/~,900) 

Machinery and equipment (1,552,446) (138,498) [1,690,944) 
(28,351,084) (1,448,637) (29,799,721) 

Total cJpit,11 ,1sse ts being depreciated, ~ct 32,237,078 (1,407,947) 30,829,131 

8L1slness-type activities capital assel:5, net s 32,843,679 s (83,119) s $ 32,760,560 

At Dec11mber 31, 2020 the Township's buslnesMype activities had outstanding commitments throu~h construction 

contracts of appro~imatdy $750,000. This amounl represents capital projed'; th e Township has eneaeed In such as 
lining of the State Street water main and repairing and uplJ.rading1:he Distrtct I II Boost~r Pump Station. 

6. PAYABLES 

f-';:iy~b les am eomprised Qf the following at yea r end; 

Government~! 
Activ1ti~ 

Accounts pay;ibltt $ 1,265,786 
Due to other governments 36,030 
Escrow payable 690,583 

$ 1,992,399 

Accr~ed (iabilit ies are compri,cd of the following at ytlar end: 

Accrulld liab ilit ies 

Interes t payable 

Govern man ta I 

ActMties 

s 1,2~4,282 
30,091 

$ 1,284,373 

62 

llusinM~·tvpe 
Aqivrties 

s 2,675,962 

415,796 

$ 3,091,758 

Business-type 

ActMtles 

$ 26,441 

24,681 

$ 51,112 

s 

$ 

Component 
Un11:5 

8,952 

8,952 
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7. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS 

At December 3l, 2020, amoun ts due from and due to other funds were as fo llows: 

Payable Funds 

PU bllc Loca l Roads lllo nmajor Watera11d 

Receivable fund1 Genera l Saflety Maintenance Governmental sewer Total~ 

General $ $ 2 ,789 $ 46,524 3,275 $ 52,588 

Public safety ~2q 210 /34 

Non major governmP.ntal 36,409 290 1,077 37,n6 
Water.md sewer 774 774 
Internal service fun d 3,437 3,437 

~ 411144 ~ 290 ~ 21/89 $ 46./34 ~ 41352 ~ 951309 

IJue to/from balances resu lt primarily from the time lag between the da tes thatinterlund BDods and services are provided 

or reimbu rsable t:,cpein ditures occur, t ransactions- are recorded in t he accounting system, itnd/or payments between fund:i 

¥e made. lnterfond rece ivables and payables rep re,ent rou tine and temporary tash flow as$lstance. I he amount. 

out);tanding at year end rnru1sti;,d pri mari ly of ti,(;! followi ng, (1) the Local Roads Malntenance Fund and the nonmajor 

eovO!rnmcnra l -funds owed the General 1-und for cnelnecrlng co t• t hat wen:, -assigned to t he wrone fund, (2) t he Water 

and Sewer Fund owed the General Fund for a sale of a generntor, (3) the Genernl Fund owed the nonmaj or gov;,rnmP.ntal 

fund~ for the rain garden project pha~e I and tM Ann Arbor Saline sidewalk ~ap project, and (41 the General fund owed 
the internal service fund for recel pts collecting for prescr1pt1on refunds. 

Transfers are used to: (1) move unrestricted revenues col lected In t"he general fund to finance various programs 

atcounted fur in other funds In accordance with budectary authorizations or (21 move revenues from the fund that Is 
required to collect them to the fund t ha t is required or al lowed• to expend them. 

Ourins thr. year ended 0f)tember31, '2020, the Townshi p transferrf)d unrest rictP.d resouroes from the Genr.ral Fund to the 

Public Safety Fund to ~upp lcment operat ing expendit ures not cove red by the Public Safoty MIiiage. The Township also 
t ransfe rred unrestr1cted re ouroesfrom the General Fund to nonmajorgovemment al fun ds to finance the various capital 

projects (i. e. Pla tt Road Greenway PH Ii, Pla tt Road Texti le Greenw ay and the Ann Arbor -Sa line Road at Oak Val ley 
Intersection) and Its J;Jortion of the debt repayment of the LoSt Mlchlsan Ave Drain. In addition, the I own ship transferred 
funds from the Pub Iii"' Safety Millage Fund to the Drug Forfeiture Fund for allowable ust-:S. 

Transfers In 

Public Nonmajor 
Tra nsfer.; Out Safety Governm11nta l Tota ls 

'Gener,,I $ 6,000,000 $ 628,864 $ 6,628,864 

Publrc safety /3,002 /3,002 

~ 6,000,000 ~ ,•1,866 ~ 6/01,866 
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8. LONG-TERM DEBT 

General obligation bonds • governmenta l aotlvl ties. I he township has issued a ~eneral obliBatlon bond to flnan,e 

certain capital improvement projects. The Township has pledged It s full fai th and credit within statu tory I imitations for 
the fo ilowin& issues: 

$4,000,000 2019 Capital Improvement Uonds due In annual Installments of 
$361,000 to $457,000 througt, 1029, [nter.,,; t at 1.05%. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity /or general obl igation bonds are as follows: 

Governmental ActivitTes 

Vear ~nded 
O@c11mbe• 31, Principal lnt11rest 

2021 $ 361,000 $ 75,112 
2012 3/1,000 6/,/1.2 
2023 383,000 60,\06 

2024 194,000 S2,25~ 
202, 406,000 44,178 

2026-2029 1,/49,000 90,%9 

S- 3,664,000 ~ 390,322 

s 3,664,000 

Special assessment debt with government comm1tment. The government has been a,scsscd for its at large sham of 
certain drainage district project casts, payable over a multiyear period with interest at l,625% to 5.0%. Special 
assL,ssment debt with governmen t commitment, for which debt proceeds are rccdvcd and expended by the Washtcn~lv 

County Drain Commiision (ilnd the resultlnB ihfrast ructure ,0pital asset Is Its property), currently outstandine is as 
fo llows: 

$2,180,000 '2006 M~ llets Creek. Serr~I Bonds tlu~ in annual installment, of 

$19,8/9 to $22',900 thro~gh 2026, interest l .62::.%. I he low nship's shMe of 
th@ bond i $412,706 er 18.93% and Washler>aw County's share of th., bond 1s 
$J,J6 ,,294 or Bl.0/%. 

$1,340,000 2016 Rcfuncilne of Michlean Avenue Last Serial BMds due in annual 
installments of $100,000 to $UO,OOO through 2029, interest at 2.00% to 3.00%. 

Tota l specia l assessment debt with government commitment 

64 

s U9.864 

975,000 

s 1,104,864 
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity fo r drain assess11rnnts are as fol lows: 

Governmental Act iVitles 

Year Ended 

December 31, Principal Interest 

2021 $ 119,879 $ 21,905 

2022 120,825 18,587 
2023 126,/7l 16,199 
2024 126,nl 13,745 
2025 132,/18 11,239 

2026 2029 477,900 19,872 

$ 1,104 864 $ 101,547 

GeMral obligation bonds - business-type activities. fhe government Issues general obligation bond; to provide funds 

for tne acqulsl t lo~ and construction of major water and ,ewer· syste111 capl tlll Infras tructure. I he original amount of the 

outstanding gen1>ra l oblrgat,on bonds was $9,484,650. 

General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows: 

$4,630,000 2016 Refunding of the 2004 Capita) Improvement Serial Bonds due 

m annual installments of $440,000 to $!'>25,000 t l-\rough 2026, interest at 
1 .99%. 

$4,854,650 2010 Drinking Water Revolving Bonds due In annual lnst:allmerrts al 
$210,000 to S266,080 through 2030, interest at 2.50%. 

Total general obligation bonds 

Annv~I debt-service reqvlremcnt~ to r'naturlty for general obligation bonds are as follows: 

Business-type Activit ies 

Year Ended 

December 31, Principal Interest 

2021 $ 665,000 $ U7,762 

2022 690,000 l13,/JO 

2023 710,000 99,277 
2024 /J0,000 84,214 
2025 745,000 68,850 

2026 2030 1, /91,080 148,2~8 

$ 5,331,080 s 642.,151 
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1,386,0_80 

$ S,331,080 
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Chanlj:BS in long-term debt. Long-tern, debt ~ctivlty for the year ended Decer,1ber 31, 2020 was as fo llows: 

Beginning: Ending Due Within 
Balance Additions Deduct:lons Balance One Year 

Governmental activities 
General obligation bonds $ 4,000,000 $ $ [336,000) s 3,664,000 s 361,000 

Specia l a$5essmentclebt 
with government 

commit ment 1,219,142 1114,818) 1,104 ,864 119,8./9 
Unamortized premium Z2,414 12,241) 20,173 2,241 
Compensated absences 2,190,931 1,246,189 1929,160) 2,506,360 1,500,000 

Tota l governmental 

activities s 7,433,087 $ 1,245,189 $ (1,382 ,879) $ 7,295 ,397 $ 1,983,120 

BL1siness•type activities 
General obligation bonds s 5,976 ,080 s s 1645,000) $ 5,331,080 s 665,000 

Compcnrated absences 186,319 6:,,8/9 (54,200) 19/,998 !20,000 

Tota l business-type 

activities $ 6,162,399 s 65,879 $ 1699,200) $ 5,529,078 $ 785,000 

The governmental activities compensated absi,nces are ge~cral ly liQLlidated by the g,m~ral (und. 

9. OPERATING LEASE~ 

The Township has lease, aweements for ~l!ven copy machines, one each expiring on .Sep tember S, 20:U, September 18, 

2021, 1-cbruary 22, 2022, March 1, 2022, IJccembcr 12, 2022 and two e•pl rl ng on September 20, 2021. R"nt c)(ponse 

tot aled $12,858 for t he year ended December 31, 2020. The remaining future commitments are as fol lows: 

Yea r Ended 

December 31, Amount 

2021 $ 9,623 
2022 634 

Total $ 10,257 
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10. f\ lSK MANAGEMENT 

I he I owns hip is exposed lo varioLls rlsk,s of loss rela ted to torts; theft of, damage to, and dest ruction of assets; errors 

and omis,ion,; injuries to employee,; and natural disasters. During the year ended December 31. 2020, the government 

carried commercial insurance to cover all risks of losses, I he I ownship has had no settled claims from these risks that 

exce"ded its commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

The general, publk safety, building department, park, mil lage, and water anq sewer funds of the Township make 

payments to the medica l Insurance Internal service fund based on rates established to fund e~tlmatcd ac tual llablllt lcs. 

The total claims l iabi lity of $52,052 rr,ported in t he fund at December 31, 2020, is based on the requirements that a 

liabi lity for claims be reported if Information prior to the issuance of the f inancial statements indicat es that It Is probable 

t ha t a liability has been Incurred at the date of the financial st at ements. The Township has est lmat,:d its ult imate liability 

based upon est imates of known claims and nct uarlal bas~d computi t lons of Incurred but no! reportfld claims. 

Chan~e5 in the fund's claim, liability amount was: 

Balance at t he beginning of yea r 

Current year claims and changes in es t imates 

Claims paid 

Balance at end of year 

11. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

$ 

s 

2020 2019 

78.485 $ 75,582 
2,071 ,637 2,099,702 

(2,098,070) (2,096,799) 

52,052 s 78,485 

Amounts recelved or receivable from @rantor agencies are subject to audit and potential adjustment by federal and sta te 

grantor .agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounti; alrnadv col lc:ctod, may cons titutc a liabili ty of t he: applicable 

funds. I he amount, if .iny, of P.XpP.ndl tu~s which may be disallowed by t he. grantor cannot be. determined at thl, t ime 

altho1.,gh the gowrnm~nt cxpo~ts such amounts, if any, to bo immateria l. 

Th~ government and it, component unit , individually or joint ly, are the defendant in various lilwsu ts, Alt hough the 

01.1tcome of these lawsuits i, not present ly dete.rmln;.ible, It Is the opinion of the government and component unit's 

couns~I that r~solut ion of these mat ters will not h•v" a material adverse effect on the f inancial condi t ion of the 

80varnment 

12. PROPERTY TAXES AND ABATEM ENTS 

Property taxes become an enforceab le lien on the property as of December 31. I axes arc levied 011 December 1 and arc 

due In February of t he fol lowing year. The Township bi lls and co llects its own property taxes along wi th collect ing taxes 

for varlou; ot her taxlne /urlsdlct lon3. I ownshlp tax ,~venues arc recoenlzed 1n the fiscal year fo llowine the December l 

le.vy da te. . faxes are. cons idered delinquer,t on March 1, at which time the applicable property is subject to lii:n and 

penalty and Interest is assessud. 
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Assessed values, as established annually by the government, are subject to acceptance by the County and ~quallzed by 
the State <1t an estimated 50% of current market value. For the D~cembcr 31, 2019 levy, the taxable value of r<':al and 
persona l property in the 1 ownship totaled $2,008,203,009 , I he covernment's genera l opera ti nP, tax rate for the 

December 1, 2019 levy, which is considered revenue for fi sca l year 2020 was 3.9923 mills, with an additional 1.8730 and 
0.4662 ,pedal-voted mills for public safety and parks, re~pect1vely, 

I he I own:.hip received reduced property tax revenues during 2020 as a re ult of industrial facilitles tax exemptions 
(IFT's). The IFT's were entered into based upon the Plant Rehabil itation and Industrial Development Di~trict,; Act, (known 
as the- Industrial ~adlltles laempt ion), PA 198 of 19/4, as amtindcd. IH's provide a ta, lncantivc to ma111Jfilcturers to 
enable renov.ation and exp ansion of e1ging factl itiesr assist in the bui ld ing of new facili ties, :and to protnote the 

establ ishment of hlgh tech facll itles. Properties qualifying for I~ I stat l!s are taxed at ~0% of the mil lage rate applicable to 
other real and persona l property in the Township. The abatements amounted to approximately $621000 in reduced 
l ownsh ip tax rcvc-nues for 2020, 

13, PENSION PLAN 

Gerreral lrr/armat lon Aba11t the Plarr 

Plcm De cription. The Township participates in the Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) of Michigan, a 
defined benefit pension plan provldine certain retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and 
beneficiaries. MERS is an agent multiplc-emploVer, statewide pub lic employee pension plan established by the Michigan 

Legi,lature under ~ubllc Ac;t 13~ of l 94~ and administered by a nine member ~etirement lJDitrd, Publ ic Act 42/ of 1984, 
as amended, establlohes dnd amends the benefit provisions of the participants In MEF\S. MERS issws a publicly available 
financia l report tha( includes financial statements arid req~ ired supplementary Information. fhis report may be obtained 
by accessin~ the MERS website at www.mersofmich.com. 

B&n~flts Provided. Pensfon beMfits vary by division/bargaining unit and are calculat .. d as fi nal average tornpensatton 

(bilmd on a 3 year period) and multipliers ranging from 1.50%to 2.~0'11,. Participants vesting rnqulmments range from 6 
to 10 years. Normal retirement age Is 60 with early retirement at age 50 or 55 with 25 or 15 years of service, 
respectively, Member contributions range from 0.00% to 9.06%. I he plan is closed to certain union and non union 
employees. 

tmployeP.s Covered by /Jene{lt I erms. At the De~ember 31, 2019 val11ation date, plan membership consisted of the 
following: 

lnactivE--: ~mplOye~s ur beneficiaricfir cu rrently rec:t! iVing bt-:nefil"i 

Inactive emp lr.>yecs entitled to but Mt yet rccclvlne benefits 

Active "mploy2~s 

Total membershi p 

68 

64 

81 

131 

2/6 
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Contributions. lhe ernployer Is required to contribute amounts at least equal to the att uarially determined rate, as 

cst~blishcd by thia MERS Retiremen t Board. The actuarially determined rate Is the estimated .imount nccess-ary to 

finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the yeM, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded 

accrued liability. The employer may establish contribu tion rate£ to be paid by 11£ covered employees. For the fl seal year 
beginning January 1., 2020, t he lownshlp's contrlbiatlons ranged from 6.~9% to 8.84% of annua l payroll for open 
d ivisions. Closed divis ions employer contributions ranged from $1,181 to $47,275 per month. Employee contributions 

ranged from 0,00% to 9.06%, 

Net Pension Liabili t y. I he I ownshlp's net pcn:;ion llablll t y was measured as of Dcrnmbcr 31, 2020, and the tota l pension 

liabi lity used ta calculate the n~t pension liabi lity was determined by an actu,irial valuation ,is of December 31, 2019, 

rolled forward to December 31, 2020. 

Aetuorio/ Assumptions. I he total pension liabili ty in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation was determlnc,d using 

t he fo llowing actuarial assumptions, app lied to all periods Included in the measurement : 

Infl ation 

Salary Increases 

Investment rat e of return 

2,50% 
3.1~% In th~ long term 

7.35%, net of Investment expense and Including 

infla tion 

The mortality tab le used to project the mortality e~perlence of non-disabled plan members 1s a 50% male, 50% female 

blend of the folluwlne table~: 
• The RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Morta lity Tables, with rates multiplied by 105% 

I he RP 2.014 lmploycc Morta lity I ables 

• The RP-2014 Juvenile Mortall tyiobles 

The mortalrty table used to project t he mortality e~perl~c'l of disabled plan members Is 50% Male, 50% Fern~ le blend of 

RP2014 01,ubled Reti ree Mortal ity Table . 

The actuarial ass~mptlons used IA the December 31 , 2019 valu-Jtlon we~ based on the results of the most r~ccn t 
~ctuarl~I e~perlence study of 2009,20~3. 
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Long--terrn E.xpBctf/d Rare of Retun,. The long•terrn expected rate of return on pension plan investrnents was determined 

using. model rncthod in which the best L'Stimatc range, of expected fu ture real ratl!!i of return (expected returns, net of 

Inves tmen t and admin ist rat ive expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset alass, I hese ranses are 

combined to produce the long te rm expected rate of return by weighting the expected fu ture real rates of re turn by the 

target asset allocat ion percentage and by adding el\pected inflation . The tareet allocation and best estimates of 

arithmetic real rd tes of return for each major as,et class are summariied in the following table: 

Globa l equity 

Global li~ed income 

Priv~ tc lnvcstmcnts 

In fl ation 

Asset Class 

Administrative 4axpenses nened above 

Investment r.ite of retu rn 

Target Allocatlo n 

60.00% 
Z0.00% 

20.00% 

100.00% 

Long-l erm 

Expected Rea l 

Rate ot Return 

!>.25% 

1.25% 
/ ,25% 

Expected l\lloney­

Weighted Rate 

of Rl!tllrn 

3.1~% 
0.25% 

l .4~% 

2.50% 

0.25% 

7.60% 

Dlsaoun1 Rate, The dlsu,un t rate urnd to measum thP. total pr.n,lon 11.iblllty as of Oeceml>r.r 3 1, 2020 was 7.6% (down 

from 8.0% at December 31, 2019). The project ion of cash flows used to de tcrminu the discount rate assumes that 

employer and employee contributions will be n,ade at the rates agreed upon for employees and the actuarially 

determined rdtes for employers. llaised on these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to 

be available to pay all projected future tienefit payments of aurrent actlve and inactive employees. I hP.refore, the long­

term expected rate of ret l!rn on pens ion plan invest ments was app lied to all periods of projected benefi t payments to 
detenn!ne the tota l pension liability. 
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Changes in Net Pe11sian Liability, rhe components of the change in the net pension liabil ity are summarized as follows: 

Total Pension Plan Hduciary Ne~ PensTon 

Liability Net Position Lh• blllty 
M (b) M · lbl 

Ualanc;es ~t December 31, 2019 $ 42,1/8,549 $ 31,397,676 $ 10,/80,8/3 

Changes for the year; 

Service cost 1,028,555 1,028,555 

Interest 3,183,213 3,183,213 
Changes in benefits 16,478) (6,478) 

Difference bctwe.,n oxpt,ctod and actual 

experience 891,166 891,166 

Changes In a~umptlons 1,2.3/,596 l,23/,S96 
Employer cont ributions 1,680,775 11,680,775) 
L m ployec con tri bu t ion s S33,/8S (~33,/8!>) 

NP.t Investment income 4,203,514 14,203,51'1) 

Bendit payments, including refunds ol 

enip loyee cont ributions 11,548,243-) (1,548,243) 

Administrative expense (64,387) 64,387 

Other ch,mges {40,165} 140,16$} 

Net changes 4,745,644 4,805,444 (59,800) 

Balances at December 31, 2020 s 46,924,193 $ 36,203,120 s 10,721,073 

Chor1gc, /11 As,~mptiuris. In 2020, amounts ix,portcd a~ changes of a~umptlons reiulteci primarily from a detrease In tht) 

assumed rat" of return from 7.75% to 7.35%, -und J decreas" in the Jssumed ra te of wage inflati on from 3.75% to 3.00%. 

Sen.~lriVlty of the Nrn Pen.<ion Lloblllry co Change,< In rhP. Di.1count Rate. The fo llowing pmsents t he net pP.nsion l iabil ity of 

the Townsh ip, calculat~•d using the discount rate o.f 7.6%, as well as what t he County's net pension liab ility would be if it 
were calculated usJne a discount rate that Is 1% lower (6.6%) or 1% higher 18.6%) t han t he cu rrent rate: 

Curri!nt 

1% Decreasl! Dlscounl Ratl! 1% Increase 

(6.6%) 17.6'!£1 (8.6'1!,) 

I ownshlp' net pension liability $ 1/,32.S,983 $ 10,121,013 $ ~,271,898 

P«nslon Pion Fidt1c/ory Nr.:t Position. Detailed information -ubout the pension plan', fid uciary net pos ition Is available, In 

the separately issued Plan financial st tements , 
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Pension EKpense and Deferred Outflaws/111//aws af Resources Re lated ta Pensions 

for the year ended Oecember 31, 2020, t he I ownship recoenlzecl pension expense of $1,680,6S2. l he I owns hip 

reported deferred outflows of resou rces rela ted to pensions from the following sources: 

Net Deferred 
Di!fi!rr1>d Outflows 

Outflows of Deferred Inflows (Infl ows! of 

Resources of Resources Resources 

Diffcrcn~c between expected and actual experience $ 1,243,683 $ $ 1,243,683 

Changes in assumptions 1,554-,785 1,554,785 

Nc,t difference betwec,n projected and actual 

earnings on pens ion plan Invest ment s 1,274,872 11,274,872) 

$ 2,198,468 $ 1,214,8/2 $ 1,523,S96 

AmouMs reported as pension re lated deferred outflows of r~sourrns will be rcGO(lnlzcd In pension expense as follows: 

Vear Ended 
December 311 Amount 

2021 $- 523,429 

2022 778,277 
2023 104,464 
2024 117,426 

Tota l $ 1,523,596 

Payable to the 1'ens1on Plan, At December 11, 2020, the I owns hip reported a payab le of $184,918 far the outstanding 

amount of contribut ions r<,quifl!d for the yearend"d D<,cember 31, 2020. 

The govern m~ntal ac\iviti~• net perision liability is genera.lly liquidated by the gen~r•I fund. 
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14. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN 

Gerrero/ lrrfarmatiorr About the Plan 

Pion DesGr/ption. fhe I Qwnship partklpates on a single•employer other politemployment benefit plan {the "Ol'LIJ ~lan''I 
that provides heil[thcare bendits to eligible reti rees and thi,ir beneficiaries. The OPEB Plan was adopt,id and established 

by the I owns hip lloard of I ruslees. 

I he- rownshlp opted ta participate- In the Municipal Lmployces' H tlrcment System (MLRS) Hctlrnmcnt Health hundlng 
Vehicle (RHFV). The MERS RHFV bec;;me operntional in the fo ll of 2004, and was made avai lable lo all municipalities in 

Michigan. Partic ipating municipalities can contribute monies to the I rus t as desired and no con tribu tion 1nethod Is 
imposed. These funds constitute a healt h care fund, which enable municipalities to accumulate monies to provide or 
subsidize health benefits for reti rees ond beneficiaries as dolined by Code S-<!ctlon 213. 1 ~e Retiree Health funding 
Vehic le accounts are inve;ted in the MERS portfolio choices and earn ings are tax e~empt as a result of the MERS Private 

Letter Huline. Plan prov1slons and requirements arc spec ified In the McRS Heal th C~rc Savines Pro~ram and Rctrrcc 
Hea lth Funding Vehicle Plan Document and Trust. 

Benefits Provided. The Town5hips provides other postP.mployment benefits, as follows: 

E1T1ployee Type 
Non represented employees I excluding 

elected officials), po lice ( l f'OAMI, 
dispatchers. and fi renghkrs (IAFF) 

Class 1: ,ull time elected officials 

Benefits Provided 

For "mplovees hired before December 31, 2006 (December 31, 2007 for 
non-repre,ented members), the I own,hlp will pay ~ portion of t he cost of 
medical plan premiums for the rc tir~e and spouse for llfo. The Township 
portion of premiums is 100% for employees with 10 or more years of 
se rvice as of 12/31/2009 and 90% for all others. Benefits continue tu the 

suNiVil'IB ~pouse afler the retrree', death. 

For employees hired after Dooomber 31, 200& (December 31, 2001 for non 
represented members), the Township will pay a portion of the reti ree-only 
mcd!Gal pla~ premiums tor life. I he maximum amauf')t payable by the 
Township is $600 per month, and this amount is not Indexed. No benefits 
arc pnyablc for spouse coverage, or surviving spouse coverage, 

For Class I ful l I lme Liectcd Offkia ls elected before December 31, 200/, 
t~e Township will pay 90')/, of the app licable premium for both the eligible 

Llccwd Official and their spouse at the time of retirement (providod 
he/she rnma ins the spouse), When the eligib le reti ree or his/her spouse at 
th~ time of retlromont roachei ago ~ixty five 165) (or the Medicare 
eligibility age, If higher), the retiree or spousP. must app ly tor Medic.ire 
Coverage (Parts A ilnd 8) and pay the app llcablo premium. The rotircc or 

spouse wil l then be enrolled in " I owns hip provided supplemental he"lth 
ins~rance plan and the Employer w111 pay the premium to provfde said 
supp lemental coverage for the elle lble retiree and spouse at the time of 
retiremen t Bcrndl ts continue to the surviving spouse after the re ti ree's 
death, 
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Employee Typa 
Class 1: Fu ll -t ime elected officials 
(concluded) 

Police ~atrol (POAM) 

Police Command 

Benefits Provided 

For Cldss I Fu ll Time Elected Officia ls elected dftcr December 31, 2007, the 
I owns hip shall only pay the cost of sina le subscriber coverage up to $600 

p~r month for the re t iree. When the eligible retiree reaches age sixty fi ve 
(6!>) (or the Medicare ellciblllty age, if hlBher), the retiree must app ly for 
Medirnre Coverage (Parts A and B) and pay the app lic;,b le premium. The 

retiree wi ll then be ~nrolled in ;a I ownship provided supplementa l plan 
and tne Employer wil l pay up lo $600 per month towards the 
supp lemental premium to provide said supplemental coverage tor the, 
eligible retiree. No benefits are p;iyable for spouse coveoe1ge or surviving 

spouse coverage. 

13cginning at ago ~O, the I ownshlp wil l pay o portion pf the cos t of modi cal 

plan premiums for t he retiree and his/her spouse for life. The Township 
portion of premiums Is 100% for employees hired before January 1, 200'/ 
and SO% for those hired after. Benef1ts cont inue t o the surviving spouse 
af tL•r the retiree's death. 

The Township Wil l pay 100% of the cost of medical plan premiums for the 
retiree and his/her spouse for life. Benefits continue to the surv iving 
spouse after the- reti ree's death. Re tirees who them work for -..nother 

township In the same capoclty have their re tiree medical ,overage 
suspended, When t he ret iree Is no longer working, he/she can re,umc 
medical cover;,,ce wit h Pi ttsfield, 

Lmp/oyees Covel'ed b)I /Jene/it lerms. At January l, 2019, the date of the most recent actuarial va luation, plan 
memb.,rship conS1<ted of the following: 

Inact ive employees or beneficiaries current ly receiving benefi ts 
Inactive employees entilli'd to but not yet rec<'IVing b.enefits 
Active employees 

Total membership 

18 

3 
128 

149 

NPt Other Postemployment Benefi~ Lit1billty. Th" Township's net oth"r postf!mploym.,n t b.,n.,fits liabi lity was measured 

as of l)ecember 31, 2020, and the tota l other postemployment benefits llablllty used to calculate the net other 
po,temployment b<ln.,fits liab ili ty was d~termint<d by an actuaria l va luation .as of January 1, 2019 (rol l"d forward to 
IJeccmber 31, 2020). 
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Ac:tuor/o/ /J,.ssumpt/ons. The to1al other postemployment benefrts liability was detern,lned by an actuarial valuation as of 

J,rnuary 1, 2019 l<Jnd rolled forw~rd to December 31, 2020, the measurement dutel, using the following actuarial 

assumptions, applied to all periods inc luded In the measurement ; 

Inflat ion 

Salary Increases 

lnv~stment rot/:! o f riE:1-turn 

Healthcare trend rate 

2.:0% 
3.75% 

6.75% 

9.00% graded down lo 4.0% 

Rate, of mortali ty for members and their beneficiaries arc the same as what Is used in the ML~S December 31, 201/ 

actuarial valuation. MERS uses a 50% Male 50% Female blend of the following rabies: 

• (I) rhc RP 2014 Ht,althy Annui tant Mortality labl~s, with rates multip lied by 10:,'l{, 

• (11 ) The RP-2014 Employee Morta lity Tobie; 

For ages 18 - 49, MERS uses the rates from Table II. For ages 70 and older, MEI\S uses rhe rates In Table I. For ages 50-69, 

MLRS blends I ab IQ II and I ab le I as follows: 

• Agr. 50 - 60% ofTab le 11 and 40% of Tijblr. I 

Age 51 57% of Table II and 43%ofTablc I 

• Etc.1-

Age 69 3% of Tab le II .and 97% of Table I 

Rates of mortality for disabled rnernbcrs arc the same as what ls ~sed In the MERS December 31, 2017 actuarial 

vah,atlon. MLRS uses the RP-2014- l)isabled Retiree Mortality I able, blended ~0% male ~nd SO% female , 

1 he actuarial ssumpt1ons u,ed In the Jan\1arv l, 2019 valuatiOn were based on the res Wits of the most receM actuarial 
esperience study of 2009-2D13. 

Investment Policy. The OPEB Plan's policy ill regard to the -a llocation of Invested assets is estab lished and may be 

amended by the I own.ship lloa,·d of I rustees. I he investment policy has been formulated based on consideration of a 

wide range of policies and describes the prudent investment processes that the Township Board of Trustees deems 

approprialU. l he OPLll Plan's asseta lloc;atlon policy is shown on the following pages, 

Concentrot1011;, At Dc~ember 31, 2020, the OPLll Plan's Investments were ful ly Inves ted in t he Ml:RS Retiree Health 

fonding Vehicle. 

Rare of Renirn. f'or the year ended December 31, 2020, the an nu.I money-weighted rare of rr. turn on investments, net 

of Investment "1Rpcnse, was 13.46 p<:rcent. The money weighted rate of rntu rn expresses 1nvestmcnt performance, net 

of Investment 6l\pense, adjusted for the changlns an1ounts actually Invested . 
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Long-term Expecced Rote of Rerurn. The long-term expeaed rate of return on other postemployment benefits plan 
investmen ts w.as determined using ;a model m'>lhod in which the best est imate Ciingcs of expected future ,.,al rates of 

return (expected returns, net o f investment and administrative expenses and inflation) are developed for each major 

asset class. These ranges arc combined to produce the long term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 

futlJre rea l rates of return li y the 1areet asset allocation percentaee and by adding expected inflation. 1 he tdr@et 

allocation and besl: estimat /:s of a rithmetic real rates of rell.Jrn for each major asset class are summarized in the fol lowi!lg 

tab le : 

Global equirv 

Globa l fixed Income 

Private Invest men ts 

lnflutlon 

Risk adjustment 

Asset Class 

Investment rate of return 

Target Allocation 

60.00% 

20,00% 

20.00% 

100.00% 

Long-term 

Expected Real 

Rate of Return 

5.15% 

1.2!>% 

7.25% 

Expected Mciney, 

Weighted Rate 

of Return 

3.15% 

0.25% 

1-45% 

2.~0% 

-0.60% 

675% 

Di,count Rate. Th~ discount ra,te used to measure the total other postempl0ym~nt benefits liability is 6.75% for 2020. 

I he project ion of cash f low~ used to determine the diswunt rate a.slimes that emp loyer and employee contributlClns will 
be mad@ at the ra tes agr.,ed upon for "mployees and the /1CIUarially determined rates for employer,;. Based on these 

assumptions, t he other postemploymcnt benefits pla n's flduclilry net po.lltlon was projected 10 bG available to pay all 

projected future benefit payment s of cummt .active and Inactive employees. rherefore, t he long-term expected rate of 

return on other post.employment benefits plan Invest ments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 

determine the total other postemployment benefl liability. 

Ner OPEB Llob/1/tyof the Township. The components of t he net OPEB liability of t he Township ~t December 31, l020, 

fatal OPEB liability 

~Ian fiduciary net poBl t lon 

Township's net OPEB liability 

Plan fiduciary net position as a 

percentage of the total OPEB 

liability 

76 

$ 13,805,972 

l2,882,063 

s 9·23,909 

93.3% 
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Changes in Net Other Postemp/oyrr,ent Benefits Liability. The components of the change in the net other 

postamploymcnt benefits (OPEB) liability -are summdrlzod ds fo llows: 

Total OPU Plan Fiduciary Net 0PE8 

Liability Net Position Liability 

!a) (~I M - {bl 

Ba la~ce.s at Oetemb~r 31, 2019 $ 12,856,770 $ 10,989,831 $ 1,866,939 

Ch anges for thP. y~ar: 

Ser;lcc C-OSt 299,800 299,800 
Interest 880,400 880,400 
Lmploycr contributions 682,19/ (582,19/) 
Net Investment income 1,460,774 11,460,774) 

l.lcnefit payments, including refunds of 
employee cont ributions 1230,998) (230,998) 

Administrdtlvc, expense (l.9,141) 19, /41 

Net changes 949,202 1,892,232 (943,W0) 

Balances at December 31, 2020 $ 13,805,972 $ 12,882,063 $ 923,909 

SensitMty of the Net Otlrt•r l'ostemp/oymcnt Uerrejlts L/abi/lty to Changes in the IJ/scaurtt R<1tc. rhc follow Ing prl'scnts 
the net o ther postemployment ben,:fits liability of the Township, calculated using the discount rate ol 6.75%, as wel l as 
what the r ownsh lp's not other pos~employmcnt b~n~flts liability would bu If it were ca lcul11tcd using a disoount rat~ tha t 

is 1% lower (5 . /~%) or l % high<!r ( / , /.:.%) tha n th e current rate: 

J owns hip's net other poe,temployment 
b.,m, fits lia bility (~s,.,t) 
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$ 

1% Decrease 
15.75%) 

Current 

Dise<>unt Rate 
(6.75%) 

1% Increase 

(7.75%) 

3,•68,986 .. s====-92,_3,.,9=•-9,.,==s===='=a=3G=,1=2=4=-l 
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Sen.sitivlry af the Ner Orher Pasternplayment Benefits Uability ta Change., in the Healthcare Cast Trend Flates. The 
fol lowing presents the net other postemploymcnt benefi ts liability of the Township, calculated u,lng the healthcare cost 

trend rate of 8.6 1%, as well as what the lownship', net other postemployment benefits llablllty wou ld be If It were 
calcula ted using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1% lower 17 .67%) or 1% higher (9.67%) than the current rate: 

I cwnshlp 's net other postemploymcnl 

benefits liability (asset) 

1% Decrease 
(7, 6 7% graded 

down to 3,00 %) 

Current 

Healthcare Cost 

n end Rate 

(8.67% graded 
down to 4 ,00%) 

1% Increase 

{9 .67% grad ed 
down to5 ,00%) 

$ (1,278,067) .$ 923,,J09 $ 3,711,625 

Dlher Posremployment Benefit fJtpense 011d Deferred Durf/o ws/lnf/ows of Resources Re/ared to Orher 
Po, temp/oyme11 t Benefits 

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Township recognized other postemployment benefits expense ot $434,346. 

I he I ownshlp reported deferred outflows of resources related to other postemploymcnt bmrefi ts as fo llows: 

Net Deferred 
Deferred Outflow s 

Outflows o/ Deferred Inflows (Inflows) cf 

Resourc:es of Resources Resourca'!i 

Difference between e•pected and at:ttjal e,pe rience $ 921 $ s 911 

ChanBe• in assumptions 342,351 34.l,351 

Net difference betweim prQjP.~ted and actual 

earnings on other postcmp[oyment bc11eflt s 

plan investments 519,63.2 (519,632) 

s 343,271 $ 519,631 $ (176,36D) 
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ll,111ounts repott<!d as other postemployrnent benefits-related deterred ou tflows of resources will be recognized in other 
postemploymcnt benefi ts expense a, follows: 

Year Ended 
December 31, Amomrt 

2021 $ 19,457) 
2022 19,458) 

2023 (212,6/2) 

2014 (91,889) 

2025 49,039 

2026-2021 98,0/ I 

Total $ ll/G,360) 

Payable ta the Otlll!f Postemp/oymcnt IJcncflt., Pion. At Dcccmbt,r 31, 2020, the. I ownshlp rcport6'd no amount payable 

to t he OPEB plan. 

Governmental act iv iti es net other postemployment benefits liability is ·generafly liqUldared by the general fund. 

15. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN 

Plan De5'ription. The employP.r', defined contribut ion OPEB plan IHe~lth Care Savings Progrnm) pr,;,vides certilln heal th 
ca re bcneflts to plan members and legal dependents upon termination of employmc~t The employer partlclpates In the 
Municipal [mployees Ret irement System (MlRS) of Mlchiean, MU,S Is ari ag.ent multiple employer, statewide public 
employee defined cont ribution OPEB plan established by the Michigan Legf, laturn Linder Public Act 135 of 1945 and 

adm1nis tered by a nine member Retirement IJoard. Public Ast 42/ of 1984, <1s <1mended, establlshe~ and amends the 
benefit provisions of t he participants In MERS. MERS i"'u"" a pub licly available flnantial report that inc ludes financial 
stat ements and req~ired supp lementary information. I hi• report may be obtained accessine the MLKS website at 
w·ww.ml:!!rsofmich.c:om. 

Contribution Rates or Amount;. The ernploye, ron tributr,s 1% • 2% of bas!! pay; ~mployees are requ1r"d to contribut e 1% 

of base pay. Cont ribut ion rates are-determined by the employer and may be ilmcndi,d by t he local governing body. 

Uencflt I crm~. Lmployecs are immediat ely vested In thcir contribu tions and t•arninBs of those contributions, and 
become vested on employer contribut ions alter completion of 10 years of creditable service with t he employer 

depending on th~ plan provisions. 

Contr/bot/on Amc;unh, For the year end •d Oeccmbt!r Jl, 1020, cmploye~ cont ribu tion~ were $39, 72'> and cmployi,r 
cont ributions were $68,771. 

Forfeiturr. Amount~. Nonwistr.d employer con tribut ions are forfeited upon termination of employment. Such forfeltUm, 
are used to cover future employer contributions, be directed to the employer's Retiree Health Funding Vehicle, !If 
applicab le) or be equa lly distributed among all remaining active participants In the plan, At the end of December 31, 
2020 forfeitures of $27,199 reduced the employer's defined contribu tion OPEB expense. 

fmploy~r liobi/ity. At December 31, 2020, the Townsh ip repo rt"d no amount payab le to the OPEB plan. 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Notes To Financial Statements 

16. NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS-

I he composition of net investment In capita I assets as of llecember 31, 2020, was as follows: 

Government<1I !Jus lness-type 

activiti@s activrties 

c;.-ipltal asset~ 
Capital assets not be ing depreciated s 25,820,599 $ 1,931,429 

Capita l asset s being depreciated, nC'I 9,154,/64 30,829,131 
34,975,363 32 ,760,560 

Less related debt: 

llonds payab le 3,664,000 .'>,331,080 

Unamo"lzed deferred charge on refunding (54,533) 

Less: unspent bond proceeds (.'>80,0491 
3,083,951 5,276,547 

Net investment in capi ta l assets $ 31,891,4 12 ~ 27,484,013 

Long-terrn debt related to special assessmentS is not includ~d in the calculation for net invei;tment in cap it;, I assets siru:e 
t h~sc-asscts do not belong to the Township. 

17, CORONAVIRUS (COVI0•19) 

In March 2020, the Worl d Ht!alth Organization declared the novel coronavirus ou(break (COVID-19) ·to be a global 

pandemic. I he extent of the Ult imate impact of t he pandemic on the I ownship's operational and financial pertormanc~ 
w111 dep.,nd on various d~v•fopme.n t,, in~luding the durat ion and spr@ad of t he. ou tbr@ak and its impact on O! tnployees, 
~endors, and taxpayers, all of which ea~not be reasonably predicted at this time. In addition, ,t may place addit ional 

demands on the Township for providing emergency services to its cit i~ens. While management reasonably expects the 
COVID 19 outbreak to nceatively impact the I ownship' financial position, chanecs In financial position, and, where 
applicable, the timing and amounts of cash f lows, 1h..- related financia l consequences and durat ion are high ly uncertain . 

••••• 
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PITTSFIElD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Required Supplementary Information 
M ERS Agent Mu ltiple~Employer Defin ed Bef1eflt Pension Pb r 

Schedu le, of Oiange:i;ln Net Pcn:i;lon liablllti, and Rdutad RDtl1r..o 

Vor fl"lded O~etnbll!r 31, 

201~ 2016 2017 2018 zm9 2020 

Tomi picrul on llnbillty 

S(i.tVlcf>(..(l"iit- 5 903,1/1~ :, 91/rl lO 1JJl,)OO ?11) .~i\9 s ?81,llfl l r07ft,',\!, 
h, t~,e~t ~.,88,11' V lb8,illl l,llb,lVI ,,9,.,1)[ S,110,9~• J,]83,213 

Chdnf!.~~ 111 bt1-oelit U? t 111s. toA781 
Dlffm('IIC'Q .. b ... rw~~ m:rlPr.lr>cl iHUJ 

.irll l iii l ti'XfW'lrlr.i-nr.P. •,";4,B8!1 ~6,.:l,Jl ~11M ', l ll~, \',I, 89 1115Ci 
c hr1JJ1:1,ei; Of a..,~unl1intm,;: l ,Sn~,88~ 1,73.f,VJb 

Bonottt p.1ym~rin., h1d11di ng ,c.tund,: 
ot er tploy(:c ci:mt,ibl.l tiionr, i91U~l) IU15,8191 (1,il4,&801 li.37~.B.!IJ 11.484,9471 11S48,243) 

OthPr fhilf'l6e"' 177,QO.',) (ll\,&851 (,9,31•1 'i,7lr1 ()77,1921 (•0,16',) 

Net ch• nge In tot• I pen11ioo 11• bl1it:y 1,199,~91 1~,2 l.6r799 2).595,681 l,8871t,i5 2,539,309 4,7 1,M 4 

Tot,.d JX!m ion 1k1bi li1y. btgit111ir1fS 011,'t!O r 27,74ll,02l. l9,939,615 34,156.414 36.751 ,095 39,639,241) 42,178,549 

Toter pernion llabil itY, end of yea, l~,939,6L'> ~4,1 ~6,~ IA 36, 15.2,09~ ~9,b"!!l,t .ilO .,1,11~!:iil.9 116,9211,193 

Plii1111 (ldudary net podtlon 

1- mp1oyt> r ron1Jlb1.11io11'i IJ91 /J14 1,17u)bl \ \il/S/JB 1,487 /lb;J J ,S(,8,0ll \,t:.801/1 ' , 

t11,(lkiyef'Torltrlht1rin-11~ 460 ,5 \9 b,UJ180J '10.-'l,19 ~!19,lrf.l ,,4 ,rn IH,IR', 
Net in ,.•c-rtmc m ·in romc jlont 1313,91121 2,J6J,526 l,J95,447 11,126, 19~) l ,741,272 •,lOJ,5!4 
8cncfit piryn,~n,~, 01,111di nl!I , c.fo rtd~ 

pf r- mr!Qtnn r.0111 1ibu,N;)ri ..- 191•1,39\) 11.01 5,8191 It, IS4,(,ij0) p ,!79,1!>1) 11 .•84,•01 11,s,s,,.,1 
Ad n1ln i~11 .. Ulw l:!J(pe.•1~t! IH,9 17) /46,5731 (50, ll5) (54,7l81 IM,1011 (M,18?) 

Nclchan,g~ In plan fJdudi:uy nCtfrnltion 180.243 3, 177,703 4,388.664 1683;626) 4.Z74,155 ~.805.444 

t1l<l1i lldi1t iil1Y rh; t r,,r.isit lo 11 1 bPgin 11111,i: ofye,;1r ;010[i(] ,.S-.:I / 1W1JAtJ1 IBO ! 3;113,483 J.1,80?,HI .O, J/3-.5 :ll :H ,19 11'1ilb 

Pl..-i flclut:iary net podtlon. end of-ye•r 20,H0,780 23,41.8,483 l7,807,U7 27, 13,521 31,397),70 36,101,120 

Town1.hrp'1, net pe.11.lon lr•b lllty s 9,f;l)8.i8::l,~ "' J01J3 J,IJ~ I $ 8,!M,4,9r18 ; U,~ 1~1 11 9 10,180,813 rn ,n t ,Dt:3 

Pl.l n fldtJtr.Jrv net pm,itlo n ;n J pc.,cent:1B,e: 

o f 101=:i l p,i1t'1-ior1 1,;abilfl.y 6J.G% (,8"6S. 15.1% 68.4¾ 74.4"' 77.)" 

Cm1ered i:,.iy,o ll s 7,708,UG "$ -B-,.41'6t18.9 $ 8,121,988 B,&.32,159 6,&07,588 9,111,l81 

1owoirihlp'-; ll ecl l)!'!!Mlnn li.ihill1ya;5, n Jle, r i:!intajj; 

of m~ rPd PtJvrcU !! S.11% m,.iw; JOG. / % H\.O~ ,~., ... l I / ,&!< 

Nllrn: '1A..ltt!. 68 ~';1:J'- implnf1•1"' 11 1rod ifl (li:;e,.11 y(",,u iD 1!:t- t li;,. ..,rl,r-du ln j1, li1?iog bull! pm •.pc:or:ri11r- ly. Ultim;:n.-. ly1 10 yf;m. of chr-1 will UC:' prn..$() otf"ld , 

(/1fln9 p r; 111 Aor\;1,rJpriQJ'l 'i. In JO tG, nimounn ,~ponE>d a,; 1·h•:103f'!; o f ;ii~o;uo1pibr1',; rP'ililtrd prfrna rUy froo1 il-.liu-rlfl tf'IJ\ l ~ ia llair. 0 1a rt it lity li1bl,r., tp rPflpp I01131"1 

rntHl rniih, d (.IL'ilht!',i i11 lht! Jnurned ld l t'. • t 1~ IU lll 1 l.l tl d i:.l11.l 1,ge'I- in J:i..'lie.l '1-nlO• thi'fJ.,1!1. 

lo )O,W, ,1IU('IU IIU t'f.ipnne(I i1' e: ha ,1 11-es r.,f tH!ii lllU l)tiMS te-c;ull I p rlm;uitv f l (lll\ n drtrl?il"l-f in th£- iJS:5.IUI\E'd ra1 (If return trOnl / , 1',9' 10 /,:-!';*, flbd it deCrf"ij:I;~ hi 

111e •:1~c:;u rw'•cl t,1(11 Q(wa/ol.E' rnfla1im 1 h cnl 1', IS'ifi l r'li 9..00~ 

82 



PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP 98 
Board of Trustees  
Minutes for a Regular Meeting  
Held June 9, 2021 
Attachment 1 

 

PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, M ICHIGAN 

• Required Supplementary Information 
M£RS Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

Schedule of Cont ributions 

Contributions in 
Fiscal Year Relation to the 

Ending Actuarially Actuaria lly Contribution Contri l:lutions as 

December Determined Determin ed (Deficiency) Covered Percentage of 
31, Contribution Contribution r xcess Payroll Covered Payroll 

2020 $ 1,680,775 $ 1,680,775 $ $ 9,117,281 18.1% 
2019 1,568,013 1,568,013 8,607,588 18.2% 
2018 1,487,963 1,487,963 8,632,,459 17.2% 
2017 1,475,913 1,475,913 8,424,988 17.5% 
2016 1,226,767 1,226,767 8,476,189 14.5% 
2015 992,974 992,974 7,708,416 12.9% 

Note: GA5B 68 was implemented rn fiscal year 2015. This schedule ls being butlt prospectively. Ultimately, 10 years of 
data wi ll be prese11ted . 

Notes to Schedule of Contributions 

Va luation Date Actuarially determined contrlbutron rates are calculated as of December 
31, which Is 12. months prior t o the beginning of the fisea l year in which 
contrlbut)ons are reported. 

Methods anti assumptions used lo determine contribution rates 12020, based on the 12/31/2018 actuarial va luation): 

Actuarial cost method !:ntry-age normal 
Amortiuition method Leve.I percent of payrol I, dosed 

RernaininB amortizat ion 
period 

Asset va llJatlon method 
Inflation 

Sa lary increases 
Investment rate of. return 
Normal rerkement age 
Mortalit'( 

21 years 
5-year smooth market 
2.50% 

3. 75% in t he long-term 
7. 75%, net of Tnvestment and administ rative expense, indudfng inflation 

Age60 
50% Fe.male/SO% Male blend of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortal!ty 

T;,b\es with rates multi plied by 105%, the RP-2014 Employee Mortality 
Tables, and the RP-2014 Juvenile Mortality Tables 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Requited supplementary Information 
Slngle-Employc r Defined Benefit other Post employmcnt Benefits Pl,m 

Schedule of Changes in Net Other Postemployment Benefits Uabllity and Related Ratios 

Year Ended Oecembel 11, 

2018 201.9 2020 

Total other postemployment benefits liability 

s~rvice co,t s 251,G20 $ 280,902 $ 299,800 
lnlere!t 712,()82 Bl :J,196 880,4()0 

Chan6e> In benefit terms 703,266 

Difr~renttts belwHien tfKµec\ etl r:md acluij l t!:<JJerience 1,185 
Changes of ass um pt Ions 440,165 
Benefit payments, iti cludlng refu nd, of emp loyee cont r]butions (149,747) (196,487) [230,998) 

Ni,t change in tota l other postemployment benefit> liability 813,955 1 ,048,127 949,202 

To1a l other postemployment benefits II ability, beginning of year 9,994,SSS 10,808,543 lZ,8S6,770 

Total other po<ternployment benefit. llab/lity, end of year lJl ,8011,,543 11,8S5,770 13,8(15,972 

Plan fidu ciary net position 

omploye. r ~()O I i ib1J llonS 467 .~l0 61l7,531l ti8Z1l97 

Net investment Income [loss) (349,245) 1,270i292 l .460,774 

Bene fi t 11avm e11 t t:-. 1 i ri c: lu d in.e r~tu uds of 1:Ht1plovl!e c:o nlrHwliuns (149,747 ) (196,487) (230,9g.<j) 

Ad111inl~tr::i tive a~pam:e (22,963) 118,036) (19,741 ) 

Net change in plan fiduciary net po,ltion 154,645) l ,b63,299 l ,892,232 

Pl.m flduch,ry n~l position, b~gh1nin~uf V~•1 9,~81,177 9,326,5J2 10,989,BH 

Plan fidu ciary net po.s,ition, end of year 9,325,531 10,989,831 12,882,063 

Township's net other pasteniptoyml!nl benefits liability s 1,4ij2,0ll $ 1,866,93~ $ 923 ,90.9 

Pfr1n lldud;1 ry net p<>~lllon a, o pe,c.,ntnge 

of toljll <>lhar postem ploymenl benefi t, hahi lity Bli,S% 85.5% 9~ .~% 

Cuverf.d payrull $ 7 ,56~,184 $ 8,200,337 $ 8,200,3H 

Townsh ips net other postemploym ent benetlls lla~1lity as a percemace 

t1fcuv~1~d1mv1 oll lij ,MI, li ,8¾ 11 .. i ~ 

Note: GA SB 75 was Implemented in liscal year l018. Tnis schedule is beine bu ill prospectively, Ultlmately, 10 years of data wrn be 
J:lfttSe.riled , 

ZD19 chanees in benefit terms: There were new barealnlnr, aereernents and extensions which ref lected paid on-call service for 
Firell l!hlerelip,ib ill\y ,md remuved \ he requirement that Polle~ P,i\J'OI (POAM) re tirees p~y the fu ll premillm between ~Ile> 50 and 55, 

l019 cha 11ees In ass umplionsc E• iiected cla ims costs tor 1019 we re updated to refl ect the latest cla im and premium intormation. 

Add it iona lly, the plJn started olferln~ twu addll1011 al plans: (1) BCBS Sim11ly Blue HSA PPO Plan (Divi,, lun 0007) and 121 BCBS· 
Community Blue PP• (Division 0008) throu8 h the BCBSM PP• plani;, 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Required Supplementary Information 
Single-Emp loyer Defined Benefit Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 

Schedule of Contributions 

Contributions in 
FlscalYear Relation to the 

Ending Actuaria lly Actuarially Contribution Contributions as 

December Determined Determined (Deficiency) Covered Percentage of 
'31, Contribut ion Contribution rxcess Pavroll Covered Payroll 

2020 $ 620,198 $ 682,197 $ 61,999 $ 8,200,337 8.3% 

2019 559,530 607,530 48,000 8,200,337 7 .4% 
2018 534,079 467,310 (66,769) 7,562,184 6.2% 

Note : GASB 75 was implemented in fiscal year 2018. This schedule is be1ng b11ilt pro~pectively, Ultimately, 10 yE'ars of 

data will be presented. 

Notes to Schedule of Contrit>utions 

Valuation Date 

Notes 

January 1, 2019 
Actuarially deterrn fned contriburion rates ate calcLtlated as of December 

31, which Is 12 montns prfot t o the beginhlng of the flscal year In Which 
contributions are reported. 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contrlb ,.nion rates: 

Act11arial cost method Entry-age normal 
Amortiz.atlon method Level percent of payrol 1, closed 

Remaining arnortization 

period 

Asset valuation .method 
Inflation 

Salary increases 
Investment rate of return 

Hea lthcare cost trend 

Normal ret irement age 

Mortal ity 

30 years 

Market .value 

2,5% 
3 ,751¼ 

6.75% 
9.0% graded down to 4.0% 

Age60 
50% Female/SO% Male blend of the RP"2014 Hea lt hy Annultant Mortali ty 
Tables with rates multiplied by 105%, 1:he RP-2014 Employee Mortality 
Tables 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, M ICHIGAN 

• Required Supplementary Information 
Single-E mployer Defined Benefi t Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 

Schedule of Investment Retu rns 

Fiscal Year 
Ending 

December 31, 

2020 
2019 
2018 

Annual 

Return 111 

13.46% 

13.51% 

·3.80% 

111 Annual money-weighted rote of retu rn , net of investment expenses 

Note: GASB 75 was implemented in fis~al year 2018. Th is schedule is being built prospectively. Ultimately, 10 years of 
data will be presented . 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Combining Balance Sheet 
NonmajorGovernmenta l Funds 
December 31, 2020 

Special Debt Capital 
Revenue Service Projects Total 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,793,505 s 230,446 $ 337,1-27 s 6,361,078 
Accounts recei vable 520,029 520,029 
Special assessments rece ivable 483,912 483/112 
Taxes receivable 541,147 541,147 
Due from other funds 37,776 37.776 
Prepaid items 3,192 3,192 

Tota I assets s 6,895,649 s 714,358 s 337,127 s 7,947,134 

liabllitjes 
Account:; payable s 300,481 s - s 36,090 $ 336,571 
Accrued liabflitles 844,545 844,545 

Due ta other funds 46,734 46,734 
Escrow payable 8,387 8,387 

Total liabilities 1,200,147 36,090 1,236,237 

Deferred inflows of resources 
Unavail;;;b le revenue-

Special assessments 483,913 483,913 
Taxes levied but Intended fo r 

subsequent per iod 993,731. 19,827 1,013,558 

Total deferred inflows of resources 993,731 503,740 1,497,471 

Fund balances 
Nonspendable - prepaid Items 3,192 3,192 

Restricted: 

General gawrnme11t '386,459 386,459 

Public safety 2,556,036 2,556,036 

Publ ic works 509,412 509,412 
Culture and recreation 1,246,672 1,246,672 
Debt service 210,618 210, 618 

Committed -

Ca pital projects 301,037 301,037 

Total fund balances 4,701,771 2.10,61.8 301,037 5,213,426 

Total liabilities, deferred Inflows of 
resources and fund balances $ 6,895.649 $ 714,358 $ 337,127 $ 7,947,134 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Nonmajor Governmenta l Funds 

Fo r the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

speoial Del:)t capit-11 

Revenue Service Projects T otal 

Revenues 

Taxes and specla I assessments s ¾2,857 s 79,023 -S s 1,02 1,880 
Licenses and permits 1,896,738 1,896,738 
Intergovernmenta l 81,626 81,626 
Charges for services 1,958,099 1,958,099 
Interest income 8,907 111 9,018 
Other revenue 62,786 62,786 

Total revenues 4,951,013 79,134 5,030,147 

Expenditures 

Current: 

General government 31,401 31,401 
Public,afetv 1,216,628 1 ,216,628 
Public works 1,905,153 1,905,153 

CU iture and recreation 366,458 366,458 
Debt service-

Prfnclpa l 114,878 114,8 78 

In terest and fiscal cha rges 23,184 23,184 
Ca pita I ou day 304,991 279,914 584,905 

Totill expenditures 3,824,631 138,062 279,914 4,242,607 

flevenues over (under) expenditures 1,126;382 (58,928) (279,914) 787,540 

Drherflnancing source 

Trans fers In 73,002 57,875 570,989 701,866 

Net change in fund balances 1, 199,384 ll,053) 291,075 1,489,406 

Fund balances, beginning of year 3,502,337 2-11,67 1 9,962 3,724,020 

Fund balances, end of year ~ 4i701i711 s 210,618 $ 301,037 $ 51213.426 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Combining 8alante Sheet 
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
December 31, 2020 

Parks & 

Refuse Tree Buil~ing Recreation 

Collection Mitigation Department Millage 
As,ets 

Cash and ca,h equivalent.- $ 183,037 $ 278,453 $ 3,348,555 $ 1,747,206 

Acc:ounl.s: rf!ceivab le 502,703 11,324 6,002 

Ta~~• recelvau le 541,147 

Due from other funds 266 14,963 1,669 

r,~paid Items 3,190 

Tota r assets. $ 686,006 $ 29.~,416 $ 3,363,069 $ 2,297,024 

Liabilities 

Account< payable $ lhll ,207 $ 3,4~9 $ 1'.l ,671 $ S.1 ,B8 

Accrued liabilities 842,261 1.447 
Due tu olhe, fund, 2~0 ~.11.,lj 

Escrow payable B,387 

Total liabilities 176,594 3.499 856 ,142 56,621 

DBferred Inflows of resources 

Ta,es levl~d o~l inte.ri~ed ror 
!ii!Jb~equ~nt µerlod 993,1.n 

Fund bal.anclE!.s 

Nonspe.ndab le - prepaid llerrr, 3,1.\lO 

Restricted: 

G~ner al ~overnmen\ 289,917 

Public safl!tv 2,50.1, 737 

Public work> 509,412 

Cul\ure ~•-1d rec realign 1,246,672 

Total fu nd balances 509,412. 289,917 2,506,927 1,246,672 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows 
ofresources and fund balances $ 686,006 $ 293,416 $ '1,363,069 $ 21297,024 
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E911 800 MH1 Sidewal~ Feder~! Drug Law 

Service Consortium Reserve Fire Forfeiturl!< Enforcement Total 

s s 24,059 $ 126,442 $ 57,299 $ 1,656 $ Z6,798 $ 5,793,505 

520,029 
541,147 

272 19,588 18 31,17b 

2 3,192 

$ 272 $ 24,061 $ 146,030 $ 57,299 $ 1,656 $ 26,816 s 6,895,649 

$ $ $ .s.noo $ 56,%6 $ .$ $ 300,4ijl 

837 844,545 

44,4tt8 46,7H 
B,387 

837 49,488 56,966 1,200,147 

993,731 

l .'l,l.92 

96,!;4; 386,459 

in 23,222 333 1,656 26,816 2,556,036 
509,412 

1,246,672 

zn 23,224 96,542 333 1,656 26,816 4,701 ,771 

272 $ 24,061 $ 146,030 $ 57,299 ~ 1,656 $ 26,816 s 6,895,649 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSH IP, MICHIGAN 

• Combining Statement of Revenues, EKpenditures and Changes in Fund Balan~es 
Nonrnajor Specl~I Revenue Funds 

For the Vear Ended December 31, 2020 

Park> ,& 

R@fuse Tr@e Boilding Recr~ation 

Coller:tfon Mitigation Department Millage 

ReV"emJes 

Ta~es aOd ,specia l assessn1ents $ $ $ $ 942,857 

Licenses and permits 1,896,738 

Intergovernmental 4,469 
Charge:; for s-ervlc~s 1,895,763 1,917 

lnleresr rncome 603 242 5,417 2,555 

Olher reve11ue • con(rl~ulions 161 

Tota l revenues 1,896,366 142 1,902,155 951,959 

E,penditures 

Cu rrent: 

G eoe ra I Bovern rne r, l 31,401 

Public safety 1,'.l,J..2,(;03 

Public works 1,905,153 
Cu l\u r~ and r~cr~at ion 36&,458 

Capl1,1I outlay 118,091 

Tota l expenditures .'11905,153 31,401 1,112,603 484,549 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (8,787) (31,159) 789,552 467,410 

Other financil"lg source 

Transfers In 

Net change. in fu r,d balances (M,7H7) (31,159) 789,552 467,410 

Fund bali:!nces, beginmn(i or· year 518,199 321,076 1,717,375 779,2G2 

Fund balance •, end c f year $ 509,412 $ 289,917 s 2,506,927 $ 1,246,672 
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E911 800 MHz Sidewalk F@dl!ral Dru~ Law 

Service Consortium Reserve Fire Forfeitures Enforcement Total 

$ $ $ $ $ $ s 942,857 

1.8%,7aa 
77,157 81,626 

52,500 7,919 1,958,099 
8 20 60 2. 8,907 

35,000 26,654 971 62,786 

8 52,520 35,060 85,076 26,656 97.1 4,951,013 

31,401 

53 ,137 50,888 1.216,(,2.8 

1,905,153 

366,458 

30,000 85,!lO0 2.5,000 46,000 ;!04,991 

53 ,137 50 ,888 30,000 85,900 Z5,000 46,000 3,82.4,631 

153,129) 1,632 .S,060 (824) 1,656 14.5,029) 1,126,382 

1,157 71,845 73,002 

(53,129) 1,632 5,060 333 l,t,56 l6,8).6 1,199,384 

53,401 211592 91,482 3,502,387 

$ 272 s 23,224 s 96,542 $ 333 5 1,656 $ 26,816 s 4,701,771 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Budget and Actual - Refuse Collection 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Actual over 

Or!slnal Final (Under) Final 

Budget Budget Actual 811\lget 
Revenues 

Taxes and special assessments s $ $ $ 

Licenses and permits 

Intergovernmental 

Charges for services 1,763,098 1,988,098 1,895,763 (92,335) 

I Mf!rest income 1,000 1,000 603 (397) 

Other revf!n ues 

Total revenues 1,764,098 1,989,098 J_,896,366 (92,732) 

Expenditures 

Current: 

Genera l government 

Public safety 

Publfc works 1,761,532 1,986 ,532 1,905, 153 (81,379) 

Culture and recreation 

Capi tal outlay 

Total expenditures 1,761,532 l,986,532 1,905,153 (81,379) 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 2,566 '2,566 (8,787) (11,353) 

Other financing sources 

Transfers in 

Net change in fund balance 2,566 (8,787) (11,'>53) 

Fu nd ba lanee, beginning of year 518,199 518,199 518,199 

Fund balance, end of year- $ 520,765 .s 520,765 5 509 412 $ (11,353 ) 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Schedule of Revenues, Expenditutes and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual - Tree Mitigation 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Actual over 
Or!slnal Final (Under) Final 

Budget Budget Actual B11\lget 
Revenues 

Taxes and special assessme nts s $ $ $ 
Licenses and permits 

Intergovernmental 

Charges for services 

I Merest income 700 700 242 (458) 

Other rave.nue~ 200,000 200,000 (200,000) 

Tota l revenues 200,700 200,700 242 (200,458) 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General government 250,500 250,500 31,401 (219,099) 
Public safety 

Public works 
Culture and recreation 

Capita l outlay 

Total expenditures 250,500 250,500 31,401 (21.9,099) 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (49,800) (49,800) (31,159) 18,641 

Other financing sources 

Transfers in 

Net change in fund balance (49,800) (49,800) (31,159) 18,641 

Fu nd ba lanee, beginning of year 321,076 321,076 321,076 

Fund balance, end of year- $ 271 276 .s 271,276 s 289 917 $ 18,641 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Schedule of Revenues, Expenditutes and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual - Build ing Department 
For the Yea r Ended December 31, 2020 

Actual o ver 
Otlslnal Final (Under) Final 

Budget Budget Act\.Jal B11dget 
Revenues 

Taxes and spec ial assessments s $ $ s 
Licenses and permits 1.23-5 ,00J 1,252,500 1,896,738 644,238 

Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
I Merest income 4,000 4,000 5,417 1, 417 
Other revenue~ 2,000 2,000 (2,000) 

Tota l revenues 1,241,000 1,258,500 J.,902,155 643,6S5 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 1,079,801 1,245,646 1,112,603 (133,043) 

Public works 
Culture and rec rea tion 

Capita l outlay 30,00J 

Total expenditures 1,109,801 1,245,646 l ,l12,603 (133,043) 

Revenues over expenditurej 131,199 12,854 789,552 776,698 

Other financing sources 

Transfers in 

Net change in fund balance 131,199 12,854 789,552 776,698 

Fund balann", beginning of year 1,717,375 1,717,375 1 ,717,375 

Fund balanco, end of yoar 5 1,848,574 .s 1,730,229 s 2,506,927 s 776,698 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Schedule of Revenues, Expenditutes and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual - Parks and Recreation MIiiage 

For the Yea r Ended December 31, 2020 

Actual o ver 
Or!slnal Final (Under) Final 

BudgE!t Budget Actual 811\lget 
Revenues 

Taxes and special assessments s 936,224 $ 936,224 s 942.857 s 6,633 

Licenses and permits 

Intergovernmental 6,000 6,000 4,469 (1,531) 
Ch a rges for services 10,000 10,000 1,917 (8,083) 
I nu,re'.tincome. 3,000 3,000 2,555 (445) 

Other rave.nue" 161 161 

Tota l revenues 955,224 955,224 95'1,959 (3,265) 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General government 

Public sa fety 

Public works 

Culture and rec reation 318,415 548,415 366,458 (181,957) 

Capita l outlay 71,339 l41,339 llS,091 (23,248) 

Total expenditures 389,754 689,754 484,549 (205,205) 

Revenues over expenditure.j 565,470 2&5,470 467,410 201,940 

Other financing sources 

Transfers in 

Net change in fund balance 565,470 265,470 467,410 201,940 

Fund ba lann", beginni~g of year 779,262 779,262 779, 262 

Fu nd balanco, end of year $ 1,344,732 s 1,044,732 s 1,246,672 $ 201,940 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Schedule of Revenues, Expenditutes and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actua l - E 911 Service 

For the Yea r Ended December 31, 2020 

Actua l o ver 

Or!s lnal Final (Under) Final 

Budget Budget Actual 811\lget 
Revenues 

Taxes and special assessments s $ $ $ 
Licenses and permits 

Intergovernmental 

Charges for services 

I Merest income so so 8 (42) 

Other revenue~ 

Total revenues so so 8 (42) 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General government 

Public safety 53,138 53,138 53,137 (1) 

Public works 

Culture and rec reation 

Capita l outlay 

Total expenditures 53,138 53,138 53,137 (1) 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (53,088) (53,088) (53,129) (41) 

Other financing sources 

Transfers in 

Net change in fund balance {53,088) (53,088) (53, 129) (41) 

Fund ba lanee, beginning of year 53,401 53,401 53,401 

Fund ba lance, end of year $ 313 5 3B s 272 s (41) 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Schedule of Revenues, Expenditutes and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual - 800 MHz Consortium 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Actual over 

Or!slnal Final (Under) Final 

Budget Budget Actual 811\lget 
Revenues 

Taxes and spec ial assessments s $ $- s 
Licenses and permits 

Intergovernmental 

Charges for services 40,000 40,000 52,500 12,500 

I Merest income 100 100 20 (.80) 

Other revenue~ 

Tota l revenues 40,100 40,100 52,520 12,420 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General government 

Public safety 40,100 40,100 50,888 10,788 
Publ ic works 

Culture and recreation 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 40,100 40,100 50,888 10,788 

Rev1enu es over expenditures 1,632 1,632 

Other financing sources 

Transfers in 

Net change in fund balance 1,632 1,632 

Fund ba lan«1>, beginning of year 21 ,592 21,592 21,592 

Fund balanco, end of yoar $ 21,592 .s 21,592 s 23,224 $ 1,632 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSH IP, MICHIGAN 

• Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual -Sidew alk Reserve 

For the Yea r Ended December 31, 2020 

Actual o ver 

Or!slnal Final (Under) Final 

Budget Budget Actual 811\lget 
Revenues 

Taxes and special assessments s $ $ $ 
Licenses and permits 

Intergovernmental 

Charges for services 

I Merest income 100 100 60 (40) 

Other revenue~ 30,000 30,000 35,000 5,000 

Tota l revenues 30,100 30,100 35,060 4,960 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General government 

Public safety 

Public works 

Culture and recreation 

Capital outlay 30,000 30,000 30,000 

Total expenditures 3.0,000 30,000 30,000 

Rev1enu es over lunder) expenditures 100 100 5,060 4,960 

Other financing sources 

Transfers in 

Net change in fund balance 100 5,060 4,960 

Fund ba lanee, beginning of year .91,482 91,482 91,482 

Fund ba lance, end of year .91,582 .s 91,582 s 96,542 s 4,960 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual - fi re 

For the Yea r Ended December 31, 2020 

Actua l o ver 

Or!s lnal Final (Under) Final 

Budget Budget Actual B11\lget 
Revenues 

Taxes and special assessments s $ s s 
Licenses and permits 

Intergovernmental 155,587 77,l'Eil (18,430) 

Charges for services 10,966 7,919 (3,047) 
I Merest income 

Other revenue~ 

Tota l revenues 166,553 85,076 (31,477) 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General government 

Public safety 

Public works 
Culture and rec reation 

Capita l outlay 168,553 85,900 (82,653) 

Total expenditures 168,553 85,900 (82,653) 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (2,000) (824) 1,176 

Other financing sources 
Transfers in 2,000 1,157 (843) 

Net change in fund balance 333 333 

Fund ba lan«e, beginning of year 

Fund balanco, end of yoar s 5 333 $ 333 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSH IP, MICHIGAN 

• Schedule of Revenues, Expenditutes and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual - Federal Forfeitures 

For the Yea r Ended December 31, 2020 

Actual over 

Or!glnal Final (Under) Final 

Budget Budget Actual B11\lget 
Revenues 

Taxes and special assessments s $ $ $ 
Licenses and permits 

Intergovernmental 

Charges for services 

I Mere<,t income 10 2 (8/ 

Other ravenue" 30,000 26,654 (3,346) 

Tota l revenues 30,010 26,656 (3,354) 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General government 

Public safety 10 (10) 
Public works 

Culture and rec rea tion 

Capita l outlay 30,000 25,000 (5,000) 

Total expenditures 30,010 25,000 (5,010) 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 1,656 1,656 

Ot her financing sources 

Transfers in 

Net change in fund balance 1,656 1,656 

Fund ba lane1>, beginning of year 

Fund balanco, end of yoar s s 1,656 $ 1,656 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Schedule of Revenues, Expenditutes and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual - Drug Law En forcement 

For the Yea r Ended December 31, 2020 

Actua l o ver 

Or!slnal Final (Under) Final 

Budget Budget Actual B11\lget 
Revenues 

Taxes and spec ial assessments s $ $ $ 
Licenses and permits 

Intergovernmental 

Charges for services 

I Merest income 10 (10/ 
Other revenue~ 50,000 971 (49,029) 

Total revenues 50,QlO 971 (49,039) 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General government 

Public safety 

Public works 

Culture and rec reation 

Capita l outlay 46,000 46,000 

Total expenditures 46,000 46,000 

Rev1enu es over lunder) expenditures 4,010 (45,029) (49,039) 

Other financing sources 

Transfers in 71 ,845 71,845 

Net change in fund balance 4,010 26,816 ll,806 

Fund ba lan«1>, beginning of year 

Fund ba lanco, end of yoar s 4,010 s 26,816 $ 22 806 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Debt Service Fund 
December 31, 2020 

Mallets Michigan 

Creek Avenue East Total 

Assets 

Cash and cash equlva le nts $ 72,568 $ 157,878 $ "230,446 
Sp,..cia l assessments receivable 101,744 382,168 483,912 

Total assets s 174,312 s 540,046 s 714;358 

Deferred inflows of resources 

Unavailable revenue -
Special assessments $ 101,745 $ 382,168 $ 483,913 

Taxes levied but intended for 
subsequent period 7,452 12,375 19,827 

Total deferred inflows of resources 109,197 394,543 503,740 

Fund bala nee s 

Restricted for debt servtce 65,115 145,503 210,618 

Total deferred inflows of resources 
and fund balances s 174312 s 540,046 $ 714 3SB 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Nonmajor Debt Service Fund 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

MalletS- Michlgan 

Creek Avenue East Total 

Revenues 

Taxes and special assessments s 20,257 s 58,766 s 79,023 
Interest income 37 74 111 

Total revenues 20,194 58,840 79,134 

Expenditures 

Debt service-

Principa l 19,878 95,000 114,878 
Interest and fiscal cl-rarges 2,434 20,750 23,184 

Total expenditures 22,312 115J750 138,062 

Revenues under expenditure, 12,018) (56,910) (58,928) 

Other financing source 

Tra nsfers in 57,875 57,875 

Net change in fund balances (2 ,018) 965 (1,053 ) 

Fund balances, beginning of year 67,133 144, 538 2 11,671 

Fund balances, end of year $ 65,115 $ 145,503 s 210,618 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Capita l Projects Fund 
December 31, 2020 

Assets 
Cash 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 

Fund bala nee 

Committed for ca pita! outlay 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

s 

s 

s 

106 

Township Saline 

Greeoways Oak Valley Total 

58 625 s 278,502 s 337, 127 

36,090 s s 36,090 

22,535 278,502 301,037 

58,625 $ 278,502 s 337,127 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Statement of Revem,1 es, EKpenditures and Change in Fund Balances 
Nonmajor Capital Projects Fund 

For the Year En ded December 31, 2020 

Expenditures 

Ca pita I out lay 

Other financing source 

Transfers in 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balance,, beginning of year 

s 

Township 

Greenways 

183,416 $ 

195,989 

12,573 

9,962 

Saline 

Oak Valley 

96,498 $ 

375,000 

278,502 

Total 

279,914 

570,989 

291,075 

9,962 

Fund balances, end of year s 22,535 $ 21s,so2 =s'-==-3~0=1,._,0-31_ 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Balance Sheet/ Statement of Net Position 
Economic Deve lopment Corporation Component Unit 
December 31, 2020 

Assets 
Cash and cash equiva lents 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 

Fund bala nee 

Unassigned 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

Net position - unrestricted 

s 

s 

108 

Economic Statement 

Development of 

Authority Adjustments Net Position 

8,952 s s 8,952 

8,952 8,952 

8,952 

.,.$.,,,,_~==-= =$'====== 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance/ Stat ement of Ac tivities 
Economic Development Corporation Component Unit 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

Expenditures/Expenses $ 

Fund ba lance / ne t posi tion, beginning of year 

Economic 

Oevelopmeni 

Authority 

s 

Adjustments 

- s 

Statement 

of 

Activities 

Fund balance/ net position, end of year =$====-= =$====== =$====== 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Statistical Section Table of Contents 

This part of the Pillsfie ld Charter Township's comprehensive annual financial report presenLS delatled 
lnformalion as a conte~l for understanding what the lnformalion in the financial statements, nole disclosures, 

and required supplementary in[orrnalion says about the Township's overall financial hea lth. 

Financial Trends 

Revenue Capacity 

Debt Capacity 

Demographic and 

Economic Information 

These schedules contain trend information lo help the reader 
understand how t he Township's financial performance and well­
being have changed over tlme. 

These schedules contain information lo help the reader assess Lhe 
Township's mosL significant local revenue source, the property ta~. 

These schedules prese nt information to he lp the reader assess the 
affordability of the Townshi1)'s currenl levels or outstanding debt and 

the Township's abili ty to issue addi tional debt in the future. 

These schedu les offer demographic ,md economic indicators to help 

the reader ,mderstand the environment within which the Township's 
financia l aclivlLies lake place. 

114- 1. 2.5 

126-131 

13:2-136 

137-145 

Sources: Unless oth!'rwise noted, the Information in l t,ese schedules is derived From the Comprehensive Annual 
Fhianclal Report for the relev~r,t year. 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Net Position by component 
Last Ten Years 
(Accrllal Basis of AccoLinting) 

2011 2012 Wl.3 2 014 

Governmental activ it ie5 

Net investment in 

capital assets s 26,397,690 s 27,933,571 s 28,568,888 s 28,591,948 
Restr icted 8,693,577 6,458,014 5,228,038 5,483,842 

Unrestricted (deficit) 4,136,827 4,385,932 4,955,360 5,249,1.41 

Tota l net position $ 39,2281094 s 38,7771517 $ 38,752,'.286 $ 3913241931 

6 usiness-type activ it ies 

Net 1nvestrnent ln 
capil1il assets s 26,018,663 s 25,980,446 s 25,944,485 s 25,681,.148 

Unrestricted 9,337,710 8,530,740 9,899,374 10,473,159 

Totll net position s 35,356,3 73 $ 3415111186 $ 35,843,859 s 36,154,307 

Total primary g011ernment 

Net lnvestmentin 

capital assets s 52,416,353 $ 53,914,017 $ 54,513,373 s 54,273,096 

Restr icted 1,008,374 1,228,596 1,303,303 5,483,842 
Unrestricted 21,159,740 18,146,090 18,779,469 15,722,300 

Total net position s 74,584%7 $ 73,288,703 s 74,596,145 s 75,479,238 

[l ] GASB Statement No. 68,adopted; prior years are not res tated. 

(2] G,ASB Statement No. 75 adopted; prior years are not restated. 

Source: Pittsfie ld Cha rter Township Fina nce Depa rtment 
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[1) 

2015 201.6 2017 
[2] 

201.S 2019 

Schedule 1 

Unaudited 

2020 

$ 29,339,544 $ 31,723 ,059 $ 32,160,625 $ 32,076,247 $ 30,253,665 $ 31,891,412 

s 

s 

s 

$ 

$ 

5,522,883 4,493,097 4,237,293 5,859,102 4,425,236 5,565,754 

(2,42s, 154) __ .... (2-'-,s_1""'5,_4_12 ..... ) __ _,_(2 ..... ,0_54--'-,3_37--'-l __ .... (5-'-,•_1_6,'""4_17--'-) __ _,_(4 ..... ,8_6_9'"", 9_52--'-) __ .... (3-'-,3_s_s,'""•_22 ..... l 

32,434,263 $ 

25,287,945 $ 

10,723 ,528 

36,011,473 $ 

54,627,489 s 
5,522,883 

8,295,364 

68,445,736 $ 

33,700,744 $ 

215,246,868 $ 
10,470,598 

315,711c460 s 

57,969,927 s 
4,493,097 

7,955,186 

70,418, 210 $ 

34,333,581 $ 

26,089,810 S 
11,438,231 

37,528,041 $ 

53,250,435 s 
4,237,293 

9,373 ,894 

71,861,622 s 

115 

32,918,932 $ 

25,687,327 $ 

12,318,632 

38,005,959 $ 

57,7@,574 $ 

5,1159,10:2 

7,302,215 

70,924,891 s 

29,808, 949 =$=====3=4=, 09=9'=1=44= 

26,932,047 $ 

12,280,941 

27,484,013 
12,475,226 

39,212,988 _s __ 3_9..,, g_s_s, .. 23_9_ 

57,185,712. s 59,375,425 

4,425,236 5,565,754 

7,410,989 9,117,204 

69,021,937 s 74,058,383 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, M ICHIGAN 

• Changes in Net Position 
Last Ten Years: 
[Accrual Basis of Accountil'lg) 

2011 2012 2013 2014 
Expenses 

Governmental actiVlties: 

Genera:I government $ 3,812,930 $ 3,062,073 $ 3,354,770 s 4,436,503 
PL1blic safety 9,067,580 9.539,187 10,648,372 10,142,446 
Public works 2,130,785 2,704,712 2,345,450 2,897,197 
Planning and zoning 278,881 450,033 496,898 571,306 
Cutture and recreation 1,505,128 1,539,044 1,013,722 1,020,879 
Interest on long-term debt 201,180 23,829 173,350 137,072 

Subtota I govemmental activit ies 16,996.484 17,318,878 18,032,562 19,205,403 

Business-type ilctivrries -

Water and sewer 10,577,971 12,301,239 10,668.,630 11,322,705 

Tota l e~penses 27,574,455 29,620,117 28,701,192 30,528,108 

Program revenues 

Goverrul'lental acliVfties: 

Charges for services: 

Genera l govemmeot 3,901,421 2,847,185 3,395,348 3,598,373 
Public safety 863,627 1,152',975 1,175,576 1,195,130 
Publ ic worl<s 361,037 476,125 350,302 351,817 
Plann1ng and zoning 19,755 22,350 42,243 

Culture and recreation 249,137 263,29S 280,129 244,734 
Operating grants and contributions 4.86.388 576,870 594,970 943,292 
Capital grants and contributiohs 369,859 295,353 257,855 178, 6.5_9 

Subtotal goverhme(llal activities 6,231,469 5,631,558 6,076,530 6,554,248 

Busi11ess-type activities : 

Charges for services 9,653,203 11,446,602 10,,712,639 10,897,820 
Capita l grants and contribution!. 160,703 74,840 611,530 413,541 

Subtotal business-type activ,-ties 9 813 906 11 521 442 11,324,169 11311361 

Tota l program revenues 16,045,375 17,153,000 17,400,699 17,865,609 

Net (expense)/reven ue 

Governmental actillHies (10,765,015) (11,687,320) (11,956,032) (12,651,155) 
Business-type activities (764,065) (779,797) 655,539 (11 ,344) 

Tota l net expense (11,529,080) (12,467,117) (11,300,493) (12,652,499) 
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2015 2016 2_017 

$ 4,991,228 $ 1,866,037 s 3.873,204 
10,821,667 11,105.474 11,100,671 

2,935,584 3,682,229 3,669,446 
580,313 679,520 545,261 

1,040,377 1,215,&57 1,315,306 
113,348 121,904 41,477 

20,488,517 18,671,021 20,545,365 

U,714,090 12,979,953 13,302,595 

32,202,607 31,650,974 33,847,960 

3,555,319 3,544.774 4,429,619 
1,226,894 1,437,775 804,053 

345,507 323,379 410,96S 
36,380 55,437 60,478 

292,818 273,469 284,423 
159,059 166,295 354501 

1,ocn,100 27,601 78,878 

6,617,677 5,838,730 6.422,917 

11,639,920 13,257,931 13,478,573 
125,076 169,958 sn,34!i 

11 764 996 13 427 899 14 055 919 

1,8,382,673 19,266,629 20,478,836 

(13,870,840) (12,832,291) (14,122.,448) 
50,906 447;946 753,324 

(13,819,934) (12,384,345) (13 ,369,124) 

2018 

s 5,128,492 $ 
11,661,957 
3,286,464 

531,653 
1,579,556 

43,823 

22,231,945 

13,952,869 

36, 184,814 

5,227,334 
611,259 
388,227 

78,188 

290,573 
229,733 
194,667 

7,019,981 

13,705,805 
647,034 

14,352,839 

21,372,820 

(15,211,964) 
399,970 

(14,811.994) 
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201,9 

7,566,538 
13,653,191 

3,363,362 
669,289 

1,759,681 
fil,737 

27,073.,.798 

13,.985,522 

41,059,420 

5,337,242 
572,824 
394,743 

93,785 

285, 653 
700,137 
879,011 

8,263,395 

13,283,992 
1,514,063 

14,798.055 

23,061,450 

(18,810,403) 
812.433 

(17,997,970) 

$ 

Schedu le 2 

Unaudited 

2020 

3,391,810 
11,934,564 
3,165,932 

615,807 
1,542,958 

100,056 

20,751 ,127 

13,803,335 

34,554,462 

6,068,540 
394,277 
345,89S 

88,321 
58,968 

429,217 
618,820 

8,004,038 

13,897,985 
582,960 

14 480 945 

22,484,983 

(12,747,089) 
677,610 

(12,069,479) 

~ontinued ... 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, M ICHIGAN 

• Changes in Net Position 
Last Ten Years: 

lAccrual Basis o f Accountihg) 

2011 2012 2013 2014 
General revenues 

Governmental activlties: 
Property ta~es $ 8,999,710 $ 8,764,881 $ 9,987,401 $ 10,806,241 

State shared revenues 2,553,734 2,511,761 2.581,031 2,661,470 
Unrestricted Investment earnings 21,692 11,948 25,035 51,585 

Gain on sale of capiu,I assets 

Transfers 21,561 (662,666) [295,496) 
Subtota l governmental actlvitres 11,575,136 11,310,151 11,930,801 13,223,800 

Business-type activit ies: 

Unrestricted investment earnings 10,037 6,226 14,468 26,296 
Gain on sale of ca pita I assets 6,207 1,245 
Transfers (21,561) 662,666 295,4% 

Subtotal business-type ~ctiv1ties 16,244 [14,090) 677,134 321,792 

Total general revenues 11,591,380 11,296,061 12,607,935 13~545,592 

Change in net position 
Goverhmental actiVities 810,121 (377,169) (25,231) 572,645 

Business-type activities (747,821) (793,887) 1,332,673 310,448 

Total change in net position $ 62,300 .s (1,171,056) $ 1,307,442 $ 883,093 

Source: Pimfle ld Charter Township Finance Oepartmeht 
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2015 2016 2017 

$ 10,920,470 $ 11,516,766 $ 11,722,320 
2,707,778 2,739,040 2,963,638 

52,729 61,348 64,915 
21,100 11,618 

(230,000) (230,000) 4.412 
13,472,077 14,098,772 14,755,285 

27,997 28,047 29,479 
17,12.0 32,184 

2.30,000 2.30,000 (4,412) 

Z75,ll7 258,047 57,251 

13,747,194 14,356,819 14,812,536 

{398,763) 1,269,481 632,837 

326,023 705,993 810,575 

$ !72,740! $ 1,972,474 $ 1,443,412 

2018 

$. 11,981,580 s 
3,,042.482 

73,638 

"15,097,700 

46,120 
92,033 

138,153 

15,235,853 

(114,264) 
538,123 

$ 423,859 $ 

119 

2019 

12,525,684 

3,311,753 
156,733 

(293,750) 
"15,700,420 

100,846 

293,75U 

394,596 

16,095,016 

(3,1Q9,983) 
1,207,029 

(1,902,9541 

$ 

$ 

Schedule 2 

Unaudited 

2020 

13,632,825 

3,302,224 
102,235 

17,037,284 

68,641 

68,641 

17,105,925 

4,290,195 

746,251 

5, 036,446 

concluded. 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Fund Bc1lances - Governmental Funds 
Last Ten Years 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accou nting) 

2011 2012 2D1J 2014 

General Fund 

Nonspendable s 6,591 s 54,243 s 22,288 s 63,572 
Restricted 1,076,932 1,080,154 1,047,218 1,060,350 
Committed 245,000 300,000 985,000 950,000 
As1fgned 

Unassigned 4,957,687 5;138,749 5,245,990 5,267,352 

Total genera l fund $ 6,286,210 $ 6,573,146 $ 7,300,496 s 7,341,274 

All Other Governmental Funds 
Nonsp,mdable $ 479 s. 92,6]6 s 8,5-69 $ 100,119 
Restricted 7,598,645 5,377,860 4,180,820 4,423,492 

Committed 19,839 28,190 184,887 

Total a ll other governmenta l funds s 7,6181963 $ 514701536 ~ 4,217,579 $. 4i708,498 

Source: Pittsfield Charter Township Finance Department 

12.0 
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2.015 2016 2 017 

s 8,244 $ 16,446 -$ 15,853 
1,071,953 127,432 140,492 

650,000 1,615,000 

5,107,325 3,841,454 3,532,873 

s 6,187,532 s 4,635,332 s 5,304,218 

s 20,027 s 15,441 s 31,517 
4,450,920 4,365,665 4,096,801 

619,316 427, 187 206,123 

$ 5 ,090,263 $ 4,aos,293 $ 4,334,441 

201& 

$ 14,241 s 
160,338 

1,165,000 

3,892,531 

$ 5,232,110 s 

s 12,867 s 
4,701,629 

502,405 

$ s,2161901 s 

12.1 

2019 

19,770 s 
173,616 

1,165,000 
2,708 

4,157,575 

5,518,669 $ 

11,157 s 
4,826,123 

2,052,411 

s,ss91691 $ 

Schedule 3 

Unaudite d 

2020 

54,274 
186,068 

1,465,000 

3 ,939,969 

S,6451311 

124,936 
5,502,721 

3,315,074 

s,942,731 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, M ICHIGAN 

• Chahges in Fund Balances • Governmental Funds 
Las t Ten Years 

(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

2011 2012 2013 2014 

Revenue~ 
Taxes and special assessments s 9,838,106 $ 9,407,420 $ 10,732,225 $ 11,190,558 
Licenses and permits 639,248 550,757 867,021 1.001,339 
Intergovernmental 2,929,223 2,925,226 3,000,110 3,066,993 
Charges for services 3,499,837 2,840,862 2,963,635 3,002,764 
fines and forfeitu res 107,786 115,501 160,140 160,253 
Franchise fees 499,731 514,309 519,593 544,575 
Interest income 12,049 9,828 22,146 51,585 
Donations 24,351 29,666 19,322 
Other revenues 633,799 836,267 824,558 1,220,209 

Total revenues 18,159,784 17,224,521 19,119,094 20,258,098 

Exp11nditures 
General government 2,198,339 2,657,052 2,859,147 2,795,747 
Public safety 8,802,945 9,073,259 9,437,128 9,583,519 
Public works 1,771,98$ 2,463,230 2,123,037 2,676,387 
Planning and zon ing 277,006 433,127 475,587 544,518 
Culturi! and recrea tion 1,069,192 1,074,929 949,886 932,448 
Otlie,r t.maliocate<,l 1,182,084 670.459 598,028 446,142 
Debt service: 

Pr incipa l 752,531 867,532 877,532 804,878 
Interest and other charges 194,838 213,773 172,60S 134,648 

Capit-a l Ol.jtlay 2,129,860 1,654,212 1,489,085 1,512,618 
Total expendirures 18,378,784 19,107,573 18,982,035 19,430,905 

Revenues over (under) expenditures. (219,000) (1,883,052) 137,059 827,193 

Othet fih~ncing sources ( llSt!s) 
Issuance of long-term debt 

Transfers in 1,336,315 5,171,859 4,983,013 5,500,498 
Transfers out !1,336,31.Sl {5, 150,298! {S ,645,679l {S,795,994l 

Total othe, ffnancingsource.s (uses) 21,561 (662,666) (295,496) 

Net change lh fund ba la nee s ~9,000J $ !1,861.491! s (525,607! s 531,697 

Debt serv ices as a percentage of 
nonca pital expenditures 5.49% 6.33% 5.92% 4,94% 

Source: Pittsfield Charter Township Finance Department 
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2015 2016 2017 

s 11,372,476 $ 11,753,664 $ 11,993,003 
842,851 767, 172 980,767 

2,818,791 2,816,250 3,301,141 
3,148,082 3,359,736 3,486,167 

131,057 119,656 130,842 
570,869 581,539 566,779 

52,729 61,348 64,915 
6,400 9,707 17,000 

799,694 876,446 119,372 
19,742,949 20,345,518 20,659,986 

3,129,331 3,207,498 2,813,457 
10,020,995 10,291,358 10,723,699 

2,768,533 3,560,605 3,527,891 
543,822 649,780 540, 489 
988,230 1, 111,672 1,339,345 
333,469 319,491 420,093 

714,878 675,824 702,822 
105,930 82,960 37,169 

1,679,738 1,085,500 l,329,399• 
20,284, 92.6 20,984,688 21.1134,364 

(541,977) {639,170) (774,378) 

6,941,019 5,668,781 5,966,544 
(7,171,019) (5,898,781} (5,962,132) 

(230,000) (230,000) 4,412 

s mi.977) s (869,170) $ (769,966) 

4.28% 4.20% 3.59% 

2018 

s 12,182,823 s 
1.445,987 
3,089,363 
3,585,616 

136.457 
538,167 
73,638 

7,736 
295,661 

21,355,448 

3,065,677 
10,237,872 
3,195,688 

499,504 
i,437,046 

328,930 

85,000 
46,347 

1,649,032 
20,545,096 

810,352 

6,502,288 
(6,502,288) 

$ 810,352 s 

0.66% 

123 

2019 

13,080,988 $ 
1,596,970 
4,397,158 
3,404,452 

129,874 
5 18,839 
156,733 
235,740 
202,877 

23,723,631 

3,099,524 
11,046,761 
3 ,277,7313 

626,398 
1,569,897 

388,957 

109,878 
25,356 

5,326,028 
2.5,470,532 

(1,746,901) 

4,000,000 
6,167,971 

!6,461,721) 
3,706,250 

1,959,349 $ 

0.57% 

Schedule 4 

Uniludited 

~020 

13,697,632 
2,025,602 
4,278,446 
3,383,548 

64,615 
498,414 
102,235 

5,026 

149,911 
2.4 ,205,429 

3,278,374 
11,370,397 
3,081,128 

620,222 
1,487,954 

75,000 

450,878 
115,434 

1,546,360 
22,025,747 

2,179,682 

6,701,866 
(6,701,866) 

2,179,682 

2.94% 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, M ICHIGAN 

• Cha hges in Fund Balances • General Fuhd 
Last Ten Years 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

2011 1012 2013 2014 
Revenues 

Property taxes '$ 15,847,597 s 6,556,789 s 6,413,007 s 6,914,364 
Licenses and permits 135,084 86,145 117,0015 89,365 
Inte rgovernmental 2,783,910 2,673,668 2,725,466 2,735,937 
Charges for services 1,961,966 1,435,782 1,332,844 1,320,lBl 
Fines and forfeiture!. 107,786 1,200 2,350 3 ;300 
franchise fees 490,088 512,189 516,704 544,575 
Investment earnings 12,049 7, 100 17,060 38,080 
Donatrons 24,106 29,666 6,850 
Other revenues 487,648 506,132 S l.7,542 492,917 

Total revenues 12,826,128 11.,803,111 11,671,645 12,145,569 

Exp1:inditures 
General government 2,182,209 i ,650,810 2,846,263 2,795,747 
Public safety 4,984,788 138,685 108,353 U6,5B5 
Public works 647,308 1,243,107 849,836 1,336,487 
Pia nning and zoning 277,006 433,127 475,587 544,518 
CultLJre and recreation 1,003,494 1,017,255 939,392 891,966 
Other unallocat:..<,l 1,182,084 670,459 598,028 446,142 
Debt service 
Capital outlay 247,594 436,786 426,598 345,845 

Total expendi tures 10,524,483 6,590,229 6,244,057 6,477,290 

Revenues ove r (Under) expenditures 2,'lOl,645 5,212,882 5,427.588 5,668,279 

Other financing source~ (uses} 
Transfers rn 112, 176 193,651 61.,824 
Transfers out (1,330,3155) (5,038,122) (4,893,889) (5,689,325) 

Tot,I other financin!½sources (Uses) (1,330,3155) (4,925,946) (4,700,238) (5,627,501) 

Net change In fund balance $ 971 280 $ 286 936 $ 727 350 $ 40778 

Source: Pittsfield Charter Township f inance Department 
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2015 2016 2017 

$ 7,045,243 s 7,358,916 $ 7,494,824 
108,740 13z.,753 154,779 

2,733,084 2,775,551 3,259.512 
1,374,995 1,395,045 1,550,701 

1,550 1,800 1,960 
570,869 581.539 566,779 
41,022 48,916 52,975 

6,400 5,000 15,500 
602,488 614,102 58,009 

12,484,391 12,913,622. 13,155,039 

3,061.592 3,195,798 2,810,817 
165,884 112,145 130,450 

1,336,654 2,105,004 1,993,867 
543,822 649,780 540, 489 
951,687 1,053,287 1,298,955 
333,469 319,491 369,314 

151,727 177,625 515,123 

6,544,335 7,613,130 7,659,015 

5,939,,556 5,300,49~ S,496,0l4 

3,595 87,20?. 

{7,093,298) (5,891,287) 15,879,341) 

(7,093,298) (5,887,692) (5,792,138) 

~ !1 l,~~ Z~Zl ~ ,~sz 20!2l ~ (i96 l1~l 

2018 

s 7,638,208 $ 

172,602 
3,055,699 
1,,575,317 

3,600 
538,167 

49,676 
5,625 

56,636 

13,095,530 

3,065,677 
1.36,608 

1,603,584 
499,504 
760,240 
328,930 

511,420 

6,905,963 

6,189,567 

120,000 
(6,381,675) 

j6, 261,675) 

~ (7~ 10Bl ~ 

125 

2019 

7,792,815 s 
184,255 

3,877,571 
1,650,062 

6,750 
518,839 
117,570 
235,740 
62,758 

14,446,360 

3,029,664 
138,262 

1,574,854 
626,398 
819,706 
388,957 

1,413,989 

7,991,830 

6,454,530 

(6,167,971) 

{6,167,971) 

2§6 5~9 ~ 

Schedule 5 
Unaudited 

2020 

8,129,773 
9S,282 

3,535,369 
1,414,060 

6,800 
498,414 
84,894 

5,000 
54,571 

13,824,163 

3,246,973 
104,178 

1,175,975 
620,222 

1,121,496 

75,000 
428,250 
296,563 

7,068,657 

6,755,506 

(6,628,864) 

!6,628,864! 

ms~, 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Taxable and Estimated Actual Value of Property 
Last Ten Years 

Asof FY£ 

Dec. 31, Dec. 31, 

2019 2020 

2018 2019 

2017 2018 

2016 2017 

2015 2016 

2014 2015 

W13 2014 

2012 2013 

7.011 2012 

7.010 2011 

s 

Real Property (1) 

Taxable 
Value 

1,893,648,909 

1,807,708,197 

1,731,565,944 

1,685,245,245 

1,630,269,442 

1,574,701,371 

1,534,854,820 

1,529,357,932 

1,558,976,815 

1,604,821,156 

s 

Estimated 
Actual Value 

3,787,297,818 

3,61 5,416,394 

3,463,13 1,888 

3,370,490,490 

3,260,538,884 

3,149,402,742 

3,069,709,640 

3,058,715,864 

3,117,953,630 

3,209,642,312 

s 

(1 ) Does not Include properties subject t.o Industrial Facili ty Tax e xemptio ns. 

( 2) Per$ 11000 of taxable va l Ue. 

Source: Pittsfield Charte r Township Assessing Department 

126 

Personal Property (11 

Taxable 
Value 

114,554,100 

120,192,400 

117,308,500 

lli,649,500 

11.9,400,002 

116, 147,300 

122,153,900 

122,398,500 

123,020,600 

122,029,200 

s 

Estimated 
Actual Value 

229,108,200 

240,384,800 

234,617,000 

231,299,000 

238,800,004 

232,294,600 

244,307,800 

244,797,000 

246,041,200 

244,058,400 
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Tot al 

Taxable 
Value 

s 2,008,203,009 s 
1,927,900,597 

1,848,874,444 
1,800,894,745 
1,749,669,444 

1,690,848, 671 

1,657,008,720 

1,651,756,432 

1,681,997,415 

1,726,850,356 

estimated 
Actual Value 

4,016,406,018 

3,855,801,194 

3,697,748,888 

3,601,789,490 
3,499,338,888 

3,381,697,342 

3,314,017,440 
3,303,512,864 
3,363,994,830 

3,453 I 700, 712 

Schedule 6 
Unaudited 

(2) 

Total 

Direct 
Tax Rate 

6.33 15 
6.3315 

6.4887 
6.5479 

6.5916 
6.5916 

6.5916 

6.3113 
5.3554 

5.3554 

12.7 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 
Last Ten Years 
(rate per $1,000 of taxable value) 

Fiscal 
Year Township Ann Arbor Milan Saline State Washtenaw 

£tided Total Public P1,1blic Public Education Community 
Detembor 31, Direct Rate Schools xhools Schools Tax Colk!ge 

2020 6.3315 26.8669 28.3694 26.8440 6.0000 3.3763 

2019 6.3315 27.0615 30.9694 26.8471 6.0000 3.3978 
2018 6.4887 26.9021 30.9694 26.8406 6.0000 3.4'268 

2017 6.5479 25.5406 30.9694 26.8452 6.0000 3 .4360 

2016 6.591.6 21.4168 30.9748 25.8500 6.0000 3 .4576 
2015 6.5916 21.4500 27.3148 25.8500 6.0000 3.4576 
2014 6.5916 21.4$00 26.0148 25.8500 6.0000 3.4576 

2013 6.31.13 21.4500 26.9148 25.8500 6.0000 3.6376 

2012 5.3554 21.1497 26.0148 25,8500 6.0000 3.7176 
2011 5.3554 21.1226 26.0148 25.8500 6.0000 3 .6'856 

Components ofTotal Direct Rate 

Speda I Voted 

Operating Pub Ii,; Safety Parks Total 

2020 3.9923 1.8730 0.4fi62 6.3315 

2019 3.9923 1.8730 0.4662 63315 
2018 4.0914 1.9195 0.4778 6.4887 

2017 4.1286 1.9371 0.4822 6.5479 

2016 4.1561 1.9500 0.4855 6.5916 
2015 4.1.561 1.9500 0.4855 6.5916 

2014 4.1561 1.9500 0.4855 6.5916 

2013 3.8758 1.9500 0.4855 6.3113 

2012 3.8758 0.9941 0.4855 5.3554 
2011 3.8758 0.9941 0.4855 5.3554 

Source: Pittsfie ld Charter Town~hip Treasurer', Department 
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Washtenaw 
Intermediate Ann Arbor 

Washtenaw School District 
County District Library 

6.8976 5.3285 1.8519 
6.9403 5.3641 1.8663 
5.9982 5.4109 1.8913 
6.0286 5.4509 l.9000 
6.3058 3.9745 1.6500 
6.2838 3.9745 1.5500 
5.7801 3.9745 1.5500 
5.7654 3.9745 1.5500 
5,7518 3.9745 1.5500 
S.7448 3.9745 1.5500 

Saline 
District 
Library 

1.1682 
1.1712 
1.1740 
1.3753 
1.1830 
1.1830 
1.1830 
1.1830 
1.3164 
1.3095 
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Total 

Homeste11d 

95.0343 
97.9492 
97.1020 
96.0939 
89.404 1 
85.6553 
83.8516 
84.6366 
82.6802 
82.6072 

Schedule 7 
Unaudited 

Total Non-

Homestead 

113.0343 
115.9492 
115.1020 
114.0939 
112,9225 

103.6553 
101.8516 
102.6366 
100.6802 
100.6072 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSH IP, MICHIGAN 

• Principal Property Taxpayers 
Curren t Year and Nine Yc~rs Ago 

LIi 
ra .. ble 

2010 

Taxpayer Valuation Rank 

LVP BH Valley Ranch s 20,436,900 

LSG Spirelree AµarLmer,Ls 19,6 75,089 2 

Pln,es of C: loverlane 16,594,831 J 

DTE Electric- 16,026,500 4 

Ham pL<l ns ofClrMlr l,, nr. 15,461,876 5 
Gl•nm• HI ii s LLC 14,147,34.7 6 

Oa~ Va11H-y Parlnt! rs Inc: 12,764,GOG 7 

Wulve ri r,e Plµeltria 11,9 02,000 8 

WR M•n GP LLC ll ,l32,7% 9 

Uptown An n Arbor LLC 11,074,780 10 

McMUiien Pr,,perLies 

Highland Industrial D,;v Co 

Thomson Reuters 
Meli~ r lnl 

CltlMortgage 

Hunt Club Apan.ments 

EPT Nineteen Inc. 

S 149,216,665 

I l ) Includes ad valorem and Industria l Facilities Tax properties, 

Source: Rittsfleld Charter Township Treasurer'~ Department 
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% of 

Total Tw p lll 
Taxable Ta•abl" 
Value Valuation 

0.95% $ 

0 .92% 9,230,916 

0 .17% 1.4 ,283,H00 

0 .75% 12,790,977 

0.72% 
0 .66% 12,957,749, 

0.60% 

0.56% 
0.51% 

0 ,52% 

2ll,603,09R 

16,004,900 

14,295,118 

17,229,800 

12,757,300 

9,710,100 

6 .97% $ 139,864,358 

2011 

Rank 

10 
5 

7 

6 

1 

3 

4 

2 

H 

9 

Schedule 8 

Unau dited 

¾ of 
Tot~ITWp 
Ta.able 

Valu e 

0.55% 

U.85% 

0.76% 

0,77% 

1,22% 

0.95% 

0.85% 

1.02% 

0.76% 

0.58% 

8.30% 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN S<hedule 9 

Un audited 

• Property Ti!IX Levies and Collections 
L;Jst Ten Ycar5 

(LI (2) 
Fist-11 Tu ies Le vied Collected Within t he (31 

'/ear Ended /Qr the Fisca l Year of the Levy Delinquent Tollll Collections to Date 

December 31. Fl«•I Year Amou nt %ofll! ,y Collections Amou nt % of Levy 

2020 $ 13.500,051 $ 13.187,693 97.69% $ 278,061 $ H,465,754 99.75% 
201.9 12,807 ,805 12,502,690 9 7.62% 285,957 12,788,647 99 .85% 

2018 l ~,211,853 11,916,56 2 97. 58% SU,619 12,167,181 91),63% 

2017 1 1,9ll5,16ll 11,529,610 97.03% 331 ,299 11,960,9(19 9980% 
2016 11,774,835 11,427,074 97,05% 324 ,602 11,751,676 99,80% 

2015 11,55.i,Z23 ll ,240,899 97,,0% 290,7~9 ll,5.H,6~5 99,8 1% 

2014 ll,097,413 l0,7<!.1,137 96.79% 317,544 11,058,68 1 99 .65% 
2013 10,889,827 10,485,003 96.28% 338,926 10,823,929 99.39% 

2012 10,360,713 10,010,053 96.62% .$20,524 10,;li!0,577 :99,71% 

2011 8,llllS,189 !l,S/14,15? !l56S.% 358,994 8,953,151 ~9.54% 

(1) rrope rty taxes are lesled July 1 ot the current ffscal year based on taxable prope rty values as of the precedine December 31, Unpaid 

µruper LV taxes become delln4uenL as of March 1 of 11,e currtinl nsca l yea r, The Tow nship's delinquent ,eat µm µerly ta>I'-' a ra 
purc l1as~d by Washtenaw Cqunty. Uncol lected p•rsonal properly la)(es 1TTU1>t be. rnllect"d by tl1e Township Treasurer . 

(2) lnd ude.s Indust ria l l'acl lit v Ta~. 

(3) Inc ludes seUlemeot payment from Washtena w Gounty Treasu rers departmen t for purc~ase of deffnquent rea l property ta, roll, 

Source: Pittsfield Chart'er Township Treasurer's Oeparirnent 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Ratios of Outstanding Debt by T)'pe 
Last Ten Years 

Governmental activities 
General obligation bonds $ 
Special assessment debt 

Business-type activities 
Genera l obligation bonds 

Tota l outstanding debt $ 

2011 

3,950,,000 

2,245,986 
6,195,986 

10,483,466 

16,679,452 

Tota l taxable val ue $ 1,726,850,356 

Ra tio of total debt to 

taKable va lue 0,99% 

Tota l population 35,288 

Tota l debt per ca.pita s 473 

% of persona l incom<' 1:22% 

Source: Pitts fie ld Charter Town~hlp Finance De,partment 

2012 2013 

s 3,255,852 s 2,543,682 

2,083.454 i,915,922 
5,339,306 4,459,604 

10,217,580 9,717,080 

s 15,556,886 s 14,176,684 

$ 1,681,997,415 $ 1,651,756,432 

0.95% 0.86% 

35,821 36,068 

s 436 $ 393 

1.-06% 0.91% 

Details regarding the Township's debtcah be found in the notes to the financia l statements.. 
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2014 

$ 1,821,512 

1,698,144 
3,5 19,656 

9,281,080 

s 12,800,736 

$ 1,657,008,720 

0.77% 

37,588 

s 341 

0.78o/, 
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2015 2016 2.017 

$ 1,189,342 s 602,172 $ -
1,613,266 l.546,579 1,441,516 
2,802,608 2,148,751 1,441,516 

8,825,080 7,811,080 7,2 11,080 

s 11,627,688 $ 9,959,831 $ 8,652,596 

$ 1,690,848,671 $ 1,749,669,444 $ 1,800,894,745 

0.69% 0.57% 0.48% 

38,309 38,435 39,730 

$ 304 s 259 s 218 

0.63% 0.50% 0 .41~ 

2018 

$ 
1,354,275 
1,354,275 

6,601,080 

s 7,955,355 

$ 1,848,874,444 

0.43% 

40,721 

-$ 195 

0.35% 

133 

2019 

$ 4,000,000 
1,242,156 
5,242, 156 

5,976,080 

s 11,218,236 

$ 1,927,900,597 

0.58% 

39,368 

$ 285 

0.48'1Q 

$ 

s 

Schedule 10 

Unaudited 

2020 

3,664,000 
1,125,037 
4,789,037 

5,331,080 

10,120,117 

$ 2,008,203,009 

0.50% 

40,360 

s 251 

0,41% 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
Last Ten Years 

Governmental Buslnc,ss-type 

Activities Attivities Amounts 

Gener~I Gel1eral Avail a bl!' in 

Obl lgMion Obligation Debt Servi"' 
Vear Bonds Bonds funds 

2020 .$ 3,664,U00 $ 5,.B1,0B0 s (210,6 18) 

2019 4,000,000 5,976,080 (211,671) 

2018 6,601,080 (218,746) 

201 7 7,211,080 (60,193) 
2016 602,172 7,811,080 (106,824\ 

201 5 1,189, 342 8,825,080 (104,445) 

201 4 1,82115 12 9,281,080 (15:l,919) 

2013 2,543 ,682 9,717,080 (232,547) 

2012 3,255,852 10,217,580 (928,596) 

2011 3,950,000 10,483,466 (968,535) 

Source : Pitt.st ield Charter Township Fi nance Departmenl 

%-of Total 

Personal 

Total Income 

s 8,784,462 0.36% 

9 ,764,409 0 .4 2% 
6 ,382,334 0.28% 

7 ,150,88 7 0 ,34% 

8 ,306,428 (I.U,'1% 

9 ,909,977 0.06% 
10,948,673 0 .10:H. 
12,028,215 0.1.'1% 
12,544,836 (113% 
13,444,931 0,18% 

Oela lls r@gard lng lhf Towps hip '~ de-ht ca n be fou nd in t h !!. notes- lo th@ nnancia l s tatement~. 
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% of Actual 

Taxabl i, Valui, 

of Propertv 

0.46% 

0,51¼ 
0.3'i% 

040% 
0,03% 
0.06% 

O,J 0% 

0.12¼ 
0.12% 

O,J 4% 

Schedule 11 

Unaud ited 

Per 
Capita 

s 217 ,65 

248.03 
1%.73 

179.99 

12 .89 
28 .32 

42 .77 

54.06 

54,06 

58.62 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• compl,ltation of Net Direct and overlapping Debt 
As of December 31, 2020 

Direct debt 

Gross 

Amouht 

outstanding 

Self•SUppQrting 

or Paid by 
Benefited Entity 

Schedule 12 

Unaudited 

Net 

Amount 

outstanding 

Bonds and rela ted premium s 4,789,037 S 1_.12s,oa1 _s __ a __ ,_664 ....... ,oo_o_ 

Overlapping debt 

School distrfets: 

Saline 

Ann Arbor 

Milan 
Washtenaw County 

Wijshtenaw Community College 

Washtenaw Intermediate School District 

Net ove rlapp ing debt 

Net direct and overlapping debt 

Source: Municipal Advisory Counci l of Michigan 

38,215,S19 
38,409,693 

7,317,689 

4,430,839 

768,708 

5, 183,491 

94,32:S,939 

$ 9 7,989,939 

Overlappini Debt • The Issuer's proportionate sha re of the debt of 0th.er. local governmental un its that eithe r 

ove rl ap it (the issuer is loca ted ei ther whmlly or pa rtly within the geographic limits of the other units) or unde rlie 

it (the other units are located within the geographic limits of the issuer). The debt is genera lly appo rtioned 
based upon relative Assessed Values. 

Ti,e Assessed Va lue,;_ is the apprafsed worth ot a property as set by a ta~ing authority for purposes of ad 

valorem taxation. Th,e method of establishing assessed valuation varies from sta te to state. For eKample, in 
certain jurisdictions the assessed yi>IUa tion is eq ue l to the full or r,,arket value of the property; 1n other 

j1J risdictions the assessed va luation is equal to a set percentage of full or market value. 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Legal Debt Margin 
Last Ten Years 

Legal debt margin calculation for fiscal 2020 

Assessed va lue (exclud ing IFT va lues) 

Debt limit (10% of assessed value) 

Less: net debt app licable to limft 

Legal debt ma re:in 

Debt 

Vear Limit 

2020 s 200,820,301 
201.,9 192,790,060 

2018 184,887,444 

2017 180,089,475 

2016 174,966,944 

2015 169,084,867 

2014 .165,700,872 

2013 .165,175,643 

2012 168, 199,742 

2011 172,685,036 

s 

Totill 

Net Debt 

Applicable 

to Limit 

5,331,080 
5,976,080 

6,60-1,080 

7, 211 ,080 

8,411,080 

10,066,080 

11,096,080 

1 2,096,080 

13, 151,080 

13,893,466 

S. 2,008,203,009 

S 200,820,301 

[5,331,080) 

$ 195,489,211 

Legal 

Debt Margin 

s 195,489,221 
186,813,9BO 

178,286,364 

172,878,395 

166,555,864 

159,018,787 

154,604,792 

153,079,563 

155,048,662 

158,791,570 

Source; Pittsfield Charter Township Finance Department & Asses.sing Department 
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Schedule 13 

Unaudited 

Total 

Net Debf 

Applici1ble 

10 Limit ilS a 

Percentage of 

Debt Limit 

2.65% 

3.10% 

3.57% 

4.00'l', 

4.81% 

5.95% 

6.70% 
7.32% 

7.82% 

8 .05% 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Demographic and Economic Statistics 
Last Ten Years 

(1) 

T otal 

Personal Per Capita 

Income Personal 

Year Population (In thousands) Income 

2020 40,360 s 2,455,623 s 60,843 

2019 39,368 2,337,003 59,363 

2018 38,884 2,191,036 56,348 

2017 38,817 2,050,081 52,814 

2016 38,435 1,975,559 51,400 

2015 38,309 1,852,815 48,365 

2014 37,588 1,651,128 43,927 

2013 36,068 1,558,210 43 ,202 
2012 35,821 1,462,249 40,821 

2011. 35,288 1,370,057 38,825 

(1) Data specific fo r the Township is not ava ilable; accordlnl! IY, amount shown is calculatt,d 
based on Tow nsnip's population and per capi ta personal income fo r Washtenaw Councy. 

Sources: Regional Economic Information System, Burea u of Economic Ana lysis, 

U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Ecor10rnlc Ana lysis 
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Schedule 14 

Unaudited 

Unemployment 

Rate 

6.45% 

2.70% 
2.90% 

3.10% 

3.00% 

3.30% 

4.50% 
5 ,40% 

5.30% 

6.10% 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, M ICHIGAN 54:hedule 15 

Unaudlt~d 

• Pr1ncipal frnployers 
Cutroot Veor •~d Ni!1C Years Agn 

2020 2011 

% ofTotal % ofTat:;11 

Township township 
Emplave r Cate.QO'l f:mploye.es Rank Employment Employe.es Jbnk Employment 

lharnson neuters Softi.-vare Publishe rs 1000• 22% N/A 
1,u, k I lero lutanR Co rp) Recre:;ilional Vel1ic le De:a lers 100-999 11% N/A 
Mu1on Va lley t..oriect iQn.:1J lorrcctlo 11al lnstit'-! tions: ?SO 49'l ,r. N/A 
C .1v{Tt'ln Lhemk-::d Me cl i(::;;11Oevitec,/11r~ .s, l,,w,:." lf"~ M,.J11ul,u tuli1 7 ~0 49q ' 7% N/A 

M it- i]!! l (;, upe101;, 1ket ar1d o lh&1 S•bf-~•y'-LOr~ }50 499 3 7% i',04g9 9% 
T,1rge.l 01;'j:r;Jrlme11i -.;t1,m:s, e.iu 1s11,1 dl -.c-• unl~ l50.,,99 ~ ',% N/A 
t<ror.cr Supcrm~1ket "trnd oth(lf e:r01;.ery ~tores ~0-'199 ,r. N/11 
Huron val ley /\mbul:Jnc{' ,Ambul~nce s.crvkcs- 100-249 0% N/11 
Pro-F~tc ri.mc, lc.1 lrtformatfoo se rv ice 100 )49 4% N/A 
(o...,trn w~, l tUUltl! 1 luh~ :111cl "itll ~ll:i!!lnl " 100 )49 4% N/A 
rAAc lr1l, Fim .s.t11d io Pro tJuLtio1t r :11;.ilH le?a 100 l49 5 3% N/A 
htumse l, ?WdUlt'5 o tt1e1 [ 1t:-t.1 1 ica l co111r1one1it~ M tg. 100-2• 9 6 l% , N/A 
Arm Arhor Hos:pi4;e Nursine c;;1rc faclUlics IOO•l • 9 6 ,% N/A 
Arnt ech Ctirp Mis:cell:ancous electric.a l l:quipmcnt Mrg. 100-,M9 6 ,r. 100-J 09 
Al'I oo l Co1p Avt:ii lion/Bu~ln~'i'> s~ r111c..-'> 100 I49 6 J% N/A 

SJUne I lfgll Sl lluo I i:"l~nwnl.1ry 1md :,eta n(!J r'f '>c hoob, 100 ,249 6 Jr, H0499 ,1r. 
Pttl>lie ld ca,e LLC Senf01 CO llil'f!UntlV Lrling 100-Yl~ 6 J,-. r,/11 
walma,t superslofc Oc-paqmcllt .stmcs, e:,iccp\ dl$,Counts [00-2"1~ • ,r. N/11 
/\&O r~chnc1or,t A ltc.rnii:l tivt"' FnNgv, Automotive ~go H) O-.?tllJ I 4% N/11 
r itlgra up Finii:lnrla l N/A S00-999 ''/% 
M r MUlll'."n Prapcn lcie; ca mmr,rr id l ,~al M t,1t ,:t, N/A 500 999 19% 

Htgllla11d tnduslli:11 Proper ties; Site p1e11J1at ia11 contrm:to,~ N/A l50.t99 10% 
Pines of Cloverl:ioe Af)t D.>t..J Proc.essnis .and relate.L1 :se,vlces N/A 250499 6% 

Glencoe tl ill 'S' LLC: Specl.1 1 "eeds tr ansportJl ion N/ /1 ;. ~0-'199 r, ~% 

sm, rt~: Micl1 1B;;111 tk 1rn1'l 111c r11 o t 1,,,1111o k1g,;1 Mmtilg~nM!nl & !1uclgrt t ;11id 
Arm Arbor Sparks 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Full-Time Equivalent Governmental Employees by Function/Program 
Last Ten Years 

Function/Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

General Government 

Supervisor 2 2 2 2 2 

Clerk/Elections 5 s 4 5 5 
Treasurer 4 4 5 5 s 
Assessing s s 4 4 4 
Finance 2 2 2 2 3 

Administrative Services 1 1 1 l • 2 
Human Resources 1 1 2 2 2 
Information Technology 1 1 1 1 1 

Community Development 5 5 8 7 7 

Building Safety 5 5 5 5 7 

Public Safety 

Police 40 42 41 36 38 

Fire 24 24 24 25 25 
Dispatch/Clerical 12 10 11 11 14 

Pub Ile Works 

Department of Public Works 9 8 10 10 10 
Grounds Maintenance 3 3 

Parks and recreation 10 10 10 8 9 

Total 126 125 130 127 137 

Source: Pittsfield Charter Township Finance Department 
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2016 2017 2018 

2 2 1 

5 5 5 

5 5 5 

4 4 5 

3 3 3 

2 3 3 

2 2 2 
1 2 2 

7 5 5 

5 5 6 

39 39 41 
26 26 26 
10 12 1 

12 13 13 

3 3 

8 9 .12 

134 138 130 

2019 

1 
5 
5 

5 
3 

4 
2 

2 

5 

6 

40 
26 
1 

13 

13 

131 

141 

Schedule 16 
Unaudited 

2020 

1 
5 

5 

4 
3 

4 

2 
2 

6 

5 

39 

24 
1 

12 

13 

126 



PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP 157 
Board of Trustees  
Minutes for a Regular Meeting  
Held June 9, 2021 
Attachment 1 

 

PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Operating Indicators by Function/Program 
Last Ten Years 

Function/Program 2011 2012 

Election data 

Registered voters 2Z,673 23,878 
Voters (at the polls or absentee) 5,190 16,367 
Percentage voting 27.30% 68.54% 

Police 

fra ffic citations 2,564 3,181 
Arrests 1,417 1,737 
Calls for service 13,827 14,469 

Fire 

Med ical ru ns 1,426 1,487 
Accident runs 523 479 
Fire ru ns 130 133 
Other ca lls for service 498 557 

Source: Pittsfield CharterTownship Clerk's Department 

Pittsfield Charter Township Public Safety Department 

142 

2013 2014 2015 

24,878 23,151 23,211 
1,939 9,921 4,974 

7.79% 42.85% 21.43% 

3,730 2,890 2,506 
1,599 1,551 1,282 

15,660 16,147 14,948 

1,474 1,509 1,448 
564 628 496 

373 144 208 
359 534 556 
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2016 2017 2018 

25,535 25,11'8 26,218 
19,590 4,001 16,727 
76.72% 15.93% 63.80% 

2,116 2,951 3,238 
1,206 1,593 1,766 

16,411 17,491 17,670 

1,498 1,552 1,662 
495 530 611 

500 592 410 
220 347 404 

2019 

26,337 
2,068 

7.85% 

2,574 
1,390 

16,992 

1,310 
499 
338 
582 

143 

Schedule 17 

Unaudited 

2020 

29,148 
21,433 

73.53% 

824 

777 
11,576 

1,540 
246 
275 
410 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program 
Last Ten Years 

Function/Program 2011 2012 

Police 

Police department building 1 1 

Vehicle patrol units 26- 27 

f:ire 

Number of stations 3 3 

Fire units: 

Fire engines 4 3 
Ladder trucks 2 2 
Tanker trucks 1 l 
Rescue vehicles 1 1 
Brush trucks 1 1 
Adm/Utility trucks 4 3 

Public Works 

Sewer: 

Feet of sanitary mains 7[2,861 712,861 
Water: 

Feet of water mains 972,442 974,554 
Number of fire hydrants 2,249 2,255 

Parks and Recreation 

Parks 16 16 
Park acreage 1,032 1,036 
Fishing docks 2 2 
Play structures 11 12 
Historical Farm 1 1 

Community center 1 1 
Tennis cou rts 4 4 

Pavilions 7 8 

Source: Pittsfield Charter Township 
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2013 2014 2015 

1 1 1 

27 31 31 

3 3 3 

4 s 5 
! 2 i 
l l l 
1 1 1 

1 1 1 
3 3 3 

713,356 728,230 731,962 

978,570 981,524 988,943 
2,274 2,290 2,313 

16 16 16 
1,036 1,036 1,066 

2 2 2 
11 11 13 

1 1 1 

1 1 1 
4 2 1 
8 8 9 
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2016 2017 2018 

1 1 1 

27 25 29 

3 3 3 

3 3 3 
2 2 2 

l 1 1 

1 1 1 
5 5 5 

756,916 766,867 773,641 

1,,015,771 1,027,796 1,037,001 
2,328 2,361 2,391 

16 17 17 
1,070 1,070 1,070 

2 2 2 
14 14 14 

1 1 1 

1 1 1 
2 2 2 
9 9 9 

2019 

1 

33 

3 

3 
2 
3 

1 
3 

792,094 

1,056,843 
2,452 

17 
1,070 

2 

14 
1 

1 
2 
9 
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Schedule 18 
Unaudited 

2020 

1 
34 

3 

3 
2 
3 

1 
3 

797,951 

1,068,437 
2,482 

17 
1,085 

2 

14 
1 

1 
2 
9 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE Of EXPENDITURES OF HDERAL AWARDS 

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GU IDANCE 

Board of Trustees 

Pitts.field Charter Township 

Ann Arbor, Michigan 

MONTH XX, 2021 

We have au,;!ited the finn ncial statements ,;,f the governmenta l activities, the business-type activities, the 

discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate rema ining fund information of 

Pittsfield Charter Township, Michigcm (the "Township"), as of and for the year ended December 31, 202.0, 

and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively ~or:nprise the basic financlal 

statements. We Issued our report thereon dated MONTH XX, 2001, which contained unmodified opinions 
on those financia l statements. Out audit was conducted for the purpose of formihg opin ions on those 

fina ncial statements that collect ively comprise the Township's basft financ:Ja l statements. The 

accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analys is 

as requ ired by Tftle 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regula t ions Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and Is not a required part of the 

bas ic financial sta tements. Such information is the responsibi lity of management and was derived from and 

re lates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 

sta tements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 

fina ncial stat.emems and certain additiona l procedures, IDeludfng comparing and reconciling such 

information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic f inancial 

statements or to the basic fina ncia l statements themselves, and other additional procedures In accordance 

with auditing standards generally accepted in the Unfted States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of 

expenditures of federal awards Is fa irly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 

statements as a whole. 

1 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, M ICHIGAN 

• Schedule of Expendlu1res of F'e.deral Awards 
For t he Vear Ended December 31, 2020 

CfDA Pa55ed Pass-through / Total federal 

Feder.ii Agency / Cluster / Program Title Numbel Through Grantor Numbel $ubawards Expenditure, 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Cornrnunilv Development Block Grant/ Enll\lemenl Gronl Clustei: 

2016 Entitlement 14.:US WC B-16-UC-26·006 $ $ 39.~97 

2017 Entitlement 14,218 WC B-17-UC-26-006 80 ,002 

2018 Enllt lernenl 14.218 WC B· l 8,UC-2G-006 78,916 

Total U.S . Department or Housing and Urban Development 198,315 

U.S. Department of Ju<ti, e 

COVI0- 19 - Coronavlrus Emergency 

Supplemen tal Fu ndinp, PrOf,ram (C ESF) 16.034 MSP 2020-VD-BX-04 34 U.440 

U.S. Department of Treasury· 

COVID•19 • Co ronavirus Relief Fund: 

C(.)t011~vi rus R~lief Lot;~I Gtl'llerri rm~nl' Gr~,1~ 1.019 MDT -r1/•· 31 ,596 

First Responder Haiard Pay Prem iums Program 21 ,019 MOT -11/a · SS,000 

Pub lic Sa r~1y a nd Pub"c Heallh Payroll 
R<Hmburs~m~n t Program (PSP HPR) 21.019 MDT -n/a- 377 ,SU 

Total U.S. Department of Treasury 464,408 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

A~ i!1Jl CJ u,ter 

Tit I~ Iii, Pan c - Nu1rlllun S~rvlc~s - ZOZ!l 93,045 we 19-9052-CH 1,791 

U.S. Department of Homeland Security 

COVID-19 Pub lic A«is lari rn Gra r,l Prograr11 97 ,036 M SP r EMA-4494-- DR-MI 126,920 

As:s-i:slanc:e lo Firefighter., Granl Pro~ram -
COVID-19 S,JpplemenLal (Ar G-S) 97,044 Direr.t EM W-:wio-F0-oi9s1 77, l 56 77 ,lSo 

Total U.S. Department of Honieland Security 77,156 204,076 

Tot.I £xpenditur._. of Federal Awarils $ 77,.156 $ 897,030 

See notes to sch• dUI~ of expenditures of federal awards . 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accompanying schedule or expenditu res of federal awards (lhe "Schedule") includes Ltie federa l granL 
actiVity o f Pittsfield Charter Township, Michigan (t he "Township") under programs of the federal 
government for the year ended December 31, 2020. The information in thi~ schedule is presented in 

accordance wi th Ltie requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Feder;il Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requ1remen1;s, Cost Prlnclples, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). BecaL1se the schedule pre~ent-s only a selected portion of the operations of the Township, it is 
not intended to and does not present t he financial positTon, changes In net position or cash flows of the 

Township. 

Expenditures reported on t he Schedule are reported on the accr.ia l basis or atcOuliting, which is described 

in Note 1 to t he Township's financial statements. Such expenditures are recognized fo llowing t he rnst 
principles conta ined in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certa in types of e~pendltures are not allowable or 

are limited as to reimbursement. Negat ive amounts shown on the Sc:hedule represent adjust ments or 
cred its made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Pass­

through entity identifying numbers are presented where available. 

2 . 10o/o DE MIN!MIS COST RATE 

For purposes of charging indirec'l costs Lo federal awards, the Township has noL elected to use the de 

mtnimis cost rate as permitted by §200.414 of the Uniform Guidance. 

3. PASS-THROUGH AGENCIES 

The Township receives certain federal gnrn1.s as stlbawards from non-federal entities. Pass-through 

entities, where applicable, have been identified in the Schedule wilh an abbreviation, defined ~s follows : 

Pass-through 
Agency 

Abbr!!Vlar'.lon 

MDT 
MSP 
we 

Pass-through Agency Name 

Michlg~!'l DeparLmel'lt ofTteasury 

Michigan St ale Pol ice 
Washtenaw County 

••••• 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
ANO ON COMPLI ANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Boa rd ol Trustees 

Pittsfield Charter Township 

Ann Arbor, Michigan 

MONTH )()( , 2021 

We have audited, In accordance with the auditing standards generally accepte.d In the United States of 

America and the sta ndards applicable to financia l audits contained in Government Ai,diting Standards i,sued 

by the Comptrnller General of the United States, the financia l sta tements of the governmental actMtie,, the 

business-type activit ies, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of Pittsfield Charter Tawm,hip, Mit::higan (the "Township''), as of and for the 

year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the fln~nclal statemeI,ts, which col lectively 

comprise the Township's basic financial statements, and have Issued ()Ur report tnereon dated MONTH X)(, 
2021 _ 

Internal control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial sta teme nts, we considered the Township's internal 

control over financial reporting (Internal control) as a basis for de.igning audit procedures that are 

appropria te in the circumstances for the purpose of expresslhg our opinions on the financial statements, but 

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectlvenes~ of the Township's internal control. 

Accordingly, we do not exprEess an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township's Internal control. 

A deficiency In Internal cantral exists wher, the design or operation of a control does r,ot allow management 

or employees, In the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correc t 

misstatements on a tirr,ely basis. A materfa/ weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 

interm1I control s-uch t hat there is a reasonable possibility tho t a materia l misstatement of the entity's 

financia l statements w~I not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significanr 
deficiency is a deticiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less seve re than ,a 

materia l wea~ness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our cons idera tion of in ternal contro l was for the limited purpose descr1bed in the first paragraph of this 

section and was not designed to Identify all defldendes 1n Inte rna l control tha t m1ght be material 

weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material Wea knesses or significant deficiencies may 

e:>:ist that have not been Identified_ We did identify a certain deficiency In interna l co11trol, described in the 

accompanying schedule of fi ndings and questioned costs, as Item 2020-001 that we consider to be a materia l 

weakness. 

4 
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Compliance and Otl)er Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance. about whether the Townshlp's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. we performed tests of its complia nce with certain provisions of laws1 regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, rmncompliance With Which could have a direct a(ld materia l effect on the 
financia l sta tements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accor.dlngly, we do not exprnss such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are requ Ired to be reported under Government 

A11dlting Standards. 

Pittsfield Charter Township's Response to Findings 

The Township's response to the finding Identified in our audit Is described in the accompanying schedLlie of 
findings and questioned costs. The Township's response was not subjected to the ~udltlng procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordin@ly, we express no opinioo on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control an<J complia nce 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township's internal 
control or on complfance. This report Is a.n integral part of an audit performed In accordance wfth 
Government Auditing Standards in consider1ng the entity's Intern al control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
comrr,unicatlon is nor suita ble for a n\l other purpose. 

5 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR THE MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM 

AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Board of Trustees 

Pitts field Charter Township 

Ann Arbor, Michigan 

MONTH XX, 2021 

Report on compliance for t he Major Federal Progrllm 

We have audited the complia nce of Pittsfield Charter Township, Michigan (the "Township'') with the types 

of complianoe requirements described in the 0MB Complianc:e Supplement that could have a direct and 

material effect on the Township's major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2020. The 
Township's major federa l program is identified in the summary of auditors' re~ults section of the 

accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Mo11ageme11r's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for complfance with federal stalu es, regulations, a11d the terms and conditions 
of its federa l awards apl)'lfcable to its federal programs. 

l11dependent Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsl·billty is to express an oplnlon on compliance for each of the Township's major federal programs 

based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 

compliance In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of America; the 
standards appl(cable ta fina ncial audlt;s contained In Government Auditing Standards, Issued by the 

Co[T\ptroller General -of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 US. Code of Federal 
Regu lations Part 200, Uniform Admini5tratfve Requirements, Cost Prlnclples, and Audit Requirements for 

Federal Awards (Uni form Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Gvidance require that we plan and 

perform the a udlt tp obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requi remenis referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 

program occurred. An audit includes eX'ilmining, on a test basis, evidence about the Township's compliance 

with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary In the 

circumsta nces. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal 

program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Township's compliance. 

6 
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Opinion on the Major Federal Program 

In eur opinion, the. Townshtp complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and materia l effect on its major federal program for the year 

ended December 31, 2020. 

Other Matt.ers 

The results of our auditing, procedures disclosed an Instance of noncompliance, which 1s required to be 
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance arid which Is described in the accompanying schedule of 

findings and questioned costs as item 2020,002. Our opinion on the major federa l program Is not mQdiffed 

with respect to t his matter. 

The Township's response t0 the noncompllance finding identified in our audit is de~cribed In t!,e 

accompanyins schedule of frndings and questioned cost,. The Township's response was not stlbjected to tl,e 
auditing procedures applied In the audit of compliance and, accord ingly, we eMpress rio opfnion on It. 

Report on Internal c;ontrol Over Compliance 

Management of the Township is responsible for establishing and maf'ntalning effeoNve Internal control over 

compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above .. In planning and performing our 

audit of c.ompllanoe, we considered the Township's Interna l control over compliance with the types of 
fequirerrents t'hat ~ould have a direct and materia l effect on the tnajor fecleral program to d.ete(mine tlie 

auditing procedures that are appropriate ln the circumstances for the purpose of e~eressing an opinion on 
compliance for the major federal program and to test and report on Internal confrol over complranee in 

accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of internal c<lntrol over compliance. Ac®rdiru!IY, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Township's Internal control over complrance. 

A deficiency In internal control over compliance exls1s when the design or operation of a contro l over 

compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 1Pe rforming their assigned 

fune"t!ons, to prevent, or detect and correct. noncompliance with a ttype of complfance requfrement of a 
federal prograr,, on a tf,mely basis. A material weaktJess In interno/ mntrol over cornplionce is a deficiency, 

or combination of de lciencles, In internal' con trol over complia.nce, such that there Is a reasonable 
,;osslbl llty that material noncompliance w ith a type of compliance r.equirement of a federal program will not 

be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency In Internal contra/ aver 
comp//an,:e Is a didiciency1 or a combination of defidencle.s, 1n Interna l control over compliance with a type 

of complian9e (equirement of a federa l program that is less severe than a material weakness ,n internal 

contro1 q\/er complla.nce, yet lmp.otta nt enough to merit atter,t ion by those charged with goverria.nce. 

Our consfderatl,m of interna l control over compliance was for the lim]ted purpose described in the flrsv 

par·agraph of th is section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in lnterna I control over 
compliance that might be muerfal weaknesses ot significant deficiencies and therefore, material 

weaknesses or significant deficiencies may eXiit that were not identified. We did not Identify any 

deficiencies in internaJ control over compl iance that we consider ,to be materia l weaknesses. However, we 
did ideritify a certain deflc!er;cy In Internal cot1 t ro) over complia)'ICe, as dru.crlbed In the accompariylr)g 

schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2020-002 t~at we consider to be a significant deficiency. 

7 
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The Township's response to the Internal control over compna nee fi nding identified in our audit is descrJbed 

in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Township's response was not subjected 

to the auditing procedures applied in the•audit of oampllance and, accordingly, we express no aplnian ,an It. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scape of our testing 

of internal control over complia nce and the resu lts of that testing based on the requ irements of the Uniform 

Guidance. Accordingly, th is report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year nded December 31, 2020 

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of report l he aud itor issued on whether 

the fi na ncial statements aud ited were prepared 
in accordance with GAAP: 

Internal control over fin ancial reporting '. 

Material weakness(es) ide ntified? 

Signiflcanl deficlency( ies) iden ti fied? 

Noncompliance material lo financia l statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal conlrol over major programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 

SignirJca nL deficlen cy(ies) identi fied? 

An y audit findings disclosed lhat are required 
to be re ported in accordance with 

2 CFR 200.516(a)~ 

ldenllfica lion o f major programs and Lype of aud itors' 
report issued on compliance fo r each major prog1<1m: 

cmANumber Name of Fede ral Procram or Cluster 

21.019 COVID-19 - Coronavirus Relief Fund 

Dollar t hreshold used 10 distinguish 
between Type A and Type 8 programs: 

Audi Lee qualified as low-risk audi lee? 

9 

Unmodi fied 

__ X_yes 

___ yes 

___ ves 

___ yes 

__ x __ ves 

__ x __ ves 

750 000 

___ ye-s 

no ---
__ .x __ none repor ted 

---'-x-'--_ no 

X no ---
___ ,,one reponed 

no ---

Type of Report 

Unmodified 

X r,o ---
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

SECTION II-FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

2020-001 - Material Capital Asset Adjustments 

Findi ng Type. Maleflal Weakness In In ternal Control over Financial Reporting. 

Criteria. Management is responsible for mainta ining its accounting records in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 

Condition: During our audit, we identified and proposed a material adjustment (which was approved and 

recorded by managemen t) to adjl1st the Townships' capital asset schedule to the appropriate balances. 

Cause. Interna l contro ls did not detect all of the necessary items lo be capita lized and depreciated. 

Effect. As a resull of Lhis condition, the capita l asset sthedule was inlLially unders-taled by approximalely $1 .9 

million. 

Recommendation. We recommend that the Township reconcile the Township's cap ita l asset records to t he 

activity including all additions and disposals. 

View of Responsible Officials. 

Responsible Officia l. 

Estimated Comp letion Date . 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

SECTION Ill- FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

2020-002 - W ritten Policies Required by the Uniform Grant Guidance 

Finding Type. lmmale rial Noncompllance/Signiflcanl Deficiency In lnlernal Conlro l over Compliance. 

Program. Coronavirus Relief Fu nd (CFDAU 21.019); U.S. Department ofTreasL1ry. 

Criteria. The Uniform Guidance requires a non-federal entity t hat has expended federal awards for a grant 
awarded on or after December 26, 2014 to have wrillen policies pertaining Lo: 1) Payments (draws of federal 

funds and how to minimize t he time lapsing between the receipt of federal funds and the disbursement to 

controctors/employees/subrecipients) (§200.302[6)); 2) Procurement (fncluding bidding and a conflict of 

interest pol icy) (§200.318) 3) Allowability of co5ts charged to federa l programs (§200.302(7)); 4) Compensation 

(personnel and benefit5 policy) (§200.430 -1nd §200.431); and S)Travel costs (including mileage and per diem) 

(§200.474). 

Condition. Although the Township has processes in place to cover Lhese areas, Lhere are no formal written 

policies covering paymen ts, procu remenL, allowabilit'A o f cosls, compensa Lion, and travel costs in accordance 
wilh L11e Uniform Guidance. 

Cause. The Township was not ilWare Lhal written policies were required for these areas in acrnrdance with 

Uniform Guidance. 

Effect. As a result of this condition, Lh!!. Township did not fully comply with the Uni form Guidance applicable to 

the above noted grant. 

Questioned Costs. No cosls are required Lo be questioned as a result of this finding. 

Recommendat ion. We recommend Lha l Townsh ip develop and implement Lhese polic ies as soon as practical. 

View of Responsible Offldals. 

Responsible Offic ial. 

Estimated Completion Date. 

• •••• 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020 

None reporled. 

• •••• 
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INDEPENDENT AUDiTORS' COMMUNICATION W ITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE 

Board of Trustees 

Pittsfield Charter Township 

Ann Arbor, Michigan 

MONTH XX, 2021 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 

the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaTning fund 

information of Pittsfield Charter Township, Michigan (the "Township") as of and for the year ended 

December 31, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated MONTH XX, 2021. Professional 

standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit. 

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 

As communicated in our engagement letter dated December 22, 2020, our responsibility, as 

described by professional standards, is to form and express opinions about whether the financial 

statements that have been prepared by man-iulement with your oversight are fairly presented, in all 

material respects, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 

America . Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your 

respective responsibilities. 

Our responsibi li ty, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform ou r audit to obtain 

reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit of finandal statements includes consideration of internal control 

over financia l reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

c:ircumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Township's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered 

the internal control of the Township solely for the purpose of-determining our audit procedu res and 

not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control. 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters re lated to the audit that are, in our 
professional judgment, re levant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. 

However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to 

communicate to you. 

We have provided our findings regarding internal control over financial reporting and compliance 

noted during our audit in a separate letter to you dated MONTH XX, 2021. In addition, we noted 

c.ertain other matters which are included in Attachment A to this letter. 
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Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

'we performed the audit accord ing to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you 

in our engagement letter. 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm has complied with all relevant 

ethical requ i rements regarding independence. 

Qualitative Aspects of the Township's Significant Accounting Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of 

the significant accounting policies adopted by the Townsh1p is (ncluded in Note 1 to the financra l 

statements. 

There have been no initial selections of accounting policies and no changes in sfgniflcant accountiog 

policies or their application during the year. 

No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to 

Inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusua l transactions and (2) the 

effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of 

a uthorlta tlve .guida nee or consensus. 

Significant Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integr.a l part of the financial statements pr.epared by management and 

are based on management's current judgments. Those Judgments are norma lly based on knowledge 

and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain 

accounting estimates are partfcularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial 

statement~ and because of the possibili ty that future events affecting them may differ marked ly from 

management's current judgments. 

The most.sensitrve accounting estimates affecting the financial statements-were: 

• Management's estimate of the usef-ul lives of depreciable. capital assets is based on the length of 

time it is believed that those assets. will provide some economic benefit in the future. 

• Management's estimate of the accrued compensated absences is based on current hourly rates 

and policies regarding payment of sick and v.acation banks. 
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• Management's estimate of the insurance claims incurred but not reported is based on information 
provided by the Township's third party administrators and subsequent claims activity. 

• The assumptions used in the actuarial va luation of the other postemployment benefits plan is 
based on historical trends and industry standards. 

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates and determined that 
they are reasonable in relation to the basfo financial state ments taken as a whole and In relation to 
the applicable opinion un its. 

In addition, the financial statements include net pension liability and other related amounts, whic:h 
are dependent on estimates made by the plan. These estimates are based on historica l trends and 
industry standards but are not within the control of management. 

Significant Difficulties Encountered During the Audit 

We encountered no sfgn1ficant difficulties 1n dea lfhg With management relating to the performance of 
the audit. 

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements 

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate al l known and 

li kely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are triviaL and 
wmrnunicate them to the appropdate level of management. Further,. professional standards requirn 
us to also communicate the effect of uncorrec:ted mismtements related to prior periods on the 
relevant dasses of transactions, ac:count balances or disdosures, and the financial statements as a 
whole and each applicable opinion unit. In addition, professional standards require us to 
communicate to you all material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of 
management as a result of our audit procedures-. None of the misstatements detected as a result of 
audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either indlvfdually or in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

The schedule of adjustments passed Is included with management's written representations in 
Attachment C to this letter, and summarizes unc.orrected financial statement misstatements whose 
effects in the current and prior periods, as determined by management, are immaterial, both 

Individua lly• and in the aggregate, to the financ:ial sta tements taken as a whole and each applicable 
opinion unit. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satlsf.ictlon, concerning a flnancial accounting, ,reporting, or 

auditing matter, Which could be significant to the Township's financial statements or the auditors' 
report. No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 
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Representations Requested from Management 

We have requested certain written represent,ltions from management, which are included in 

Attachment Cto this letter, 

Management's Consultations with Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consul t with other accountants about auditi ng and 

accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no 

consultations with other accountants regarding auditing and ac:counting matte rs. 

other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues 

In the normal course of our professional association with the Township, we generally discuss a variety 

of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, operating and 

regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and operational plans and strategies that may affect the 

risks of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention 

as the Towns.hip's auditors. 

Other Information In Documents Containing Audited Financial statements 

Our responsibil ity for the supplementary in-forma tion accompanying the financia l sta tement!., as 

described by professional standards,. Is to evaluate the presentation of the supplementary 

information in re lation to the financial statements as a whole and to report on whether the 

supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material resriects, in relation to the financial 

statements as a whole. We made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, 

and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Am erica, the method of prepar ing it 

has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to 

our audit of the financial statements. We 1:ompared and reconciled the supplementary information to 

the under,lying aecounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 

statements themselves. 

Upcoming Change, ln Accounting Standards 

Generally 'accepted aceounting principles (GAAP) are continually cha nging ln order to promote the 

usability and enha nce the applicability of information included in external financia l reporting. While it 

wou ld not be practical to include an in-depth discussion of every upcoming change in professional 

standa rds, Attachment B to this letter contains a brief overview of recent pronouncements of the 

Governmental Accounting Standar,ds Board (GASB) and their related effe.ctive dates, Management is 

responslb le for reviewing these standards, determining their applicability, and implementing them in 

future accounting petiods. 
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This information is intended solely for the use of the governing body and management of Pittsfield 
Charter Township, Michigan and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 

these specified parties. 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Attachment A - Comments and Recommendations 
For the December 31, 2020 Audit 

During our audit, we became aware of certain other matters that are opportunities for strengthening internal 
contro l and/or Improving operating efficiency. This memorandum summariz·es our comments and 
recommendations regarding those matters. Our consideration of the Townsh ip's internal control over 
financial reporting is described In our report, dated MONTH XX, 20Z1 , issued in accordance with Government 

Auditing Standards. This memorandum does not affect that report or our report dated MONTH XX, 2021, on 

t he financial statements of Pittsfield Charter Township, Michigan. 

Independent Review of Utility Bills (Repeat} 

In our walkthrough of the utility billing process, it was noted that while the Util ities Coordinator and the 

Utilit ies Accountant review the bills prepared by themselves before sending them to customers, the bills are 
not reviewed by an independent party prior to mailing. Additionally, we noted that historically when a rate 
change occurs, the rate in the accounting system is overwritten, thus preventing prorated bills from being 
prnperly calculated. As such, we recommend that the Township require a review of the utility bi lls prior to 

mailing to customers by an individual independent of the utility bill preparation process. 

Restoration of System Back-ups Policy (Repeat} 

The Township does not have a policy requiring regular testing of the system back-ups_ The Township 

performs system back•ups on a nightly basis and those back•ups are replicated off-s ite. However, restorat ion 

testing is rarely performed . This exposes the Township to the risk that the back-ups being performed are 
ir1complete or cor1tain errors. We recommer1d that the Township institute a policy tha t requires regular 

systern back-up restoratior1 testing. 

Al 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Attachment B - Upcoming Changes ln Accounting Standards/ Regulations 
For the December 31, 2020 Audit 

The following pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) have been released 

rece ntly and may be applicable to the Township in the near futu re. We encourage management to review t he 

following information and determlne whfc.h standard(s) may be applicable to the Townsh1p. For the complete 

text of these and other GASB standards, visit www.gasb.org and click on the "Standards & Guidance" tab. If 

you have questions regarding the applicability, timing, or implementation approach for any of these 

standards, please c.ontac:t your audit team. 

GAS8 87 • leases 

Effective 06/15/2022 {your FY 2022) 

This standard establishes a single model for reporting all leases (including tf)ose previously classified as 

operat ing and capital). Lessees wi ll now report offset t ing intangible lease ass-ets and lease liabilities equal to 

the present value of future lease payments. Lessors w ill report offsetting lease receivables and deferred 

inflows of resources. 

GASB 89 • Accounting for Interest cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period 

Effective 12/15/2021 (your FY 2021) 

This standard eliminates the requirement for governments to capitalize interest duri11g the c.onstrlJction 

period for business-type activr~ies. As this simplifies the accounting for interest, early implementat ion is 
encouraged. We do not expBct thrs st.indard to have any slgnificant effect on the Township. 

GASS 91 • Conduit Debt Oblteations 

Effective 12/15/2022 (vour FY 2022) 

This standard defines hconduit debt obligations", where a government issues debt whose proceeds are 

received and repaid by a third-pa rty obligor without the issuer being primarily liable. The standard requires 

issuers to disclose conduit debt obligat ions, but not to record a liabi li ty unless it is more likely than not that a 
commftment made by the issuer wi ll require it to support one or more debt payments for -a conduit debt 

obligation. We do not expect this standard to have any significant effect on the Township. 

GASB 92 • Omnibus 2020 

Effective 05/15/2022 (your FY 2022) 

This standard inc'ludes a variety of small technical revisions to previously issued GASB statements. We do not 

expect this standard to have any significant effect on the Townsh ip. 

Bl 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Attachment B - Upcoming Changes ln Accounting Standards/ Regulations 
For the December 31, 2020 Audit 

GASS 93 • Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates 

Effective 06/15/2022 (your FY 2022) 

This standard provides guidance to governments with agreements with variable payments tied to LI BOR, and 
how to transition them to a new reference rate. We do not expect this standard to have any sign ificant effect 

on the Township. 

GASB 94 • Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements 

Effective 06/15/2023 (your FY 2023) 

This standard addresses accounting and financial reporting for arrangements in which a government 

contracts with an operator to provide public services by conveying control of the right to operate or use a 
capita l asset for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like tr.ansaction. We do not expect this standard 
to have any significant effect on the Township. 

GASB 96 • Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements 

Effective 06/15/2023 (your FY 2023) 

This standard expands on the new guidance for leases and applies it to pomputer software contracts 
(subscript ions) with similar char.acteristics. Governments that subscribe to a vendor's IT software Will now 

report offsetting intangible subscription assets and subscription liabilities equal to the present value of future 
subscription payments. 

GASB 97 • Certain Component Onit Criteria and IRC Section 457 Deferred Compensation Pia ns 

Effective 06/15/2022 (your FY 2022) 

This standard amends the requirements for when to report defined contribution pension plans (such as 401k 
and 403b plans) as fiduciary component units, and how to account for Section 457 deferred compensation 

plans. 

• •••• 

B2 
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PITTSFIELD CHARTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN 

• Attachment C - Management Representations 
For the December 31, 2020 Audit 

The following pages contain the written representations that we requested from management. 

Cl 
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Jackson, Michigan 49203 

MONTH XX, 2021 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financia l statements of the 
governmental activities, the busJness-type activities, the discretely presented componen~ ~mit, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Pittsfield Charter Township, Michigan, as 
of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, for the 

purpose of expressing opinions on whether the basic financia l statements present fairly, in all ma terial 
respects, the financia l position, results of operatrons, and cash f lows, where applicable, and the 
respective budgeta ry comparison for the General Fund and each major specia l revenue fund of the 
Township in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted for governments In the Unlted 
States of America (U.S. GAA:P). 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items 
are considered mate rial, regard les~ of size, if they {nvolve an omission or misstatement of accounting 
information tha t, in the light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable tha t the judgment of a 
reasonable person relying on tt'ie information would be changed or fnfl\,lenced by the omission or 

miss ta tement. 

We confirm that, 1having made such inqumes -as we considered necessary for the purpose of 

appropriately informing ourselves as of MONTH )()(1 20~l : 

Financial Statements 

1. We have fulfilled our responsil;iilit ies, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated 

December 22, 2020, for the preparation c1r1d fair presentation of the financra l sta tements of the 
various opinion u11its referred to above In accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

2. The financial statements referred to above have been fair ly presented in accordance with U.S. 
GAAP, and include all properly classified funds, requ ired supplementary information, and notes to 
the basic financial statements. 

3. We have reviewed and approved the various adjusting journal entries that were proposed by you for 
recording in our books and records and re fl ected ih the financial statements, 

4. With respect to any ass1stance you provided in drafting the financial statements and related notes, 
we have pe1iormed the following; 

a. Made all ma·nagement decisions and performed all management functions; 

b. Assigned a competent Individual to oversee the services; 

, . Evaluated the adequacy of the services performed; 
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d. Evaluated and accepted responsibility for the result of the service performed; and 

e. Established and maintained internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities. 

5. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 

control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

6. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control to prevent and detect fraud. 

7 . Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at.fair 

value, are reasonable. 

8 . Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in 
accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP. For the purposes of this letter, related parties 

mean members of the governing body; board members; administrative officials; immediate families 

of administrative officials, board members, and members of the governing body; and any companies 

affiliated with or owned by such individuals. 

9. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S. GAAP requires 

adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed . 

10. The effects of uncorrected misstatements summarized in the attached schedule and aggregated by 

you during the current engagement are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the 
applicable opinion units and to the financial statements as a whole. 

11. The effects of all known actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and 

disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

12. With regard to items reported at fair value: 

a. The underlying assumptions are reasonable, and they appropriately reflect management's intent 
and ability to carry out its stated courses of action . 

b. The measurement methods and related assumptions used in determining fair value are 
appropriate in the circumstances and have been consistently applied . 

c. The disclosures related to fair values are complete, adequate, and in conformity with U.S. GAAP. 

d. There are no subsequent events that require adjustments to the fair value measurements and 

disclosures included in the financial statements. 

13. All component units, as well as joint ventures with an equity interest, are included and other joint 
ventures and related organizations are properly disclosed. 

14. All funds and activities are properly classified. 

15. All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements­
and Management's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments, and GASB Statement 

No. 37, Basic Financial Statements-and Management's Discussion and Analysis-for State and 
Local Governments: Omnibus, for presentation as major are identified and presented as such and all 
other funds that are presented as major are considered important to financial statement users. 

16. All components of net position and fund balance classifications have been properly reported . 

17. All revenues within the statement of activities have been properly classified as program revenues, 
general revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions to permanent 

fund principal. 
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18. All expenses have been properly classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the 
statement of act ivities, and a11ocations, if any, have been made on a reasonable basis. 

19. All interfund and intra-entity transactiens and balances have been properly class ified and reported . 

20. Deposit and investment risks have been properly and full y disclosed . 

21. Capital assets, including infrastructure assets, are properl y capitalized, reported, and if applicable, 
deprecia ted. 

22. All required supplementary information is measured and presented within the prescribed 
guidelines 

23. We be lieve that the actuarial assumptions and me thods used to measure other postemployrnent 
benefit liabilities and costs for financial accounting purposes are appropria te in the circumstances-. 

24. We are responsible for the fa rr presentation of the Township' s net pension liabili ty as calc.ulated by 
the Municipal Employees ' Retirement System of Michigan (MERS) and re lated amounts. We 
provided MERS wrth com plete and accL1rate lnformatlori regarding the Township's participation in 
the pla n, and have reviewed the information provided by MERS fo r i.11dusion in the Township' s 
financial statements. 

25 . In response to the novel coronavirus out break (COVID-19), the Governor issued various temporary 
Executive Orders that, among other stipulations, effectively prohibited in-person work activities for 
most businesses and industries including non-essential government services, having the effect of 
suspending or severe ly curtailing operatfons. As a resu lt, the COVID-19 outbreak is disrupting and 
affecting the Township's normal activities, The extent of t he ultimate Impact of the pandemic on the 
Township' s operational and financial pe rformarite will depend on certain developments, including 
the du ration and spread of the outbreak and its impact on employees, vendors, and taxpayers, all of 
which cannot be reasonably predicted at this time . In addition, it may place additional demands on 
the .government for flrDVid ing emergency services to its ci t12ens. While management reasonably 
expects, the COVlD-19 outbreak to ne.gatively impact the Township's financial posit ion, changes in 
financial position, arid, where applicable, the timing and amounts of cash flows, the related firiancial 
consequer,ces and durat1on ar€ highly uncertatn. 

Information Provided 

26. We have provided you with. 

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware that Is relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial sta tements of the various opinion units referred to above, such as 
records-, aocu mentation, meeting minutes, and other matters; 

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the pu rpose of t he audit; and 
c. Unrestricted access to persons within the Township from Whom you determiried it nece.ssary to 

ob tain audit evidence. 

27. Al l transa ctions have been recorded in t he accounting records and are reflected in the finandal 
statements. 

28. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may 
be mate riall'y misstated as a result of fraud. 
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29. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the Township and involves: 

a. Management; 
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

30. We have no knowledge of any instances, that have occurred or are likely to have occurred, of fraud 

and noncompliance with provisions of laws and regulations that have a material effect on the 

financial statements or other financial data significant to the audit objectives, and any other 

instances that warrant the attention of those charged with governance, whether communicated by 
employees, former employees, vendors (contractors), regulators, or others. 

31. We have no knowledge of any instances that have occurred or are likely to have occurred, of 
noncompliance with provisions of contracts and grant agreements that has a material effect on the 

determination of financial statement amounts or other financial data significant to the audit 
objectives. 

32. We have no knowledge of any instances that have occurred or are likely to have occurred of abuse 

that could be quantitatively or qualitatively material to the financial statements or other financial 
data significant to the audit objectives . 

33. We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations. 

34. We have identified for you all previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies related to 

the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented. 

35 . We have provided views on your reported audit findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as 

well as our planned corrective actions, for the report. 

36. We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation and clainJs whose effects should be 

considered when preparing the financial statements. 

37. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Township's related parties and all the related party 

relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

38. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with or 

deficiencies in accounting, internal control, or financial reporting practices. 

39. The government has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or 

classification of assets and liabilities. 

40. We have disclosed to you all guarantees, whether written or oral , under which the Township is 
contingently liable. 

41. We have identified and disclosed to you the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant 

agreements that could have a direct and material effect on financial statement amounts, including 
legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds. 

42. There are no: 

a. Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations, or provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as 
a basis for recording a loss contingency, including applicable budget laws and regulations. 

b. Unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised are probable of assertion and 

must be disclosed in accordance with GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and 
Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and A/CPA 

Pronouncements. 
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c. Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed by 

GASB Statement No. 62. 

43. The government has satisfactory t itle to al l owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances 

on such assets nor has any asset or future revenue been pledged as collateral, except as disclosed to 
you . 

44 , We have complied with al l aspects of grant agreements and other contractual agreements that 

would have a material effect on the financia l statements in the event of noncompliance. 

45. We have disclosed to you all significant estimates and material concentrations known to 

management that are reciuired to be disc-losed in accordance with GASB Statement No. ti2. 
Signi ficant estimates are estimates at the balance sheet date that cou ld change materially w ithin the 
next year. Concentrations refer to volumes of business, revenues, .available sources of supply, or 

markets or geographic areas for which events could occu r that would significantly disrupt normal 
fin-ances within the next year. 

Supplementary Information in Relation to the Financial Statements as i! Whole 

45. With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements: 

a. We acknowledge our responsib il ity for the presentation of the supl')lementary information in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

b. We believe t~e supple mentary Information, including its form and content, Is fairly presented in 

accorda-nce with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amerrca. 

c. The methods of measurement or presentation have not changed rrom those used in the prior 

period . 

d. We believe the signif icant assu mptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or 
presentation of the• supplementary informatii;,n, and the basis for our assumptions and 

Interpretations, are reasonab le and appropriate in the circumstances. 

Reguired Supplementary Information 

47. With respect to the required su pplementary information accompanying the financia l statements : 

a. We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentat ion of the required supplementary 
information in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 

America. 

b. We believe the requ ired supplementary information, including its form and content, is 

measured and fairly presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America . 

c. The methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior 
period. 

d. We bel ieve the significant assumptions or interpreta tions underlying the measurement or 
presentatioh of the required supplen1entary tn forrnation, and the basis for our assumptions and 
interpretations, are reasonable and .appropriate in the circumstances. 
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Uniform Guidance (2 CFR 200) 

48. With respect to federal awards, we represent the fo llowing to you : 

a. We are responsib le for understanding and complying with and have complied with the 

requirements of the Uni form Guidance. 
b. We are responsible for the preparatlon and presentation of the schedule al ei<penditutes of 

federa l awards in accordance with the Uniform Guidance. 
c. We believe the schedule of expenditures of federa l awards, including its form ahd conteht, is 

fairly presented in accordance with the Uniform Guidance. 

d. The methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the pdor 
period. 

e. We believe the significant assumptions or interpretations undel'lying the measurnment or 
presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federa l awards, and t he basis for our 
assumptions and interpre tations, are reasonab le and appropriate in the c.ircumstances. 

f. We are responsible for including the auditor's report on the schedule of expenditures of federal 

.awards in any document tha t contains the schedule a!'ld that indicates that the auditor has 
reported on sUGh information. 

g. We hav€' identified and disclosed all of our government programs and r€.la ted actJ vities subject 
to the Uniform Guidance compliance audit. 

h. When the schedu le of expenditures of federal awards is not presented wi th the audited financial 
statements, managen,ent will niake the audited financial statements readily available to the 

intended users of the schedu le of expendi ures of federal awards no later than the date of 
issuance by the Township of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and the auditor' s 

re port thereon. 
i. We have, in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, identified in the schedule of expenditures 

of federa l awards, expenditures made during tfie audit period for all awards provided by fede ral 
agencies in the form of grants, federal cost- reimbursement contracts, loans, loan guarantees, 
property (including donate.i su rplus propel'ty), cooper~tive agreements, interest subsldies, food 
commodities, direct appropriations, ;mdJ;lther a.ssistance. 

J. We are. responsible. for complying with t he req uirements of laws, regulations, and the provisions 
of contracts and grant agreements related to each of our federal programs and have identified 
and disclosed to you the requirements of laws, regulations, and the provisions of comracts and 

&rant agteements that are considered to have a direct and material effect on each major- fede ral 
program; andi we have complied, in all material respects, with these requirements. 

k. We have provided to you our interpretations of any compliance requirements that have varying 
interpretations. 

I. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining effective in ternal control over compliance 
requireme nts applic.ible to federal programs that provide reasonable assurance that we are 
managing ou r federa l awards in compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of 

contracts and grant c1greemenl;<; that could have a materic1 I effect on our federal programs. Also, 
no changes have been made in the internal control system to the date of this letter tha t might 
significantly affect internal control, including any correct ive action taken with regard to 
significant defidencieo, ihcluding material weaknesses, reported In the schedule of findings and 
quest1oned costs. 
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m. We have made available to you all contracts and grant agreements (including amendments, if 

any) and any other correspondence with federal agencies or pass-through entities relating to 

federal programs. 
n. We have received no requests from a federal agency to audit one or more specific programs as a 

major program. 
o. We have identified and disclosed to you all amounts questioned and any known noncompliance 

with the requirements of federal awards, including the results of other audits or program 

reviews. We also know of no instances of noncompliance occurring subsequent to the end of 
the period audited. 

p. We have charged costs to federal awards in accordance with applicable cost principles, including 
amounts claimed or used for matching determined in accordance with relevant guidelines in tne 

Uniform Guidance. 
q. We have made available to you all documentation related to the compliance requirements, 

including information related to federal program financial reports and claims for advances and 

reimbursements . 

r. Federal program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements are supported 
by the books and records from which the basic financial statements have been prepared (and 

are prepared on a basis consistent with the schedule of expenditures of federal awards). 

s. The copies of federal program financial reports provided to you are true copies of the reports 
submitted, or electronically transmitted, to the respective federal agency or pass-through entity, 

as applicable. 

t. We have monitored subrecipients to determine if they have expended pass-through assistance 

in accordance with applicable laws and regulations and have met the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. 

u. We have issued management decisions timely afte~ e receipt of subrecipients' auditor reports 
that identified noncompliance with laws, regulations, or the provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements, and have ensured that the subrecipients have taken the appropriate and timely 

corrective action on findings. 

v. We have considered the results of s recipients' audits and have made any necessary 

adjustments to our own books and records. 
w. We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the summary schedule of prior audit 

findings to include all findii;igs required to be included by the Uniform Guidance, and we have 
provided you with all information on the status of the follow-up on prior audit findings by 
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, including all management decisions. 

x. We have disclosed to you the findings received and related corrective actions taken for previous 
audits, attestation engagements, and internal or external monitoring that directly relate to the 

objectives of the compliance audit, including findings received and corrective actions taken from 
the end of the period covered by the compliance audit to the date of the auditor's report. 

y. We are responsible for and have accurately completed the appropriate sections of the Data 
Collection Form as required by the Uniform Guidance, and we are responsible for preparing and 
implementing a correction action plan for each audit finding. 

z. The reporting package does not contain protected personally identifiable information . 
aa . We have disclosed all contracts or other agreements with service organizations and disclosed to 

you all communications from these service organizations relating to noncompliance at the 

organizations. 
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bb. We have reviewed, approved, and taken responsibility for the financial statements and related 

notes. 
cc. We have disclosed to you the nature of any subsequent events that provide additional evidence 

with respect to conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period that affect 

noncompliance during the reporting period . 

Michelle L. Anzaldi, Clerk 

,;>/ 
-----\ Tracy Watkins, Finance Director / 
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